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Corporate Information
REIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

Guantao and Chow
Solicitors and Notaries
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BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank

STOCK CODE
01170

WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/kingmaker

KEY DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting

23 August 2021 to 26 August 2021

Entitlement to the proposed final and special final

dividends
1 September 2021 to 3 September 2021
Annual General Meeting

26 August 2021

Proposed payment date of final and special final dividends

On or about 27 September 2021
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Financial Highlights
MR E

2021 2020 Change
T —fF “E2IEF b=k
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Revenue Wz 804,720 1,050,064 -23.4%
Gross profit EF 38,239 74,315 -48.5%
-2.3 points
Gross profit margin ESVIES 4.8% 7.1% -2. 3B E 7B
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable Z=AF#HFIFE A
to equity holders of the Company  [E{EERHF,/ (Ei8) 88,098 (51,386) N/A 38 F
HK cents HK cents
A il
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SRELEHN (BB) 13.05 (7.50) N/A 78
HK cents HK cents
Al il
Proposed final and special final BRRIARASRIREER S
dividends
Interim dividend per share FRPHARE 1.5 -
Special interim dividend per share SRS FHRE 0.7 2.0
Final dividend per share BRAERE 1.5 =
Special final dividend per share SREBIEREEE 1.3 2.0
Total dividends per share for the year &E8KRBE &5t 5.0 4.0 +25%

. Cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$378 million

Turnover
EER
(HK$ Mil B & % 71)
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Financial Highlights
B E

Net Asset Value Per Share Attributable Dividend Per Share

to Equity Holders of the Company SRBE
TABEEFREARBGEEREERE
(HK$ #&71) (HK Cents 7&1LL)
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

OUR VISION
BRI R

To become the leading lifestyle footwear company trusted
by premium brands for value oreation and innovation.
MABEENEEEREREE AXEBELMER H
BlEEBENEEAH -

To partner with leading brands in making the best lifestyle
products to meet and create consumer demand in

footwear and related products.
HETLEMESEREREEEERER WEHESHE
BREMERNEE  LIEFAIEEK.

OUR MISSION
24 BliNE=

While the global economy is not expected to return to its pre- (REFEHIEIKASE S U EHRNERZEIEA
pandemic level within a short time, the Group is encouraged to  HI/KF > AEEBSEBER BB E S WIRE
see improved procurement momentum by branded customers. BRABEEFNE - N _ZE__F#=B=+—H
Recovery was found and registered in the first quarter of the It FENEZE  ERATMNERES
current financial year ending 31 March 2022, and we see —TERREMKE :JENRERS -E5TE
greater visibility in our order book. The Board feels confident EEBEHEEMMBE N IR EELE
that the Group is well equipped with manufacturing and BT F% > #HiEHERIEMNIK S o

financial strengths to capture the sales rebound as the health

crisis stabilizes.

Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen ES
Chairman =5
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MACROECONOMIC DISCUSSION

As COVID-19 fast-tracked the world into the ‘new normal’,
Kingmaker Footwear, along with many other businesses, spent
much of the year 2020/21 coping with waves of disruption and
adapting to extraordinary circumstances.

With the fight against the pandemic still continuing in many parts
of the world, it is increasingly clear that a lot of the changes are
irreversible. Instead of expecting a return to the pre-pandemic
ways of life, we are arriving at the ‘next normal’ phase, in which
we will need to change the way we operate and do business in
order to cope with new retail patterns, procurement modes and
macroeconomic uncertainty.

More than ever, this global crisis has shown us the weight of
business resilience and sustainability of our environment. As
our business prospects begin to brighten, we are mindful of the
importance of keeping our business sustainable and actions
responsible. This annual report will give shareholders an account
of how we position ourselves amid the new trends that will define
2021 and beyond.

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

During the financial year under review, the coronavirus pandemic
has reached almost every corner of the world, creating a
health crisis of immense proportion. It also brought economic
disruptions of global dimensions and has been a transformative
force for businesses.

Entering the year ending 31 March 2022, the Group witnessed
an extent of sales rebound in the first quarter, and the order book
is providing greater revenue visibility for the coming quarters.
Overall business prospects have improved, but the recovery will
likely be uneven and slow, in particular in light of the new bursts
of COVID-19 cases in Asia.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Business Resilience and Recovery from COVID-19

For Kingmaker Footwear, the health crisis caused a brief
interruption of our manufacturing activities in Vietnam and
Cambodia at the start of the reporting year. Our manufacturing
centers have worked closely with local authorities to implement
all necessary precautionary measures to protect our workers. Our
upstream supply chain has remained relatively steady, but our
management will stay alert to the possible interruptions in raw
materials supply amid the coronavirus rebound in Asia.

The pandemic’s impact was much more severely felt on
the business front. Faced with a range of challenges and
uncertainties, our branded customers have adopted even more
conservative buying strategies, which affected the Group in
several ways. First, the orders were placed in reduced sizes
across an expanded product portfolio, resulting in more frequent
production line rearrangements, with some loss of economies of
scale as a result. To cope with this, we have downsized our labor
forces in Vietnam and Cambodia, and expanded the concept-line
set-up to cover the majority of our production lines.

The speed of the procurement process has also increased,
leading to shorter fulfilment cycles. To this end, our management
has been striving to work with customers to create better
transparency in production planning. Increased digitalization of
our production lines would also help cater to shorter turnaround
trends. Going forward, we will continue to invest in the digital
enhancement of our manufacturing process in anticipation of
more remote work requirements from clients.

We seek profit margin enhancement from both business
development and cost control. Management has conducted
a thorough review of our clientele portfolio and product mix,
against the current footwear market trends and developments.
In line with our strategy of upgrading our product mix towards
higher-value offerings, we have invested in the research and
development (“R&D”) of footwear items for new branded
customers that have good growth potential. The product mix
management process also takes in consideration of the clients’
credit performance and projected business plans.
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On the cost side, our production centers have adopted a number
of control measures, which resulted in a decrease in overheads
for every operating unit during 2020/21. Despite rising salary
trends in Vietnam and Cambodia, we have been able to maintain
a steady level of wages and salaries as a proportion of revenue,
with the proportionate selling and administrative expenses also
kept in pace with topline movements.

In keeping with our efforts to sustain financial strength amid
the macroeconomic and operating uncertainties, we continue
to uphold a conservative cashflow management policy. Despite
longer credit periods as requested by the clients, our credit
profile has remained healthy.

Capital expenditures were suspended during the reporting
year, but in view of the improving forecasts from clients, we
plan to revisit the capex plans and invest ahead of the future
sales recovery. In particular, our associated operation in Central
Vietnam achieved a turnaround during the year. With brightened
prospects of its ongoing order forecasts, the associated
company is drawing up capacity expansion plans to meet
anticipated demand growth in the coming year.

The pandemic has also reinforced the important role our people
play. During these difficult times, our teams have maintained
a steadfast focus on our customers and supporting their
needs. We understand that our employees are facing their own
challenges, including personal and family health; we thus pledge
our commitment to ensuring sufficient safety measures are in
place at work and providing additional support for them to care
for family needs.

At corporate level, we work very hard to keep the administrative
costs in check. | am thankful to our executive directors and
senior management, who have demonstrated their support by
accepting a compensation reduction for eleven months since
May 2020, while middle level team members have taken unpaid
leave during the financial year. |, as Chairman of the Board,
have opted to temporarily forego remuneration since May 2020.
Together as a team, we will tide over the difficulties and seek
business recovery in the coming years.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Commitment to Sustainability

Resilience is not only a business concept, it is also about how
we take up our own responsibility for the planet and communities
where we operate.

Sustainability is multi-faceted and has different approaches
to it, but in essence it is defined as meeting the needs of the
present without compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their needs. Recognizing the carbon footprint of our
manufacturing activities, the Board has set up a working group
to review and study measures for raising the sustainability
performance of our operations. The working group comprises all
our executive directors, senior management and heads of our
production centers.

Our sustainability work is based on four pillars:

FHERREEAGE

REFELMEREHES  MEMFRAKE
HIXMEEPREHENEE

AREERAAZEAEE  WEBTRG AE
Rl BFEERA EREMEERANTERXA
BERNAAEBEERNEN -HFREEER
FEEAREN > RIEEEFEEMIL—T/F/N
B BERAMARRESEE LR RERENT
EoNEMBBEMBEATES BREERER
EEFOEE

FAAIFESE R LF BEROEARSE

Planet ik

R ERE

manage and minimize our carbon
footprint along the value chain
EEEERE LNRET ZBAORK

Progress #3

e pursue advancement through
innovation and application of
technologies

B 37 F0 8 AR AHR 1 i SR

)

People E Bk
e nurture and empower talents

RNBEBAST BTEELENRE

e care about our employees’ well-being
RIREE L&A

Profits Z2 )
create long-term shareholder value
AR EREIEREDR

P

10 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Under the four pillars of sustainability, we aim to give
consideration to all our key stakeholders, including the
shareholders, our team members, clients, the footwear industry
as a whole, and ultimately our planet.

Pledging increased focus on supply chain sustainability, we
constantly look at ways to minimize the use of resources.
Working with our branded customers, this is realized through
designs that accommodate reduced use of components and
materials; selection of materials with better environmental profile;
and optimization of the manufacturing process to reduce energy
and water usage.

Capacity and Capability to Serve World-leading Brands

Our success is premised on our capability to provide high-quality,
reliable and cost-effective production solutions for the world’s
leading footwear brands. We have sought to strengthen this
capability by reinvesting our earnings in our manufacturing and
R&D platform. Our existing facilities complement each other to
meet current client needs, and we have made advance capacity
planning to ready ourselves for long-term expansion.

This strong and scalable platform strategy has positioned the
Group well to respond in time to capture future recovery trends.

We also continue to raise the levels of automation and
digitalization in our facilities in order to overcome the long-term
labor shortage challenges, while at the same time promoting
productivity and quality. With customer interests at the heart of
our management and operation, the Group is prepared to go one
step further by phasing in the smart manufacturing system, which
is an effective way to achieve production efficiency and flexibility.

After incorporating our enterprise resource planning (ERP) system
into the manufacturing execution system (MES), we are stepping
into the next phase and exploring ways to establish a smart
supply chain. We will also seek to integrate robotic processes
into the production lines.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Talent Development

The Group nurtures and retains a team of people with diverse
talents. They are committed to making customers successful
and to growing a world-class company that can share in that
success.

| am very proud of our highly capable management team which
has shown a shared commitment to leading the Group and
its people through the difficult times. They have demonstrated
leadership capabilities, and a strong drive to grow business.

The Group has also been training local staff members in Vietnam
and Cambodia to take up management functions in the facilities.
Localization is an important step to strengthen the long-term
development of these manufacturing locations.

The Company offers competitive compensation packages to
acquire and retain talents. It also operates a share option scheme
and a share award scheme to provide further incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations.

Asset Enhancement

Depending on the Group’s business needs and capacity
planning, some self-owned factories and office properties may
not be fully utilized at times. The Board has in place a long-term
asset enhancement program to consider the properties’ sales or
leasing options and potential in order to create returns on these
assets.

With regard to the leased portion of the Zhuhai plant, the lessee’s
plan to transform the production premises to an industrial/
commercial project for new and emerging industries at its
own expense is currently underway. The Group anticipates the
lessee’s transformation plan to add value to the premises. While
enjoying an additional stream of recurrent rental income from this
asset, the Group also retains the opportunity for future capital
gains in view of the development of the Greater Bay Area.

12 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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This asset enhancement program will help the Group make good
use of idle properties, realize the investment value of its assets,
and generate additional stable income to enhance working
capital.

During the financial year, the portfolio of assets classified
as investment properties yielded gross rental income
of approximately HK$17,358,000 (2020: approximately
HK$13,506,000), or a gross vyield of approximately 3.2% per
annum. The Board considers that the portfolio is currently
generating a steady stream of recurrent income. It will regularly
review this asset base and examine options available with a view
to creating long-term value for shareholders.

Concluding Remarks

While we are encouraged to see the first signs of business
recovery, we are mindful of the challenges from rising labor
and material costs, as well as other overheads in Vietnam and
Cambodia. These factors will continue to put pressure on our
profit margin.

It is therefore critical that we continue to upgrade our product
and clientele portfolio. To this end, we have already engaged in
R&D for a number of new clients with good prospects. We will
stay alert to market trends and adjust our product strategies
accordingly.

We do not expect the pandemic to be completely calmed down
any time soon. The future will continue to be highly unpredictable.
And given the conservative procurement strategies adopted by
brands, the operating environment will remain tough for some
time. It is important that our Group maintains a strong financial
position to guard against turbulences and prolonged retail
weakness.

We have always been a prudent company. Every corporate
decision is made with careful consideration to balance business
development needs, service to clients and stakeholder interests.
With this in mind, Kingmaker Footwear will continue to take
measured and steadfast steps towards our long-term goals.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

EERESSAENEREREEYR BRA
ENREEE TELEIMIERALUELEE
Bxo

THBFER BRAEARBENENEEAGT
HRABFAE N A £917,358,0008 T (C B _ZF 4
13,506,000/ 7T) @ HFEWRAIB.2%  EEERA
HETELABRENKEERA > TEEHHBAE
EERNFESATAHE ARRAEREEE.

%

i

RPN EFNRERLI R D 5L EE > 7R
TS T~ MR AR AR 0 LR # e A SR 4 2R TR
FIsZ EFPRITERI DS - BERZREE < KM
MR ERZER-

oH

=h
A

it PV AFEARERNEREGT R
I HPAIE R BEE RN R REFMEF KA
Lo RRKEMEHHHBRARTE, > WG
REEMRE-

BHEBETERERRNTET R RERFES
BARA > BELATRA - £ 8 B s R AR T VIR BB R
B BHNKERBEERE—REE ~EEE
THFRENM B R LRSI EMEHFA
HENTERE-

BAR—REABENAET  BEBFERRY
NOEE UTPHERERBTE T RRBN
REFD-KBELES CEEXSEETRE
B BREMBERRABR

FEEEXEMMARAT Fik 2021 13



Chairman’s Statement
FERS

APPRECIATION

To my fellow directors, senior management and staff members,
I would like to express my sincere gratitude for their dedicated
efforts over the past year. | am also thankful to our business
partners, clients and shareholders for their support and
confidence in our Group.

By order of the Board
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
S ER e o

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Board is delighted to announce the annual results of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2021.

The year under review was one of the most challenging periods
in decades, not only because of the COVID-19 pandemic, but
also as a mix of geo-political and economic events rendered the
year highly unpredictable. For the footwear industry in particular,
the outbreak and subsequent lockdowns have had a significant
and lasting impact on its retail performance as this category was
traditionally more reliant on in-store sales.

In light of weakened retail sentiments and higher market volatility,
branded footwear customers have geared towards conservative
procurement plans and schedules. Manufacturers are thus
faced with the new realities of a shortened turnaround time
and reduced overall business volume, along with smaller order
batches and frequent changes of product models. These factors
have put additional cost pressures on the Group’s financial
performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmR I

COVID-19 precautions, including the installation of sanitary
devices and frequent disinfection of the workplace, have also
incurred additional overhead costs for the Group. To cope with
this and the market environment, the Group has tightened
cost control and postponed capital expenditures, while Board
members and senior management have opted to forego, or
accepted reductions in, remuneration. The Group has also taken
steps to produce stable streams of rental income from unutilized
offices and manufacturing premises.

The prolonged pandemic has brought profound changes to
footwear retailing, with many brands shifting towards a direct-
to-consumer (“D2C”) approach. In order to stay relevant to the
new D2C game, and to ready itself for more distance work and
collaboration with clients in future, the Group is furthering the
digitization of its R&D and manufacturing process.

While the global economy is not expected to return to its pre-
pandemic level within a short time, the Group is encouraged to
see improved procurement momentum by branded customers
since the first quarter of 2021 on lower and healthier inventory
levels. The Board feels confident that the Group is well equipped
with manufacturing and financial strengths to capture the sales
rebound as the health crisis stabilizes.

Revenue

During the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue decreased by
23.4% vyear on year to approximately HK$805 million (2020:
approximately HK$1,050 million) on a 26.2% decline in business
volume (pairs) owing to the conservative sourcing planning by
branded customers.

The Group’s strategy to upgrade its product portfolio and
increase R&D efforts has, nevertheless, yielded a 9.3%
improvement in the average selling price (“ASP”), which helped
alleviate the revenue decline.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit

The further decrease in revenue continued to undermine the
economies of scale of the manufacturing operations. Despite the
adoption of the concept-line system, designed to cater to smaller
order batches, overall efficiency of production was affected owing
to the lack of repeat orders and short turnaround time.

With dedicated efforts, management was able to keep wage
rates and proportionate labor costs under control. Wages and
salaries, including allowances and other benefits, amounted to
approximately HK$232 million (2020: approximately HK$318
million). Proportionate labor costs remained stable at 28.9% of
revenue (2020: 30.3%) despite the reduced scale.

Material costs, on the other hand, went up as R&D increased to
facilitate new business development and because of the usage
of more leather material for higher-value items. The cost increase
was also partly attributed to raw material price inflation.

As a result, the gross profit margin declined to approximately
4.8% (2020: approximately 7.1%) during the year.

Net Profit

The Group posted a net profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$88 million for the year (2020:
net loss of approximately HK$51 million). The profit was mainly
attributable to:

(i) a fair value gain of approximately HK$160 million arising
from the revaluation of the property at the Zhuhai plant that
the Group had leased out pursuant to the lease agreement
entered into with an independent third party in May 2020;
and

(i)  share of profit of approximately HK$13.6 million from
the Group’s associates operating in Central Vietnam, as
compared with a share of losses of approximately HK$20.7
million in the previous financial year;
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which were partially offset by:

()  the fair value losses on revaluation of the Group’s other
investment properties in Hong Kong and elsewhere in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”); and

(i)  provision for impairment losses on certain items of assets in
respect of the planned cessation of manufacturing activity
of a loss-making subsidiary operating in Cambodia.

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year were approximately HK13.1 cents (2020: loss per

share of approximately HK7.5 cents).

Key Financial Ratios

Healthy financial ratios were maintained during the year:

° Debtors’ turnover increased to 74 days for the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: 43 days);

° Stock turnover increased to 132 days (2020: 103 days) on
temporary holding of stock on customers’ request;

° Strong liquidity with net cash in hand of approximately
HK$378 million as at 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$444 million); and

° Current and quick ratios were 2.9 and 2.3 respectively
(2020: 2.9 and 2.3 respectively).

Final and Special Final Dividends

In view of the healthy financial position of the Company, the
Board recommended to pay a final dividend of HK1.5 cents
(2020: HK Nil cent) per ordinary share and a special final dividend
of HK1.3 cents (2020: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share for the
year. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.5 cents and
the special interim dividend of HKO.7 cent per ordinary share,
the total dividends for the year would amount to HK5.0 cents
per ordinary share, an increase of approximately 25% over the
previous financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board continues to pledge to share the Company’s results
with its shareholders. It will review its dividend policy from time to
time with consideration given to the Group’s capital expenditure
plans, the operating environment, order book visibility and overall
business prospects.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Macro Environment

Amid the COVID-19 crisis that persisted throughout the year
under review, the pandemic and its impact have overshadowed
all other risks to economic growth and corporate performance.
As a consequence of the health crisis, the period saw both a
downturn of consumer activity and global disruptions to the
supply chain, bringing constraints for the footwear industry on
both the supply and demand sides.

In this period marked by waves of COVID-19, footwear retail
was one of the hardest hit industries. The European Union as a
whole closed 2020 with a drop of 23.5% in its Retail Turnover
Index, which measures the sales of textiles, clothing, footwear
and leather goods. In the United Kingdom, there was a brief
retail upsurge towards the end of 2020, but as a new wave of
COVID-19 hit the country, retail sales of footwear slowed down
again in the first quarter of 2021.

The United States retail marketplace has been severely disrupted
since the second quarter of 2020. For the year, US consumer
spending on footwear shrank 12.3% from 2019, according to
Footwear Distributors and Retailers of America.

The manufacturers’ perspective has thus been cautious. Weak
consumer sentiment deepened a number of pre-existing sourcing
trends for brands as they work to revitalize and turn around their
businesses. Amid the sluggish and highly uncertain business
environment, manufacturers are faced with the operating
challenges of small order sizes, frequent processing line
rearrangements, shorter production lead time and longer credit
terms. Additional expenses were also incurred for the prevention
of COVID-19 infections within the facilities, and efforts to improve
the overall sanitary conditions of the workplace.
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To cope with the situation, the Group has taken all necessary
measures to control costs, and to enhance working capital and
cash flow to maintain resilience.

Manufacturing Business

The Group currently operates two core manufacturing bases in
southern Vietham and Cambodia, both of which are equipped
with R&D facilities. A supplementary R&D center is in operation in
Zhuhai, the PRC. In addition, the Group holds a 40% interest in a
joint-venture factory in central Vietnam.

As at the year-end date, the Group had a combined production
scale of 29 processing lines, mostly under the concept-line set-
up. They contributed an annual capacity of around 7 million pairs
of shoes, and were 78.1% utilized (2020: 71.0%). An increase in
the utilization rate was achieved amid conservative procurements
of brand owners, mainly as a result of the reduced scale in
Vietnam and the ceasing of manufacturing operation in the PRC.
In southern Vietnam, there were 15 concept lines and 4
traditional lines in operation, while in Cambodia the Group
had 10 concept lines. This robust, multi-location production
platform enables the Group to provide capacity with flexibility, in
order to cater to clients’ sourcing plans in terms of country of
manufacture.

The geographical distribution of markets continued to be
demand-driven, while at the same time, the Group supports
its clients’ efforts to develop markets with good prospects.
European markets’ contribution rose to 31.6% (2020: 28.4%),
and revenue from the US increased to 21.2% (2020: 14.7%).
Shipments to other markets, including Asia and other areas,
accounted for 47.2% (2020: 56.9%).

The rugged shoes category’s contribution rose to 49.9% (2020:
34.8%) of the Group’s revenue during the year, as this product
line is regaining popularity especially among the younger
generations in the market. Premium casual footwear remained
a major product category, accounting for 31.0% (2020: 42.7%)
of revenue. Contribution of babies’ and children’s footwear
decreased to 14.7% (2020: 20.9%), while the performance of the
athleisure product category continued to be lackluster with its
share at 4.4% (2020: 1.6%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Taking a more selective approach towards business
development, the Group has commenced cooperation with a
number of new branded customers. Major customers for the year
included Asics, Caterpillar, Clarks, Dr. Martens, Merrell, Skechers
and Wolverine, these in aggregate contributed 92.6% (2020:
91.9%) of total revenue.

As remarked in the Group’s interim results 2020/21, one of
the Group’s branded customers, C&J Clark Limited (“Clarks”),
announced a corporate restructuring in 2020. Clarks contributed
approximately 10.3% of the Group’s revenue during the year.
The Board will closely monitor the situation and update the
shareholders as and when appropriate.

Key developments in the Group’s production centers are
summarized below:

Southern Vietnam

Southern Vietnam remained the core manufacturing site for the
Group, contributing 69.2% (2020: 72.6%) of total volume output.

This manufacturing site holds a portfolio of facilities in operation,
premises ready for equipment installation, and land for future
expansion, which will enable the Group to fulfill existing demand
and ready it to capture future growth opportunities.

The Phase | factory, which is currently in operation, approached
higher utilization during the year as the Group ushered in new
branded customers. With a pool of manpower standing ready,
the Group is well-positioned to ramp up production capacity at
the adjacent Phase Il premises. The current plan is to fully utilize
the capacity of the Phase | facilities before making moves to
install machinery and equipment in the new premises.

The Group holds confidence in the ongoing growth potential of
this manufacturing hub.
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Cambodia

With government support and continued influx of foreign
investments, Cambodia has increasingly developed into a major
footwear manufacturing base for the world.

During the year, the Group’s site in Cambodia contributed
30.8% (2020:
supplementary production site for the core Vietham base,

17.2%) of output in pairs. While it remains a

the Group noted the growth potential and momentum of the
Cambodian center as it continues to build up efficiency, expertise
and a talent pool. On promising outlook of clients’ sourcing plans
for this center, the Group plans to expand its production scale by
adding 2 lines during the year ending 31 March 2022.

On the other hand, after due consideration of the loss-making
situation and turnaround prospects of the joint-venture outsole
factory in Cambodia, the Board has resolved to cease its
operation. A provision of approximately HK$7.6 million has been
made on impairment losses in respect of the planned cessation
of this subsidiary.

Mainland China

In light of the rising costs in the country and international trade
tensions, the majority of the Group’s branded customers have
revised their global sourcing blueprints. All of the Group’s
manufacturing activity in the country has been discontinued and
relocated to other Asian centers.

To cater to a client’s requirements, an R&D center was retained
at the Zhuhai Center with the support of a lean workforce. The
Group will closely monitor its utilization, and make adjustments to
the R&D offerings at this site accordingly.

The unutilized part of the Zhuhai plant that was leased out
generated a stable stream of recurrent rental income for the
Group. The Board looks forward to capturing the future capital
appreciation opportunity of this asset as the development of the
Greater Bay Area further rolls out.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investments in associates

The Group holds a 40% interest in an associated company
jointly owned with Evervan Group (“Evervan”) in central Vietnam.
Evervan is a leading international athletic footwear manufacturer.

With the addition of 5 production lines, the associated company
operated a total of 24 lines as at the year-end date. It is mainly
engaged in production for world-leading footwear brands, Crocs
and Columbia.

It is notable that, in spite of the overall weak market sentiments,
Crocs registered impressive growth on the back of its D2C
e-commerce approach, and helped by the emerging global trend
of remote working.

This associated company thus showed strong revenue growth
during the year. It delivered an approximately 43.9% increase in
revenue to approximately HK$472 million (2020: approximately
HK$328 million). With an enlarged scale and enhanced workforce
efficiency, the associated company contributed to the Group a
share of profit from associates of approximately HK$13.6 million
(2020: share of losses of approximately HK$20.7 million).

Given the strong background and expertise of Evervan, the
Board is confident of continued improvement in the associated
company’s performance as it achieves better cost effectiveness
through further scaling up and automation. The maturation of
workers’ skill sets and refinement of processes will also act as a
catalyst for a boost in the business’s competitiveness.

With a positive outlook on the consistent business growth trend
of the associated company, the Board is considering resuming
financial assistance to support its capacity expansion plan during
the financial year 2021/22.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
cashflow and banking facilities provided by its bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$378 million (2020: approximately
HK$444 million).

The Group is substantially debt-free. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had banking facilities amounted to an aggregate sum of
approximately HK$40 million (2020: approximately HK$79 million)
with various banks. Out of the trade and overdraft banking
facilities of approximately HK$40 million (2020: approximately
HK$79 million) in Hong Kong being granted to the Group, no
facilities had been utilized as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2021,
approximately 2.9 (2020: approximately 2.9) based on current

the current ratio was

assets of approximately HK$807 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$280 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 2.3 (2020: approximately 2.3).

As at 31 March 2021,
bearing bank borrowings (2020: Nil).

the Group did not have any interest-

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having
considered the major expansion plans of the Group, including
Vietnam and Cambodia in the next two to three years, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity
to meet its current and future working capital requirements on its

operations and expansion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenditure are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the
It is the

Group’s policy to adopt a conservative approach on foreign

Renminbi, the Vietnamese Dong and the US dollars.

exchange exposure management.

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the Hong
Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate or the London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate.

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations and to minimise the Group’s financial
risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group cautiously
uses derivatives financial instruments, principally forward
currency contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes
only, for hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s
receivables and payables.

The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose
from the net cash flows and the net working capital translation
of its PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries. The management of the
Group will actively hedge the foreign currency exposures through
natural hedges, forward contracts and options, if consider
necessary. The management of currency risk is centralised in the

headquarter of the Group in Hong Kong.

Capital Structure

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$1,245
million as at 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately HK$1,160
As at 31 March 2021,
interest-bearing bank borrowings (2020: Nil),
(2020: Nil%) of the shareholders equity.

million). the Group did not have any

resulting Nil%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEmR I

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled
2,894,000 of its ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$2,545,000 excluding transaction cost. The repurchase of
the Company’s shares during the year was effected by the
Board, pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted by the
shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share
of the Company.

Details of the shares repurchase during the year under review are

MBE -BREHE EHES

TR AR BB PR Bl K 51 852,894,000/ &
REECA0EB T ZEER  ERE FREERS
B A) 492,545,000 70 FR EEFIRIBEKE
TP EOEEELRAABRD SEELIRS
rAREREEFERSRBIMERRERS

i N

o

REBEFEERDELOZFBENT :

as follows:
Aggregate
consideration
Number of (excluding
shares Highest price Lowest price transaction
Month/Year repurchased per share per share cost)
wRE
fEElZ 5 Bk (FEiE
®/R RHEE BE=E RIEE R W)
HK$ &7 HK$ #5t HK$'000 F3# 7T
January 2021 &2 - —%—AH 690,000 0.84 0.77 557
February 2021 _E£_-_—%_H 1,424,000 0.95 0.83 1,261
March 2021 _&_—& =1 780,000 0.94 0.93 727
Total 485+ 2,894,000 2,545
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The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of
approximately HK$2,256,000 has been debited to the share
premium account. An amount equivalent to the par value of the
shares cancelled has been transferred from the retained profits of
the Company to the capital redemption reserve.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia, employed approximately 7,400
employees as at 31 March 2021. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels and
the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options and awarded shares may also be
granted in accordance to the terms of the Group’s approved

share option scheme and share award scheme, respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2021,
Company’s share award scheme adopted on 26 June 2019 (the
“Share Award Scheme”) purchased a total number of 2,992,000
shares on the market at a total consideration of approximately
HK$2,240,000. No shares have been awarded under the Share
Award Scheme for the year ended 31 March 2021.

the trustee of the

B EmR O

BLRHMEBEN 2 EHEA2,256,0008TE B K
PR ERNR - AABTEREFNEHERMNE
BZEBEEXRRTRE DN HEERAER G
o

Fr EXFrRBEEIN RABDHAEAMB LR E
N ERE BOXHEARTZEMN LHE
o

B & B BN ER SR

A ZEI—FZA=+—B &X&EE (BFHR
EB AR TE -UEERBEZNBAR) &
BRA74000 BT - AEBZHMBEREER
BRI ZHHBHMNKTE URESABKRETER
ZRIEABEET AEBENARBEAEENE
2 PR BT B I B0 B2 B 51 B 2 R R D B R
FEAC R R BN ARAD o

BE_ZE-_—F=B=1t—HLEEE A2TRK
ZE-AFESRAZHNHARMZ R RN E
(TR 2L B st B)) MBEANR TS EMERE
#2,240,00078 7t B8 B & 2,992,000/ & 15 © &
EIZT—FE=ZA=+—HIEEE BERMDE
RPN STRIR H o
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is delighted to present its
Social and Governance Report (the “ESG

This ESG Report herein focuses on providing an

Environmental,
Report”).
overview of the environmental and social aspects of the Group,
and outlines how we seek to continually improve our operational
strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to
cope with the global standards of sustainability.

During the process of the preparation of this ESG Report, the
Group has conducted thorough review and evaluation of the
existing Group’s policies and practices.

ESG working group

To further enhance the environmental, social and governance
management system of the Group, the Company established
the ESG working group under the Board during the year ended
31 March 2021.

Directors and senior management staffs who have sound

The ESG working group comprises Executive

knowledge of current and emerging ESG matters as well as the
Group’s operations.

The ESG working group is mainly responsible for the research,
formulate and implement the ESG-related strategies, principals
and key performance indicators, and
supervise the ESG-related tasks in each department and

secondary unit.

review ESG Report,

ESG Report Scope and Boundary

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (‘HKEX”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In order to comply with the disclosure obligations of “comply
or explain” provisions, this ESG Report has outlined the overall
Group’s performance in environmental protection, human
resources, operating practice and community involvement for
the financial year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group acknowledges the importance of proper disclosure of
business activities, believing it as the key to building trust with
investors and shareholders. For instance, this ESG Report will
highlight the following aspects:

° Emissions, Use of Resources and Generation of Waste;
° Employment and Labour Practices;
° Operating Practices; and

° Community Investment.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business, we make use of various communication channels
to understand and engage our stakeholders. The probable
points of concern of the stakeholders and the way of our
communication and responses are listed below.

Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern

IR (1B RERRS

AEBRTZERBHEIPNEDE LBB
BREREERRERIETNMR P &
ESGREHREUTAE :

o« BB RIBERRELERN;

©  ERERBIHE;

. EEBEH R

. HBRHE-

HFNF R E
MR R EERMRAEBRY S ENEEE
Bt RPERSESERERSNERET R
R3SF o A E WA AR B R BANEER
EIFE S AR T o

Communication and Responses

BinE

FIAERAERS

HKEX Compliance with listing rules, and timely
and accurate announcements.

Bk 3Z PR BT EMRA REERM QS

Government Compliance with laws and regulations,
preventing tax evasion, and social
welfare.

BT B ERERRA LRI R EEFN T

o

38 B[] fE

Meetings, training, workshops, programs,
website updates, and announcements.

Dk EHl TR 58 BIEEM R A

o

Interaction and visits, government
inspections, tax returns and other
information.

B Eh R FEsh ~ BUNAR SR ~ AR BR 3R K E A
Zhto
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Stakeholders

BnE

Probable Points of Concern
B RERA L

Communication and Responses

38 B[] fE

Investors

REE

Media & Public

REE R A

Suppliers
HER

Customers

%R

Employees

Community

&

Corporate governance, business
strategies and performance, and
investment returns.

TEER EFRBEAERE UAKEND
o

Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human right.
TPEEBLR RBERARE

Payment schedule, and stable demand.

TREERRIBER K-

Service quality, service delivery schedule,
reasonable prices, service value, and
personal data protection.

IRFFE R RFBR M SEER R
BEREANBERE-

Rights and benefits of employees,
compensation, training and
development, work hours, and working
environment.

EERER KB e HllEHER T
ERF B TIRIRIR ©

Community environment, employment
opportunities, community development,
and social welfare.

HERRE - EREI - HERERKLER
e
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Briefing sessions and seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings,
issue of financial reports or operation
reports for investors, media and
analysts.

HEBRERANE TR RRAE @A
BEE - EREDMEREMBFREN
BERE

Newsletters on the Company’s website, if
appropriate.

I B 5 A5 2 B A B A R o

Site visits.
B o

After-sales services.

TR

& IRF o

Union activities, training, interviews
with employees, internal memos, and
employee suggestion boxes.

TE5 Bl -EEHN ABBTER
EETRM-

Community activities, employee voluntary
activities, community welfare subsidies
and donations.

HEES EEXLIEE T EEF L
R iE8E o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OVERVIEW

With four decades of operations, the Group has grown into a
reputable manufacturer of footwear for famous brands including
Asics, Caterpillar, Clarks, Dr. Martens, Merrell,
Wolverine, and has operating factories and offices located in

Skechers and

China, Vietnam, Cambodia, Taiwan, and Hong Kong. Being
one of the major footwear manufacturing groups in Asia, we
recognize our corporate duties and obligations to protect
the environment. As such, we have integrated the idea of
sustainability into our day-to-day operations by implementing
various measures to reduce carbon footprints and mitigate
undesirable impacts on our environment.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working
environment by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste
management, supporting environmental education and promoting
the idea of recycling and reusing. The Group has established
a set of management policies, mechanisms and measures on
environmental protection and natural resources conservation to
help ensure the operations of the Group is in line with the world-
class environmental protection practices. Moreover, we have
recruited third party professionals to conduct energy audit test in
order to assess and evaluate our existing energy saving policies
and to determine whether the adopted measures are adequate in
terms of saving cost and energy as well as increasing productivity
while meeting stakeholders’ expectations.

IR (1B RERRS

BS

=
KBIN+ENEE AEBCREATRSESLR
FE Ry 545 7Y » B FEAsics ~ Caterpillar ~ Clarks »
Dr. Martens * Merrell ~ Skechers&Wolverine, » i 7F

TE-BE REE QEREERAEELR
RMER - FRREN—RAUEEREER &

FREE R L P EREY U R
FRTRERREARRMANDEEIEES
BB E S AL B R R B
DICENL D

HPABBRBERME BREENWEE X
RIRBHAURERELW KB ANES #E

eI R FEIFRES N -AEEFIE T
—EARMIRRRERBARERFRENEEBR
WHRIE BMNRREAEENEBEENS

HRFHIRFEE UL HACEFEF=1F
FATETREREBZA > LEHERFFERFIR
IRAEAERBE > I M EFT IR ENRIFE TR TE BN & A A
RERUKRIESEENHNRE  FEmERNE
AYHREE -
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Since our major operating factories are located in Vietnam
and Cambodia, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the
environmental issues and relevant measures that are applicable
to these two operating units. To achieve the environmental goals,
the Group has implemented the following measures:

° Comply with all applicable environmental laws and
regulations;

° Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental
impacts associated with the Group’s activities;

° Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of
environmental stewardship within the entire workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with provision of
necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

PART A. SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

The management believes that the employees are one of
the most valuable assets of our group and considers human
resource management as an integral part of our overall business
strategy. Therefore, getting the right person for the right job by
understanding employees’ personality traits and unique talents
is the cornerstone to the Group’s success. As such, we offer
attractive remuneration and provide many internal and external
training opportunities to attract, motivate and retain the right
people.
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Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all laws and
regulations in relation to employment that have a significant
impact on us. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group in relation to employment
aspects.

Employment

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Employment Law in Vietham and Cambodia as well as other
relevant laws and regulations related to employment protection
and benefits. We have a set of personnel policies and procedures
that set out the Group’s standard internal procedures relating
to recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays,
equal opportunities, compensation and dismissal, diversity
of the origins of our employees, anti-discrimination and other
human resources treatments and benefits, etc., to provide a
standardized and comprehensive guideline on work practice for
employees. For anti-discrimination we established a procedural
policy prohibiting discrimination, harassment, and retaliation
complete with a complaint and resolution process. Moreover,
we have health policies and practices to protect uniquely female
rights, and reinforce feminist social and political rights through
training courses and policies.

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, approximately 7,000
employees (2020: approximately 8,600 employees) are
employed. We welcome industrial experts to join our team, add
value to our pool of professional expertise of the industry, and
bring in innovative ideas.

IR (1B RERRS
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Attract and retain talents

Our remuneration policies are in line with prevailing market
practices and are determined on the basis of competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees.
Management has been constantly reviewing the employees’
remuneration packages and promotion opportunities.
Adjustments are made, usually annually, to conform to the
market standard in order to retain talents and ensure the offer is
competitive as compared to the rivals in the industry. A standard
package includes basic salary and variable incentive-based
remunerations which are distributed in accordance with the
individual employee’s performance. Share options and awarded
shares may also be granted in accordance with the terms of
the Group’s approved share option scheme and share award
scheme.

Moreover, labor union is established as to protect the interests
of our employees. To better understand the concerns from
workers, meetings between management and the labor union
is held on a quarterly basis, to ensure regular and constructive
communication an employee welfare and employment.

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunities

The Group is committed to building a diversified and inclusive
working environment to ensure no interviewee will be
discriminated against or deprived of opportunities due to gender,
ethnic background, religious belief, colour, sexual orientation,
age, marital status or family status in respect of recruitment
and promotion. Any kind of discrimination or harassment based
on the employees’ gender, age, marital status, race, sexual

orientation and religion at our workplace is strictly prohibited.
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We always listen and respond to the requests from our
employees. It is the goal of the Group to create a friendly and
peaceful working environment. We encourage our employees to
provide feedback in relation to any employment-related matters,
especially when they encounter any unpleasant or undesired
treatments from colleagues or senior management. Employees
may lodge their complaints in writing form and place them in
the suggestion box at the office building. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for handling all cases and conducts
investigations. If any unfair treatments and harassments are
found and confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in writing
form to the employee who has done the wrongdoing and may

dismiss him or her depending on the seriousness of the incident.

Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various
welfare and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees
are entitled to extra number of days of paid leave according to
their job level, in addition to all public holidays and minimum
number of days of paid leave in accordance with the Employment

Law.

Moreover, we also conduct a series of activities every year to
promote our Group’s corporate culture to our employees. During
the Reporting Period, we organized an annual dinner and several
gatherings for employees to mingle and have fun.

As most of our employees are female, the Group does its best
to ensure its female staff are feeling comfortable and happy
while working with us. During the Reporting Period, the Group
organized a wide range of activities including training related
to reproductive health care, health care of women, health and
welfare of pregnant women and many more health related topics.
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In addition, 6 months of paid maternity leave are offered to all
pregnant employees of Vietnam factory to ensure that their job
positions are available when they return from their maternity
leave. As stipulated in our staff handbook, supports should be
offered to pregnant staff. At the Vietnam office and factory, labels
are provided to pregnant workers in order to remind other staff
to provide special assistance to them when needed. Last but
not least, employees who have children aged between 1 and 6
years old are entitled to subsidies if they are living in Binh Duong
Province in Vietnam.

Health and Safety

Employee’s health and safety is of utmost importance to the
Group and it complies with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to safety, as well as hygiene and health. We aim
to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. As working in a manufacturing
factory may expose our employees to occupational hazards,
we have established “Occupational Safety and Health Policy,
Chemical Safety Policy, Personal Protective Equipment Policy,
Accident Investigation Procedure, and Risk Assessment Policies”
that covers labor safety and health. The policies clearly detail all
the appropriate practices and requirements in order to protect
the safety of our employees. For instance, workers are required
to wear earplugs during trimming and wear gloves during the
process of gluing. While using dusting machines, workers are

required to wear masks.
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Moreover, the Vietnam factory has an HSE team (Health, Safety,
Environment) to conduct random check on workers to ensure
that they are wearing proper work gear at work.

To avoid safety hazards, standard operating procedures are
affixed on the machines to set out clear guidance regarding
proper machine operations. Regular inspections are performed
to make sure that all of our machines are well-functioning. Any
machinery defects and malfunctions would be immediately
reported to Maintenance Department for repair and maintenance.

For instance, the Group has ensured the following actions
are properly carried out in order to create and maintain a
good, comfortable, safe and healthy work environment for its
employees:

° Keep all emergency exits in the workplace unobstructed;

° Provide sufficient light at the workplace;

° Ensure that all devices, machines and working equipment
are safe;

° Carry out regular repair and maintenance work on all
devices and machines used in the workplace;

° Maintain high standard of hygiene in the workspace;

° Prohibit smoking in the workplace; and

° Conduct regular safety inspections and fire drills, etc.

During the Reporting Period, there were 91 work-related injuries,
where the employees concerned have been compensated and
covered by the Group’s medical insurance. The number of
working days lost due to work-related injury was 263 days. In
response to the incidents, we have held a special meeting and
training workshop to enhance employees’ awareness on personal
protection and work safety. The Group did not have any work
death during the Reporting Period.
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In response to quarantine of labour force, the Group has
developed guidelines and policies on prevention of COVID-19
and work arrangements for offices and factories. The policies
include quarantining employees who resides in high-risk areas
and preventative measures, hygenic guidelines and etc., such
that the risk of infection to the factories could be mitigated:

° Encouraging those feeling unwell to take appropriate
measures to care for their wellbeing;

° Cleaning shared vehicles daily;

° All visitors and staffs are required to wear surgical mask
when entering office and factory;

° Maintain high standard of hygiene in the workspace;

° People visiting office or factory are required to have their
temperature checked; and

° Those who have respiratory symptoms will be advised to
leave and should be seek medical advice promptly.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of COVID-19
pandemic on its financial performance and closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 pandemic and the exposure to the
risks and uncertainties in this connection. The Group will take

appropriate measures as necessary.
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Development and Training

The Group believes that skills and experience of employees
are critical to the long-term development of the Group. The
Group offers opportunities that foster our employees’ leadership
skills and professional development, and in turn, promotes job
satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. An annual training
schedule is in place to ensure our employees are offered with
training during the year in order to get updated with information,
knowledge and skills required at work. All new joiners would
receive induction training on their first day of employment.
The total number of training hours for the Reporting Period
was approximately 98,000 hours (2020: approximately 62,000
hours). The average number of training hours completed per
each male and female employee were approximately 17 and 13
hours (2020: approximately 16 and 5 hours) respectively. We will
schedule more training hours in late 2021 for our staffs to ensure
they gain adequate knowledge and skills required at work.

The Group’s professional training programs cover a wide range
of specialties; some are on human rights, while some are on
safety and skills applicable to work. Moreover, employees
are also encouraged to attend external training courses and
seminars that help them gaining knowledge in the fast changing

business world. Any fees incurred for the courses or seminars are
sponsored by the Group.
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Labour Standards

We are committed to complying with the laws and regulations
applicable to the various production bases, as well as the
relevant international human rights conventions relating to
employees’ protection and prevention of child and forced labour.
Every employment is subject to a stringent internal review
process that involves a well-established monitoring procedure
verifying a candidate’s personal information in order to avoid
misrepresentation and any form of child labour. For instance,
the staff member responsible for recruitment collects the
identity proof from the candidates to ensure that the age of the
candidates fulfils the requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited.
At Vietnam, the law allows younger generation aged 15 or above
to work. As such, the Group has established a policy for young
employees (15 to 18 years old) to provide guidance on the
arrangement of welfare and work allocations. The Group strictly
follows the relevant laws and regulations, and provide adequate
protection for our employees. Employees’ rest time is well
respected by the Group, and any arrangement of overtime work
must be agreed by the employees voluntarily in advance in order
to prevent forced overtime work.

If any employment of child or forced labour is discovered, we
will immediately terminate the employment concerned. During
the Reporting Period, all employees were legally and properly
employed in accordance with the requirements of all applicable
laws and regulations.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group understands that supply chain management has an
inseparable relationship with its sustainable development, and is
therefore committed to establishing a long-term and harmonious
cooperation relationship with its suppliers. We expect our
suppliers to uphold the principles of integrity and pragmatism,
and provide products and services in strict compliance with the
requirements of applicable laws and regulations concerning both
environmental and social aspects.
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Although most of the suppliers are designated by our customers,
in order to control the quality of the materials more effectively,
we have an internal mechanism to assess and evaluate our
suppliers. We evaluate their background, qualifications, expertise,
experience, financial status, and professionalism, etc. Moreover,
social and environmental aspects are also important criteria for
supplier selection. Approved suppliers are reviewed regularly to
ensure the quality of the services and products purchased is up
to standard.

Product Responsibility

Providing a safe, quality and reliable product to our customers
is one of the core values of the Group, and it has a strong
commitment to attain high quality in our manufacturing process.
Therefore, we strictly comply with laws and regulations in regard
to product responsibility in China, Vietnam, Cambodia, Taiwan
and Hong Kong that have a significant impact on us, including,
but not limited to, the Consumer Protection Law of China,
China’s Law of Tort, the Trade Description Ordinance and the
Sale of Goods Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Law on Protection
of Consumer Rights in Vietnam. During the Reporting Period, no
confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by
the Group in relation to copyright infringement.

The Group’s our primary focus is to provide high quality services
and products to our customers. In order to build customer trust
and loyalty, the Group has established relevant policies which
cover service quality, intellectual property and privacy protection.
At our factory in Vietnam, we have a product quality inspection
team that monitors product quality and ensures the quality
of products is meeting our customers’ expectations. We also
welcome our customer’s quality control teams to come to our
factories to conduct quality inspections.

During the Reporting Period, we did not make any
advertisements relating to products and services provided.
In case we do make any advertisements, we will adhere to
all relevant laws and regulations in relation to advertising and
labelling of products that have a significant impact on us to
ensure that we do not convey false or misleading message in
relation to our products.
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If customers are not pleased with the products or service
quality, they may lodge a formal complaint and we would
respond promptly, conduct internal investigations and search for
solutions to settle the issue. Our management would contact the
customers (i.e. brand owners) regarding the issues directly.

In respect of privacy and confidentiality protection, the Group’s
employees are obligated to retain in confidence all information
obtained during the course of their employment, including, but
not limited to, trade secrets, know-how, customer’s information
and personal data, supplier information and other confidential
information. We also maintain information technology systems
with high level of security to prevent unauthorized access to
confidential information. Fingerprint identification facilities are
installed at the show room to allow only a small number of
authorized employees to enter into the show room.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly prohibits corruption and bribery committed
by its employees. In the case of conflict of interests, employees
must declare the concerns to management. In the case of
suspected corrupt practices, those should be reported to the
management. Employees are strictly prohibited to use business
opportunities, power and/or occupational position for obtaining
personal interests or benefits. During the Reporting Period, no
report of any corruption or bribery behavior was noted by within
the Group.

To prevent any corruption or bribery behavior within the Group,
we brief newly joined employees on our anti-corruption practices
that we do not tolerate any form of corruption and will take the
most serious view of any attempt to commit corrupt practices.
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Community Investment

The Group earnestly fulfils its social responsibilities, actively
carries out public welfare activities, and regards public welfare
as an important aspect of its corporate culture. Therefore, we
encourage our employees to take part in community services so
as to contribute to a more sustainable and harmonious society.
In particular, we are devoted to helping the orphans through
making donations to charitable bodies, building primary schools
and participating in school visits. In this Reporting Period, the
Group made a donation of approximately HK$365,000 (2020:
approximately HK$698,000). The Group has donated to World
Vision Hong Kong for Child Sponsorship in helping the children
to maintain good health, receive education and be protected. The
Group has also donated to World Vision Taiwan for supporting
the water treatment plan in Cambodia.

Our employees are committed to caring for the elderly, women,
children and other vulnerable groups by organizing different
voluntary activities, such as inviting children with special
education needs to visit the factories and offices, organizing
parties and giving out presents to children.

The Group will continue to contribute to local community to
develop a better environment for the society and children.

PART B. ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted
from three types of activities, including but not limited to, direct
vehicle emissions, direct air-conditioning at offices and factories,
the use of purchased electricity and the Liquefied Petroleum
Gas (‘LPG”) used for cooking. Direct GHG emissions are very
subtle as the production process of footwear only includes,
abrasive, gluing and drying, universal pressing and pressed lining,
repairing, shading, labeling, inspection, and packaging; while
other indirect emissions mainly arise from the use of business
facilities. We have implemented various measures to ensure that
the emissions are kept at the minimum, and to reduce the impact
of our business activities caused to the environment.
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Vehicles, forklifts and generators

8 motor vehicles are used to serve our management team
members, guests and clients, and 3 forklifts are used for lifting
and transporting heavy loads in Vietnam and Cambodia factories.
In our business operations, employees are seldom required to
travel to different locations for work.

All usage of fuel and mileage of the vehicles are recorded by
drivers on a daily basis in order to monitor the usage of vehicles.
Furthermore, all vehicles are under regular maintenance check to
facilitate fuel consumption efficiency, ensure road safety and keep
carbon dioxide emission at its minimum.

The total mileage travelled by the vehicles was approximately
188,000 kilometers (2020: approximately 324,000 kilometers).
The total consumption of fuel for both vehicles and forklifts was
approximately 35,000 litres (2020: approximately 56,000 litres);
the total nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides emissions were
approximately 17,000 grams (2020: approximately 24,000 grams)
and approximately 550 grams (2020: approximately 1,000 grams)
respectively; while the total particle emission was approximately
1,150 grams (2020: approximately 2,000 grams); and the total
carbon dioxide emission was approximately 92,000 kilograms
Due to the COVID
19, the Group had decreased business travelling which lead to

(2020: approximately 150,000 kilograms).

decreased in vehicle usage and fuel consumption.

Generators are used to support the operations in Cambodia.
The total fuel consumption was approximately 2,000 litres (2020:
approximately 72,000 litres), with a total carbon dioxide emission
was approximately 5,300 kilograms (2020: approximately
190,000 kilograms).
more frequently as a result of the increase in the number of days

In the previous year, generator was used

with unstable electricity supply in Manhattan Industrial Zone in
Cambodia. During the Reporting Period, the electricity supply in
Cambodia has been resumed, thus, the fuel consumption of the
generator has significant decrease as compared to the previous
year. In order to help reduce the use of fuel and the emissions of
GHG, all machines and equipment would be turned off while they
are not in use.
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LPG are used for the stove in staff canteen of Vietham’s and
Cambodia’s factories. The total use of LPG was approximately
4,000 kilograms, with a total carbon dioxide emission of 12,000
kilograms approximately.

Based on our resource consumption, the total GHGs emissions
within our operations was approximately 8,711,000 kilograms
(2020: approximately 11,455,000 kilograms);
was approximately 1.57 kilograms per pair of shoes (2020:

and the intensity

approximately 1.73 kilograms per pair of shoes).

Air-conditioning

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, indoor temperature
is maintained at 24 degrees Celsius or above to reduce
unnecessary energy wastage. Air-conditioners are switched off
when they are not in use. The Group has also put notices at
prominent locations to raise employees’ awareness of energy

conservation.

Use of Resources

The Group always endeavors to promote sustainability and aim to
cease resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the
environment. Various measures have been implemented to attain
the goal of using resources efficiently. These measures have
been effectively communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring that
all employees understand clearly the importance of conserving
energy and make full use of available resources during work.

Use of Resources Policy has been issued, and certain goals and
plans have been made to save energy. We have also assigned a
department responsible for energy management, which includes
carrying out regular inspections and monitoring the usage of
energy. We are aware of the significance of energy saving for the
business and the society, and have made several investments on
saving the use of energy and resources. The measures taken are
as follows.
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Water Usage

Water usage arises from the production process of footwear
and the daily use of water by employees at the offices during
working hours. Monthly water consumption depends highly on
the production volume of the month and has slight fluctuation
throughout the year.

At the factory in Vietnam, meters are installed to monitor the
water consumption which makes analyzing the consumption
index of each production stage easier. As for Cambodia factory, it
is convenient for the site to source natural water from wells in the
nearby area.

In order to use water efficiently, the Group has installed automatic
water saving taps in toilets and has placed written notices in
conspicuous areas to remind staff to save resources. Moreover,
we have also consulted third party professionals to evaluate the
existing energy saving policies and suggest ways to improve our
measures.

We would continue to put more efforts to reduce unnecessary
water consumption. During the Reporting Period, the total
consumption of water in Vietnam site was approximately 260,000
cubic meters (2020: approximately 318,000 cubic meters),
with a total of approximately 237,000 cubic meters (2020:
approximately 283,000 cubic meters) of sewage discharged into
pipes. The total water consumption and water sewage generated
during the Reporting Period per one pair of shoes sold were
approximately 0.0469 cubic meters and 0.0428 cubic meters
respectively (2020: approximately 0.0482 cubic meters and
0.0428 cubic meters). During the Reporting Period, we complied
with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to the discharge
of sewage in Vietnam and Cambodia, and paid Vietnam
Singapore Industrial Park in Vietnam and Manhattan Industrial
Zone in Cambodia sewage fee to handle the waste water on our
behalf. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances
were noted by the Group.
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Electricity and Energy Usage

In consideration of the potential environmental threats to the
communities, the Group has made steady progress in reducing
its carbon footprints across the business. The Group’s electricity
consumption for the Reporting Period was approximately
12,794,000 kWh (2020: approximately 17,065,000 kWh), with
a total carbon dioxide emission was approximately 8,551,000
kilograms (2020: approximately 11,081,000 kilograms). The total
electricity consumption and carbon dioxide emission generated
during the Reporting Period per one pair of shoes sold were
approximately 2.30925 kWh and 1.54341 kilograms respectively
(2020: approximately 2.5841 kWh and 1.6779 kilograms).
mainly arising from daily consumption by the offices and factories

It is

in Vietham and Cambodia. Moreover, the Group has recruited
third party consulting company to perform energy audit tests at
the Vietnam factory and provide suggestions and comments on
the existing policies for room of improvements in electricity and
energy usage.

The following are the measures that the Group has implemented
to preserve energy and electricity:

° Lighting, appliances, machines and equipment are turned
off when they are not in use to reduce energy consumption;

° Air conditioners and lights are turned off during non-office
hours, including lunch hours, and in idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices
into sleep mode or turn them off when they are not in
use (such as during customer visit and lunch time) during
business hours;
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° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air
conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure
they are operating efficiently;

° Printing machine in the office is set at energy-saving mode
by default, and the sleep mode is automatically turned on,
if not in use for a certain interval in time so as to reduce
unnecessary energy consumption;

° Used printer cartridges are sent to the printing company for
recycling; and

° Investment in technology is made to improve the efficient
use of energy.

Packaging

Our products mainly used materials such as paper, paper boxes,
partition cardboard. In response to environmental protection,
we have tried to minimize wastage of packaging materials to
the greatest extent by reducing the use of new cartons through
reusing and recycling old card boxes. The following table sets
forth the total usage of boxes during the Reporting Period. The
shoe boxes and carton boxes consumed were approximately 900
tonnes and 600 tonnes respectively (2020: approximately 1,100
tonnes and 700 tonnes).
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Generation of Waste

The solid waste generated by the Group mainly arises from
day-to-day operations, including, but not limited to, office-use
paper, office waste and excessive materials generated during
the production process. Total paper waste disposed at landfills
has leading to carbon dioxide emission of approximately 51,000
Due to the

COVID-19, the orders from customers change frequently which

kilograms (2020: approximately 35,000 kilograms).

lead to an increase in paper work on order amendment. In 2021,
our suppliers delivered the raw materials with non-recyclable
paper waste, hence, paper waste had largely increased due to
the packing of raw materials. In order to alleviate the pressure
on landfills and promote environmental friendliness, we have
implemented various measures to encourage recycling of
office supplies and other materials, and eliminating the over-
consumption of unnecessary products; prioritizing reuse and
recycling over disposal.

Both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are generated
during the manufacturing processes. In order to reduce the
production of solid waste, statistics of waste is recorded monthly
in order to keep track of the volume of disposal of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes. Employees are always reminded
to use resources carefully and avoid using excessive materials
during the process of shoe-making. The total hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes generated during the Reporting Period
were approximately 12,200 kilograms and 1,237,000 kilograms
respectively (2020: approximately 7,000 kilograms and 804,000
kilograms). The total hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
generated during the Reporting Period per one pair of shoes
sold were approximately 0.0022 kilograms and 0.2233 kilograms
respectively (2020: approximately 0.0011 kilograms and 0.1469
kilograms). Due to the COVID-19, we emphasize on hygiene in
the process of manufacturing which lead to more hazardous and

non-hazardous wastes generated during the Reporting Period.

RG-S (T ERERRS

EEBERY

AEBESNERBEYIERHEEEESY &
FBERRPRBABE BAEBEEYREEBTRE
qﬂﬁﬁfziaﬁﬂ FHRl e FIEREBENERES
B ES S EREERA51,000F% (CTEZF
£F 1 £935,000F %) e HARCOVID-19Z 15 BEE R
B P B RN B E TERPTIgN -
ATEC 5 BANEERRAEE AU
EEARAY R AL R BEEAR R A R A R B EE T ok
BN ARERHIEENREORRERRE
#FHoRMEBTZERK SELWHARRK
Hihpkl U BBEHEANERR ; RERE
MEEfEERFA KR

WERETEELREERBEEEY ARV E
SEREEY RMASAREREMARTEE
NWERMEERBEEEEMNEES - KMHBE
REESNDLERER SRR ER
BENME RBREHEEENEEREZTESR
MHEE D R4 %12,200F 572 521,237,000 F 57 (=
T TFF 1 497,000F 52 K804,000F 52) c RIRE
e BEH—EHESNNELEEEREETESR
YI4R 2 %#90.0022F 7 %0.2233F 2 (ZZ2ZF
£ 1 £90.0011F 52 %0.1469F 52) ° HFACOVID-19
BE BAEITEEEBRRETHEEBR  EX
RERESHREELEELEEREEEREY

EEEXEMMARAT FIk 2021 49



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIG s (1B RERRS

The Group actively advocates the idea of green and sustainable
working environment, and full compliance with Part D of Article
36 Chapter V of the Vietham Law on Environmental Protection
and Law on Environmental Protection and Natural Resources
Management of Cambodia. We have recruited licensed parties to
handle all wastes generated during the manufacturing process.
During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance
incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation to
waste disposal.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations that have a significant impact
“Law on Environmental

on us, including but not limited to,

Protection and Natural Resources Management” in Cambodia
and “Law on Environmental Protection” in Vietnam. No confirmed
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group

in relation to environmental issues.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board is committed to ensuring the self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a Board with high caliber members,
Board Committees and effective internal audit and good systems
of internal controls. The Board and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Company regularly reviews the corporate governance
procedures and developments of the Company. The corporate
governance duties have been delegated by the Board to the
audit committee of the Company. The primary duties of the audit
committee in relation to corporate governance include developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board, so as
to enhance and to ensure the corporate governance practices
of the Company are in line with the relevant requirements. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Remuneration Committee

FMZEES
(1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent
Non-executive Directors)
(—HITESER
=R BIIENITES)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors
BEEg

(3 Executive Directors,

3 Non-executive Directors and

3 Independent
Non-executive Directors)

(ZRATESF  ZRIFNT
EER=2BIUFNTESR)

Audit Committee
EREEY
(1 Non-executive Director
and 3 Independent
Non-executive Directors)
(—IEHITESER
=RBEIUIFNITES)

Nomination Committee
REZE®
(1 Executive Director,

1 Non-executive Director
and 3 Independent
Non-executive Directors)
(—BHITESE
—ZIERITEER
—EBIUIFHITES)

Internal Audit
A B A%

(by an independent
international
accounting firm)
(817 B PR 5T Em
EFEATHETT)

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible and
effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/her duty
in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing applicable
laws and regulations and act in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. During the year under review and up to the
date of this report, the members of the Board included:

Executive Directors:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares (Chief Executive Officer)
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. In particular, Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, the Chairman, is the mother of Mr.
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, the Chief Executive Officer. Save as disclosed
above and in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”,
there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) among the Directors. Code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer were two separate positions held by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares respectively with clear
distinction in responsibilities.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The records of attendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings and annual general meeting, and relevant committee
members at Board committee meetings held during the year
under review are set out in the following table:
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BeRE S AT
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HFILEE
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Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/ BTEERY
Audit Nomination = Remuneration Annual General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting

BREEE RLESE HWEEE RRBEAE

Name of Directors Board
EElL -
Executive Directors Hi1TEE

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen && % £ 4/4
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu Z1&#8 554 4/4
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares FRZE 5 754 4/4

Non-executive Directors JEHITES

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel &7 3464 4/4
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1R A% 4% 4/4
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.

BXEEL BEHMES ATFHT 4/4

Independent non-executive Directors BiI FHITES

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 3 IE 04 4/4
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven ¥ 154 4/4
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel (R & % £ 4/4

N/ATIEE 0/0 11 11
N/ATIBF N/ATREH N/AREH 11
N/ATIBF N/ATB R N/ARE A 11
N/ARE A 11 N/ATER 11
N/ATIEE N/ATEH N/AREH 11
2/2 11 N/ARE A 11
2/2 11 11 11
2/2 11 11 11
2/2 11 il 11
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Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim financial statements for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of

reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

Non-executive Directors

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the year under review, relevant materials on
legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all Directors,
namely Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Mr.
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip
Brian, Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny,
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel, as
to keep them abreast of any changes to the regulations and
disclosure obligations. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Wong
Hei-chiu, Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel and
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian, also attended relevant training courses
on management, duties and responsibilities of a director and/or
other topics organized by external professional bodies during the
year under review to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since 2000
with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior executives from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising
from, including but not limited to, any proceedings brought
against them during the performance of their duties pursuant
to their respective service agreements entered into with the
Company.
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PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board considers that all meetings should be properly
convened. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the bye-laws of
the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary.
Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of
all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have

access to such minutes.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules, the
Company should establish a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of an
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors
as set out below:

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference to the
factors including salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the remuneration packages of the Directors are fair
and reasonable and has recommended the same for approval by
the Board. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 92 of this report.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2021
is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates
for Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s
bye-laws in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. The policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In determining the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee will consider board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy and review the same as
appropriate.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy, which sets out
the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
Directors, with the objective to ensure the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

1. Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:—

° Reputation for integrity

° Accomplishment and experience

o Qualifications

° Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest

o Independence — in case of nomination or re-
appointment of independent non-executive Directors,
the requirements and guidelines on independence of a
candidate in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

The Nomination Committee should evaluate such
candidate based on the selection criteria mentioned
above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If he or she is considered appropriate, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval for filling a casual
vacancy. For proposing candidates to stand for election
at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall
make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his/
her candidature at any time before the general meeting by
serving a notice in writing to the company secretary of the
Company. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and performance
on the Board.

If an independent non-executive Director is subject to
re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
will also assess and consider whether the independent non-
executive Director will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee consisted of an
executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all
the existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by
the Company. Further, in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws and as resolved by the Nomination Committee, Mr. Wong
Hei-chiu, Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony and Mr. Tam King-ching,
Kenny will retire from office by rotation, and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control systems.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit
Committee consisted of a non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, interim and annual
reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviewed
and approved the external auditor’'s remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommended the Board for re-appointment of
the external auditor.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties, including:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

° To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditor are fair and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review, the
fees payable to the Company’s external auditor for audit services
and non-audit services were HK$1,936,000 and HK$1,498,000,
respectively. The non-audit services relate primarily to tax
compliance and consultancy services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting
period and of their financial performance and cash flows for
that year in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which reflect the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The Directors’ responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
independent auditor with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2021 are set out on pages 99 to 108 of this
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an
adequate and sound enterprise risk management and internal
control system and through the Audit Committee and, if
necessary, an external independent professionals to provide
internal control services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness
of these systems at least annually, covering material controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and strategic risk
control functions. The Board understands that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates
any material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company appointed BT
Corporate Governance Limited (an operating entity of Baker Tilly
Hong Kong) (“BTCGL”), an external independent professionals to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCGL to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings
and recommendations of BTCGL as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
during the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversight risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

During the year ended 31 March 2021,
risks of the Group were identified and classified into strategic

the following principal

risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.
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Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by BTCGL. The Group adopts risk management
policy and procedure (the “Risk Management Policy”) and
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major
risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the
Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major
risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate the
relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on
its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group.
The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensuring that
risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate goals
in an effective manner.
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The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its
needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“‘SFQO”). The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures,
and staff training arrangements, etc.

DIVIDEND POLICY

It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth. The Company expects to maintain a general dividend
policy of declaring and paying approximately 30% to 60%
of the Company’s consolidated net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company in each financial year subject to
the financial performance, business development, working capital
requirements and capital expenditure plan of the Group. The
Company may in addition from time to time consider to declare
special dividends subject to the macroeconomic environment,
funding needs on business development, overall cash position
and any future capital commitments of the Group.
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Declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board, taking into
consideration of, among others, the following factors:

(i) operations and earnings;

(i) business development;

(i) liquidity position;

(iv) capital requirements and surplus;

(v)  general financial conditions;

(vi)  contractual restrictions (if any); and

(viiy any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

Subject to the Companies Act of Bermuda and the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”), the Company may from time to
time declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the members
of the Company but no dividend shall be declared in excess of
the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to
be justified by the profits of the Company. Any declaration and
payment as well as the amount of the dividend will be subject to
the Bye-laws and the Companies Act of Bermuda.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and announcements.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications.
Separate resolutions are required at general meetings on each
distinct issue. Each shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote in his stead.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
NOMINATE A DIRECTOR, MAKE PROPOSALS
AND CONVENE GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder,
who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a director of the Company, the shareholder must
deposit a written notice to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Details for nominating candidates
to stand for election as a director are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

(i) Any one or more shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders may submit a written request to make proposals
or move a resolution at a general meeting; or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting. Such request must be deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Details of the
requirements and procedures for making proposals or moving
a resolution at a general meeting are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office and at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Details
of the requirements and procedures for convening general
meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the
Company website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company by addressing them to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at 17th Floor, Empress Plaza, 17-19 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by email to
kingmkra@netvigator.com for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will
forward:

1. communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the executive Directors of the Company;

2. communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chairman of the
appropriate committee; and

3. communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to the appropriate
management of the Company.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all voting at the Company’s general
meetings shall be conducted by poll. The Company’s bye-laws
have set out the procedures and requirements of voting by poll.
Such voting procedure would be explained by the Chairman at
the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for
all employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company will continue its enduring effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try its
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet with
the continuous changing environment and for the benefit of the
shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
ESEREEEEABERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
R F BO EHEY BHER
Executive Directors
WITES
Huang Hsiu-duan, 64 Executive director and 40  Madam Huang is a co-founder of the Group, and served as

Helen
=g
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Chairman

RTEERER

the Chairman and the Chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company with effect from 1 February 2020. She is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) working group
of the Company and serves as a director for the subsidiaries
of the Company. She is responsible for formulating the overall
business strategies and policy development, and future
development plans for the Group. Madam Huang has more
than 44 years’ experience in the footwear industry. Madam
Huang is the mother of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple and Mr.
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, mother-in-law of Mr. Su Yi-ren and elder
sister of Mr. Huang Chun-hua, Charles. Madam Huang is one
of the directors of King Strike Limited, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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EEREEEEAEERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
4 FE OB THEH BHELCR
Chen Yi-wu, 29 Executive director 5  Mr. Ares Chen joined the Group in 2016 and is also the vice
Ares and Chief Executive Officer president of the Group. Mr. Chen was appointed as the
A== HTESRTHES Chief Operating Officer of the Group with effect from 1 May

2019. Mr. Chen was also appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 February 2020 and a member of the
ESG working group of the Company. He is responsible for
the execution of the Group’s strategic plans and enterprise
development, in charge of the management and overseeing
the Group’s production and customer relations. He holds
a bachelor’s degree of Arts in Economics from Tamkang
University in 2014. After graduation, he continued to further
his studies in Business Psychology at University of Leeds, the
United Kingdom. Mr. Chen is the son of Madam Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and a brother of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple.
Mr. Ares Chen is one of the directors of King Strike Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
BREARRER_S—REMALER T AXEENEAE -
BRELE_F-NELA—BREZEIALXEENEREE
B BEETEZAATHARNRAARRE - HERER
IR MEME B2 2R _A—HBER -RAFHTE
EEXRRANRGCEER AREBIEEAEENGER
BREG BN _E-—MERSHNIAEKESR LB -8
2% RRERNZASEELER ROV ESRLI R RE
SREFRUIZF UARFENENB R -BAELE A
King Strike Limited (AARRESRAEEAEXVHETR
ENTERR) WHP—HES
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Wong Hei-chiu 54 Executive director 13
EEB and Vice Chairman
HTEERBERE
74 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer of the Group,
company secretary and a member of the ESG working group
of the Company. Mr. Wong is responsible for assisting the
chairman to formulate the overall corporate strategy and
policy development, supervision and management of the
Group’s overall financial matters and investor relations.
Mr. Wong obtained an Executive Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Sustainability Directorship from The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and completed the Prince of Wales’
Business Sustainability Programme from the University of
Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership in 2019.
Mr. Wong holds an Executive Master's degree in business
administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a Bachelor's degree in business administration from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising), a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
BRETAAERZERVBEREARBDZABNERR
B HERERLENEANE BLS EEME T EHIEER
TERRERERER REREEAERZERMBEER
REEMG -BRERZE-—NENINEEEEEREN
TEEARANFEEENTHAE R (Executive Diploma in
Corporate Governance and Sustainability Directorship) » i i3
BB ARBOEESEE 2 (University of Cambridge Institute
for Sustainability Leadership) ERE B H T F A HEXHKHE
(Prince of Wales' Business Sustainability Programme) o & 4 4
REERPNAEEMBAR T2 R E BB ARHEERE
BLB -RAREGHI NEEARALTEHMAGER
SR ERBREAN RN EREEREA G
MABEE -BERETAETHAEEEEERER
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BHER

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of corporate finance and financial
management experience in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr.
Wong is an independent non-executive director of Prosperous
Printing Company Limited, whose shares are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-
executive director of Vico International Holdings Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from January 2018 to March 2019. Prior to joining
the Group in 2008, Mr. Wong has worked as the group
financial controller and company secretary in a Hong Kong
listed electronics manufacturing company for over 8 years;
and as the finance director and company secretary in another
Hong Kong listed wholesale and distribution company for over
4 years.
BREEEARTHERANFLEMERUBERAELZ
B ZREBRMPBHRMCGEM LTz EENRIBR AT
ZEBIUFPTES B E—\E-RAE_E-NE=A"&
ARORBRAIR LT ZESERERERAT ZBIF
BIEF - BREN_ZEN\EMALEEF BN —BESE
BLMZEFREAEEERMBRERARNSEAEE ;
TERE—BAEEELTZHERDFHLNETHBESK
REPEBAF -
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g F&® B EBEH
Non-executive Directors
ERITES
Chan Ho-man, 66 Non-executive director 25
Daniel FHITER
BRIEX
Kimmel, Phillip Brian 69 Non-executive director 27
fR% ERTES
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Mr. Chan has been with the Group since 1996. He is
responsible for advising the management on the corporate
strategy and policy development.

Mr. Chan is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan was retired as the
company secretary of Kin Yat Holdings Limited with effect
from 1 September 2020, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has more than 42 years’
accounting and corporate finance experience in Hong Kong.
BEER—ANAENMAFTER BEEHEERERER
ERMEEERHEER

BEEREEEHMASEB RELEBEZEENA
—HERAERGEEBERARZABANE  Z RN BIFR
FRET-RELABERREEEGSH RADNH LR

Mr. Kimmel has been with the Group since 1994. He is
responsible for the Group’s investors and customer relations.
Mr. Kimmel has more than 45 years’ extensive experience in
the footwear industry. He holds a Bachelor’s degree from the
University of Southern California and a Master’s degree from
the University of Washington in China Regional Studies.

AERER-NALEMAXER RIBEEAEEZRE
EREFHGER NASAREXEBRHF BB LR
BEEEEAMNARE LB REREASPEAMRETREL
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g F&® B EBEY BELR
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, 71 Non-executive director 27  Dr. Chow serves as a member of the Nomination Committee

Anthony, SBS, J.P.
BxfEEL
BEMES AT

FHTESF

and the Audit Committee of the Company.
Dr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in Hong Kong and
England and Wales. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong for over 41 years and is currently a senior consultant
and global chairman of the law firm Messrs. Guantao & Chow
Solicitors and Notaries. His principal areas of practice include
corporate and commercial, property law, probate and civil
litigation. Dr. Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting Officer
and an arbitrator of South China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission/Shenzhen Court of International
Arbitration, the deputy chairman of the Council of The Hong
Kong Academy for Performing Arts and the chairman of
Process Review Panel for the Financial Reporting Council. He
was the chairman of the board of stewards of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club from August 2018 to June 2020. Dr. Chow was
conferred Doctor of Social Sciences, honoris causa, by The
Open University of Hong Kong in 2018. He was appointed a
Justice of the Peace in 1998 and awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star medal in 2003.
He is also an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited, Ping An Healthcare and Technology
Company Limited and Beijing North Star Company Limited,
all are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director
of S.F. Holdings Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and Independent Director of OneConnect
Financial Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange.
Dr. Chow was previously a non-executive director of China
City Construction Group Holdings Limited and the president
of The Law Society of Hong Kong and is the former chairman
of the Process Review Panel for the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.
BELAER Tk%é ERERZEEYME
BELHRRES BB R B ED AR LR 5
ERETRERMBANGE RABERMNERM (BH) 25
BEBREKFR B FERESEQR AR EREEE
ERF BEZBERRERD -ARLATEZEAEARE
HERKEEZHEZES %Wﬁ@@ﬁﬁ@ﬁé’éﬁ
BERGREGRIIFEAEBNMBERREFEREZES
FeB-%2— AEAHEI_V_VEAHJﬁ“%*Eg%
BEERIF ARLIN - \FEEBRBREREE
EHERERT -N-ANN\E REZEARTHL IR
DR EREREMES
ﬁﬁ%*%ﬁ%ﬁ@@? TZRRBERKERABRIL
REREERMBRAD (BEAREBHRMIRLHZA
8) ZBUFNTES. ﬁﬁ%% EREHERAR GOF
Hﬁ%x%%tﬁz@?)zﬁiﬁmﬁéiﬁlME%@
ERRERAR (RANESRBM T2 AR 2 BUES.
Eﬁi%&$ﬁﬁL$lk@ﬁ@@?mﬁﬂﬁ§$&*%
EMEER NTASERLORFERZEGFELRE
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4 F BO EHEY
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUEHTES
Tam King-ching, 72 Independent 27
Kenny non-executive director
BRLE BUFRITER
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Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as
a member of the Restructuring and Insolvency Faculty
Executive Committee in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is a past president of The Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Tam also serves
as an independent non-executive director of eight other
listed companies on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely, Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited, CCT
Fortis Holdings Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited, Hong
Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings Limited, BeijingWest
Industries International Limited, West China Cement Limited,
GBA Holdings Limited (formerly known as Greater Bay Area
Investments Group Holdings Limited) and Wisdom Education
International Holdings Company Limited.

ERERERABREZEEZIR RAZBERFMNES
BZHRE BARAETEPEESHM - RADEGHMAGZER
EERMEARABERTELEHAMAEER BELESR
ERAGHM AR ERLREECEEBER2ENTREEZE
BABRBEABHAAGANEGR BSEETEEEMN\E
RERmERLETZ AR BERDA (EE) BRAR &
EREEERAR EXERBRA - EBHAERERA
A REBTHRERAR PEANBKEBRAT GBAE
BERAR ABAEEREEREEERLD) KERYE
BRERERAR) 2BUFHTES.
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4 FE OB THEH BHELCR
Yung Tse-kwong, 71 Independent 16 Mr. Yung serves as the Chairman of the Remuneration
Steven non-executive director Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
AL BiIERTER and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung

was the former Chief Executive Officer of Imagi International
Holdings Limited and was the former Chairman of Clear
Media Limited, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As Managing Partner of Glocal LLC,
Mr. Yung has over 40 years’ management experience from
leading multinational companies in the media, entertainment,
consumer, retail and FinTech industries. Mr. Yung began
his career as a producer with Hong Kong Commercial
Broadcasting Company Limited and has since held various
senior management positions at The Coca-Cola Company in
the United States of America and Asia, served as Regional
Managing Director of AC Nielsen China, Hong Kong, Taiwan
and Korea and as President of Nielsen Media International. He
had been a director of the Cable and Satellite Broadcasting
Association of Asia (CASBAA), and is currently a Director of
the Child Development Matching Fund.

RAEATRAFNEEG TR UNBERZEGRRAZ
BEME HELARFERERBRAR ZAFTHAER
TARERIMERERABZAAEER MEANBIAME
R o fEAGlocal LLCZ BEAB A HEEHEBBIOF
REXBEGCE BEER RE - HE TEREMBEE
BrEBER - ALINBRENEEREBRERAD
ENEMER - BREPEDRCNMETOTL AT
ATHRLESREEB I RAEARIHEEZREEP
“EBBEREE KNielsen Media InternationalZ 4%, o
{2 & T Cable and Satellite Broadcasting Association of Asia

(CASBAAES RARERREHESES-
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Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 49 Independent 10

ES|

80

non-executive director

BIUFATESR
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Ms. Chan serves as a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan is the founder of
Mabel Chan & Co, Certified Public Accountants (Practicing)
and became the deputy managing partner of Grant Thornton
Limited in 2015. Ms. Chan has over 28 years’ experience in
professional accounting field in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan serves
as a member of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal
of HKSAR since April 2017, a member of the Export Credit
Insurance Corporation Advisory Board of HKSAR since July
2017, a member of the Air Transport Licensing Authority
of HKSAR since August 2017, a member of the Trade and
Industry Advisory Board of HKSAR since September 2017,
a member of Hong Kong Business Facilitation Advisory
Committee since July 2020, a member of Hong Kong
Academy of Finance since December 2020, a member of
the Independent Police Complaints Council since January
2021 and a member of the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committees of the ICAC since January 2021. In addition, she
served as a council member of the Association of Women
Accountants HK from January 2006 to March 2017 and the
president of the aforesaid Institute in 2010, a member of the
Council of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
from December 2007 to December 2018 and the president
of the aforesaid Institute from December 2016 to December
2017. She served as the president of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors from December 2009 to December
2010, a member of Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel of
Hong Kong from May 2010 to June 2020, a school board
member of Hong Kong Baptist University from January 2013
to December 2018, a member of the Appeal Panel (Housing)
of Hong Kong from April 2014 to April 2018, and a member
of Small and Medium Enterprises Committee of HKSAR from
January 2015 to January 2021.
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Senior Management

BHREER
Lai Chi-hang, David 54 Group
RERE financial controller

EEMBRE

28

Ms. Chan holds a master degree of business administration
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2000 and a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy
from City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as City
University of Hong Kong) in 1993. Ms. Chan is a Certified
Public Accountant (Practicing) in Hong Kong, a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
council member and an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and a member of CPA Australia.

Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd. and Renrui Human
Resources Technology Holdings Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Bt _EEEREREGEANRASTIHERRL S
WR—ANZFEESERTEIZR RRBATART X
B)BENEET (R8) B FEEH B LATERE
B RERFAREHMAEZEREE - EHAGHAR
EEEEEREE ARBNEENFTENAEEER
BENEHMAEEE.

B L REEEBMNRTROBRAE) ERH KB ER
W) RABAA R ERERAR EROIRBRMERL
W) WEIFRTES.

Mr. David Lai has been with the Group since 1993 and is
a member of the ESG working group of the Company. He
is responsible for the Group’s accounting and financial
management and serves as a director for the subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Lai holds a Master's degree in business
administration from University of Wales. He has more than
32 years’ experience in auditing, financial accounting and
financial management.
REREER-AN=ZEMAFERL AR RBDRE #HE
REAIENERE - RESAERZ S RUHERLHE
AARBNBERIEE - RAELHERRT AR IHEER
T2 AABBRERY MBS RMBEELR-
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4 FE OB THEH BHELR

Huang Chun-hua, 61 Vice General Manager 38  Mr. Charles Huang has been with the Group since 1983.

Charles IR He is currently in charge of the overall factory sourcing and

BEE operations of the Company. Mr. Huang has more than 39
years’ experience in the footwear industry. Mr. Huang is the
brother of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.
BEERER-NANZFENATER BRI EEELAT
MEIRZREREE HAEARBEERBBF LR
BEEAERRLLTZAS-

Yang Mu-lang 60 Vice General Manager 17 Mr. Yang has been with the Group since 2004. He is in charge

BARE Bl of the factory operation in Zhuhai. With effect from 1 January
2021, Mr. Yang has promoted to Vice General Manager and
in charge of the factory production in Vietnam. Mr. Yang has
more than 37 years’ experience in footwear factory.
BERER004FEMALER FEZAEHEHR EE-BZR
T E-B-HE BELEAHARMKELTIZEEHER
BZAESE B HNERABEIEZ LR

Su Yi-ren 35 Assistant General Manager 9 Mr. Su has been with the Group since 2012. He was in charge

Bul ieBE of the quality control management of the Company and lead

82 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

multiple functions in Cambodia in 2015. He has promoted to
Assistant General Manager of a subsidiary of the Group and in
charge of the factory operation in Cambodia in 2021. Mr. Su
has more than 9 years experience in the footwear industry. Mr.
Su is the son-in-law of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.
BAER_Z-_EMAXER RN _Z-LFIEBGE
AREBEERHEET N RERESLERAELI BN
R FEAACEENBRAAZRE TEAERERE
ZEBE BRATANEEARBE R HELAESR
T2 ufEe
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g FE OB THEH BHELCR
Wertz Todd Anthony 52 Vice President, Marketing and 3 Mr. Todd Wertz joined the Group in January 2018. He is
ER Business development responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing, business

TEERREHLEREH

development and in charge of the R&D center in Zhuhai
factory. Mr. Wertz has over 28 years’ experience in the
footwear industry. Prior joining the Group, Mr. Wertz served
as a Regional President (Asia) in K-Swiss International
Manufacturing Limited (“K-Swiss”) from 1998 to 2017. He was
mainly responsible for the establishment of legal entities and
standard operating procedures for quality control, in charge
of the manufacturing and supply chain management within
APAC, including Vietnam, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Thailand,
China and Taiwan; and the management of planning and
operations with OEM factories. Before joining K-Swiss, Mr.
WERTZ served as a sales manager in Trust Leather Company
and as a SMU manager in K-Swiss International from 1992
to 1993 and from 1993 to 1994 respectively. From 1995
to 1998, he served as a Line Planner and Finished Goods
Buyer in Pearl Izumi. In 2017, Mr. WERTZ also established
Lysi Solutions to act as OEM sourcing strategist and
turnaround specialist on helping companies to optimize their
supply chains, quality enhancement, software integration
management, corporate trainings and providing profitability
solutions.

Mr. WERTZ holds a bachelor degree of Arts in International
Relations from the University of Colorado in 1991. He also
studied in Tunghai University for several intensive Mandarin
Chinese language study programs.
XEARER_Z-N\E-BMALEE TEGEXE
BNHE - mARERERERURTIEGERERNM
B -XEERBERITERERBELR KAEMALKE
A R—AANEEZE— T FEEAK-Swiss International
Manufacturing Limited (TK-Swiss 1) BB 48 % (Til) o X4k
TIRABERIERERRAITEEETINRERERR
THEDAMENRERUREEE OFHE DE B
B RE HEREE; MREEEEOEMIBNRE K E
B o WAEMAK-Swissil> DRIR— NN _EE-NN=ER
—ANZEE—NNEEEATust Leather Companyf$E &
RIBRHK-Swiss InternationallISMURE o LR — AN EE
E-NAANERPearl lzumiBEEEGRBIBM AR KBS
TEB—tE EEIEM I TLysi Solutions > T EFOEMEREE
MR EEBLEEZ AR CEBCHMEE RAF
B BERUGEN  CEBIREERABRAFZ
XAER—NN—FEGRBNSAZRARMARNEELS
Lo BITMENRBASERESBE B EESHEMRRE
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Chen Zi-yun, 38
Fiona Apple

BRF=

84

Assistant to Chief Executive 14
Officer
?i’ E& vy Zx-k Ej] EE
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Ms. Fiona Apple Chen has been with the Group since 2007.
She is a member of the ESG working group of the Company
and also serves as a director of the subsidiaries of the
Company. She was previously the Managing Director and was
in charge of the Group’s retailing business. She assists the
Chief Executive Officer for the implementation of corporate
strategies and coordination among different departments
and business units of the Group. She is responsible for the
overall administration and management information systems
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business operation in
Taiwan. She holds a Bachelor's degree from National Taiwan
University in International Business. After graduation, she
studied footwear design at De Montfort University, the United
Kingdom. Ms. Chen is a daughter of Madam Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and a sister of Mr. Chen Yi-wu Ares.
BFZMEEZZELEMALER - RAXAFRR HE
RERIENMENE TEELAATSMBEARES KEAA
BEALE aFxEENSEER RRBMTHAREE
PEEBRLENMEAEREREN L ANBR -BREEX
EENERTHAEREN R AREEAEESENERE
B-REREUGEARZEL2M FERAREHR F£k
EEBEDe Montfort Universityds &R » TIEEER 5 o [F
IMEREFRR T2 X R TAREFLEREE



The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the business, a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2021, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, are provided in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management

Discussion and Analysis”, and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 6 to 71 of this annual

report.

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
complied with applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material
respects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 109 to 246.

Report of the Directors
EFERS

FAREF(EF)ELREEFEREIER
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Report of the Directors
EEgRS

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share and a
special interim dividend of HKO.7 cent per ordinary share was
paid on 25 January 2021. The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share and a
special final dividend of HK1.3 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year to shareholders on the register of members on 3
September 2021.
statements. Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at

Details are set out in note 12 to the financial

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
final and special final dividends will be payable on or about 27
September 2021 in cash in Hong Kong dollars.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on 26 August 2021.
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register

For determining the entitlement

of members of the Company will be closed from 23 August
2021 to 26 August 2021,
period no transfer of shares will be registered.

both days inclusive, during which
In order to be
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 August 2021.

Entitlement to the proposed final and special final
dividends

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final and
special final dividends is 3 September 2021. For determining
the entitlement to the proposed final and special final dividends,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
1 September 2021 to 3 September 2021,

during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

both days inclusive,

In order to qualify for the proposed final and special final
dividends, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31 August 2021.
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION HREEREBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of FEBRBTAEFBEEZXEREERSE
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. This BEZHEEHIIW T o KFE I FFLFZMFHRK
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.  Z—&f4%

Results E—4

Year ended 31 March EE=RA=+—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B “EZ"ZE “Z-—fF “Z-)\E “ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FET FTEx FET FET

CONTINUING OPERATIONS B4 3%
REVENUE % 804,720 1,050,064 1,100,649 1,164,873 1,830,267

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

KRERFBCEEBR 2 BRAER/ (58 83,884 (73,790) 5,956 227,629 163,083
Income tax credit/(expenses) FF 812K %,/ (BIs) (4,100) 20,783 27,978 25,634 (14,631)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REFESEERZENEN,/ (BH) 79,784 (53,007) 33,034 253,263 148,452

DISCONTINUED OPERATION B4 I & #7%
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations
REBRELEER 2 EMEN/ (B51) - - = 2,165 (17,099)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 3 Hl/ (F548) 79,784 (53,007) 33,934 255,428 131,353

Attributable to: 5 & IBFELS :

Equity holders of the Company K AT #HEFH A 88,098 (51,386) 35,593 257,260 132,556
Non-controlling interests JF1% i ## i (8,314) (1,621) (1,659) (1,832) (1,203)

79,784 (63,007) 33,934 255,428 131,353
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Assets and liabilities

BEERERE
As at 31 March =B =+—H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B “EZTE “E-—fF “ET-)\E T—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHEx FTEx FTET FET

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT #)% B E K& & 185,271 208,531 250,454 278,740 338,037
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS ff BB & 70,581 73,356 = = =
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS &} 1 #tf8 &8 - = 85,744 91,048 51,587
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES #% &4 % 547,653 398,711 203,565 197,718 136,484
DEPOSITS # % - - - - 3,916
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES B8 ATHRE 31,457 17,817 38,501 45,930 57,558
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS & F & #1585 1,885 1,924 1,970 858 870
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS At HH &£ & - - = = 530
CURRENT ASSETS HEIB&E 806,558 827,252 920,389 1,116,529 1,152,205
TOTAL ASSETS B & 1,643,405 1527591 1,500,623 1,730,823 1,741,187
CURRENT LIABILITIES "E& & (280,270)  (289,429)  (338,814)  (464,510)  (556,115)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREI & & (107,883) (59,525) (25,156) (25,059) (19,877)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2 & (& (388,153)  (348,954)  (363,970)  (489,569)  (575,992)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FE#2 05 # % (10,697) (19,011) (18,721) (20,380) (19,638)
1,244,555 1,159,626 1,117,932 1,220,874 1,145,557
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor,
are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of the Company’s listed
securities

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled its
2,894,000 shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Directors considered that the share
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company
who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share
repurchases are set out below:

Report of the Directors
EFERS
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FR AABRAEKRERESH ZFBERIEAD
BB B B R AR MY 5t 24 Ko 25 ©

BhEERE

FRABHNXERE-NN—FREEBER
FETBERZRE  BHARTBARLAMEER
ERRETHR

BE -BROsHESQEZ EHESF

FRARABANREEHERZMBRATE (MHR
Ffr)) BEE R st 88 E 2,894,000 J& 17 c EH 84
BROBEHERENRAQABZREZREFHN R
BRI FHBEHIIWMT

Aggregate

Number of consideration

shares Highest price Lowest price (excluding

repurchased per share per share transaction cost)

HmRE

Month/Year £ B BEZRmH#&E BRESE SEREEE FEEXZHE)
HK$ # Tt HK$ &t HK$'000 F& T

January 2021 —_ & - —F—H 690,000 0.84 0.77 557
February 2021 —&_—F_8 1,424,000 0.95 0.83 1,261
March 2021 — & " —F =8 780,000 0.94 0.93 727
Total 425t 2,894,000 2,545
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Further details of these transactions are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

Apart from the above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$516,920,000, of which
HK$10,223,000 has been proposed as a final dividend and
HK$8,860,000 as a special final dividend for the year after the
reporting period. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$90,550,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$365,000 (2020: HK$698,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 92.6% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 42.7%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sss, J.r.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Wong Hei-chiu, Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony and Mr. Tam King-
ching, Kenny will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about, the execution of their duty in their respective offices. The
Company has maintained appropriate directors liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors during the year

ended 31 March 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

The related party transactions as set out in note 28 to the
financial statements constitute connected transactions of the
Company and are exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Apart from those transactions
disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Report of the Directors
EXEgRS

EENRG RHRENZED

B RAMN 288 2B S R BB AR F
ZRABR G RERRET LHRAE14AEFR
HAMPR RMRBURRMEZRE - ERQ
BEREBTLEHRUBAAZTZBARER
TE o BRMBmARME28FTIREE N FR RE
ENEFCHEBRELSATNHEETAWER
BIFfS] L ERAEBEBEEAMBRZRS
ZHHAENT TEERNEEEEEAEx

P2

B

EERRG RIBMRGFRES 2 g
RkE

A TEC—F=RA=t+—H EFERFALTRH

HEEE (ERERBS GRS (BHERBE
1RB11) EXVED) ZRAKRABMRO P HEERAR
AIRZEE S R ERAI B2 RFEZE LM
PR RBEB LT ETAESTETESIZZR
#ESFR (MRETR) AR ITHE AR B R 3ZFR
ZRmKkBaIT

EEEXEMMARAT FIk 2021 93



Report of the Directors
EEgRS

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

TAREBERZER

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FRERMEE B REEEE
Percentage
Directly Through of the
beneficially controlled Company’s
owned corporation Total issued shares
EAR AT
BE B B#1TR7
Name of director EE % BHER ZEFIRE st ZESL
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &% %%+ 500,000 298,467,541 298,967,541 43.87%
(Note 1)
(M$5E1)
Mr. Kimmel Phillip Brian 11 R Rt 4% 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.29%
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel BRS04 5,790,000 - 5,790,000 0.85%
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu Z1&B8% 4% 2,875,000 = 2,875,000 0.42%
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares FRZEEE o 8,585,000 - 8,585,000 1.26%
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBS, J.P. 3,088,000 = 3,088,000 0.45%
BK@IEL menes cTmt

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 8% [E 4.4 510,000 - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven FF L5 4%E 1,900,000 - 1,900,000 0.28%

Note: BT

1. These shares comprised (a) 263,960,041 shares held by King
Strike Limited; and (b) 34,507,500 shares held by Fat Tat Assets
Limited. Fat Tat Assets Limited was wholly owned by Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen. The issued share capital of King Strike Limited
was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen as to approximately
38.04% and her four children (including Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares) in
aggregate as to 61.96%.
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Long positions in share options of the Company:

Report of the Directors
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TABEREZFE

Number of
options directly
beneficially owned

EEEnEEZ
Name of Director EE % B EsE
Executive Directors: #I{TE %5 :
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &5 iR % + 150,000
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares PRZEEE 4 1,550,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu E{E#8 5t 4E 2,000,000
Non-executive Directors: JEH{TEE :
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel PRS2 4 4 1,200,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian ] E {6 4 4 1,350,000
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sss, u.r BK 1B L > wxnss xre+ 690,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: BiIJEHMITESE :
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 2%t 1E %c 4 1,770,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 71 4E 900,000
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel fREE & + 1,590,000

11,200,000

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note
25 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 25 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share award scheme are disclosed in
note 25 to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Trustee purchased
a total number of 2,992,000 shares on the market at a total
consideration of approximately HK$2,240,000. No shares were
awarded under the share award scheme for the year ended 31
March 2021.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme and share award scheme of
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions: wE .
Percentage of
Capacity Number of the Company’s
and nature ordinary issued share
of interest shares held capital
A AF]
B8TRA
Name 4% %18 B RkiEEHEE Frfs S @ik & B zBE7Ak
King Strike Limited (Note 1) (FfzE£1) Beneficially owned 263,960,041 38.73
BaMER
Fat Tat Assets Limited (Note 2) (HffzE2) Beneficially owned 34,507,500 5.06
BaMER
Mr. David Michael Webb (Note 3) (FfzE£3) Beneficially owned/ 47,986,000 7.04
Through control
corporation
St 2=
ABZEEE
Mr. Lee Chi Keung ZE&38 %4 Beneficially owned 35,198,000 5.16
BaMER
Notes: M 5E

1. King Strike Limited was owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
and her four children as to 38.04% and in aggregate 61.96%,
respectively.

2. Fat Tat Assets Limited was wholly owned by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen.

1. King Strike LimitedD B EHHLTHEE
38.04% K EMAFREHER61.96%°

2. Fat Tat Assets LimitedHHEFIHL T2 EHE ©
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3. Mr. David Michael Webb was interested in a total of 47,986,000
shares, comprising 18,000,675 shares held by him as beneficial
owner and 29,985,325 shares held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, the entire share capital of which is owned by Mr. David
Michael Webb based on his form of disclosure notification dated 15
January 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

st
EY:x

To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 109 to 246, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AL R AR S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial staterments section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Provision for inventories

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had net inventories
of HK$160.7 million, which represented 20% and 10%
of the Group’s total current assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of the inventory provision
requires significant management judgement, which
includes judgement about the recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods and the future usage of
raw materials.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7 and 17 to
the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the ageing analysis of the Group’s inventories.
We recalculated the inventory provision based on
management’s estimation and assessed basis,
rationale and consistency of the assumptions applied
in the inventory provision. We assessed obsolescence
provisions by considering the inventory level against
historical inventory turnover days and checked both
past and subsequent sales and usage information on
a sample basis. We also discussed with management
about the potential obsolete inventories.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BALZ R AR S

FAREFTEIE @

RSB EIE

FEEE

A _E_-—F=ZB=+—H E£EEBEEEFEFE
160,700,000 70> D RIEER BEERBEERENR
MEEN20%R10% FEEFENEAEEETERBMEY
ERNE ESEFEERANTWREIE - FENEEM

AT RGBT G R AR B R R A 1B 0 B+ i

MR BRI M BRI FE3 TR 17 o

BANEANARERRENER

BMEYE BEEFEMNRERIMETAS BAER
EEBMHEEREFRENGE T TEERS
HNEE-BRAN-—BMEANBR RHABBEEEEKX
THESGFEEEREETE BT ARERE  WiE
BomEEETZBERES %ﬁ&@%ﬁﬁ KM EE
EEMGEENBEREFEETH®

EEEXEMMARAT FIk 2021 101



Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$547.7 million, representing 65%
and 33% of the Group’s total non-current assets and
total assets, respectively. Management appointed
an external valuer to determine the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties twice during the year. The
valuation of investment properties was highly dependent
on estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to
the rental value, rental growth rate, market yield, market
knowledge and historical transactions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 15 to the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
We considered the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
management. We involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in assessing the valuation
methodology and assumptions and our procedures
included comparing the rent and term periods against
the existing lease agreements and performing market
research on key valuation parameters such as the rental
growth rate, capitalisation rate and market rent of similar
properties.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Tax

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had tax payable of
HK$72.1 million and deferred tax liabilities of HK$102.6
million, which represented 45% of the Group’s total
liabilities in aggregate. The income tax expense
amounted to HK$4.1 million, representing 5% of the
Group’s profit after tax for the year ended 31 March
2021. Management is required to make judgement and
estimates when determining the tax provision as the
Group operates in a number of tax jurisdictions. Due to
the complexity of local and international tax legislation,
judgements have to be made by management on the tax
treatment on transactions in advance of the ultimate tax
determination being certain. Where the amount of tax
payable or recoverable is uncertain, the Group estimates
provision based on management’s judgement of the
probable amount of the liability, or expected amounts
recoverable.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 10 and 23 to
the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved our tax specialists to review the tax
provision of the Group. We assessed management’s
judgements in respect of estimates of tax exposures by
considering the associated fact pattern and the Group’s
correspondence with the relevant tax authorities and
recent developments in the tax jurisdictions which may
have an impact on existing tax exposures.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had property, plant
and equipment (“PPE”) of HK$185.3 million and right-
of-use assets (“ROU”) of HK$70.6 million. During the
year ended 31 March 2021, an impairment provision of
HK$8.4 million for PPE was made.

Management carried out an impairment assessment
on the assets of the Group which had an impairment
indicator. The amount of any impairment loss was the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of
these assets have been determined based on their fair
value less costs of disposal. Management appointed
an external valuer to determine the fair value of these
assets. The valuation of the fair value of PPE and ROU is
highly dependent on estimates and assumptions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7, 13 and 14
to the financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We reviewed the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuer appointed by management. We
assessed the key assumptions used by management
to estimate the fair value based on our knowledge of
the business. We also involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in reviewing the valuation
methodologies applied and key valuation parameters
such as utilisation rate and market rent adopted in
the valuation. We further assessed the calculation of
the impairment loss and the disclosures related to the
assumptions used in impairment assessment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Wan Fung, Jacky.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place,

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
n\rr\ ;‘E ‘%%

Year ended 31 March 2021 BtF — &~ —#F =/ =1+—HIFFZ

2021 2020
B —F —ETEE
Notes izt HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 T8

REVENUE W & 5 804,720 1,050,064
Cost of sales & a4 (766,481) (975,749)
Gross profit E#] 38,239 74,315
Other income and gains, net E W A Sz W & 75 28 5 28,150 23,326

Changes in fair value of investment properties

KREYEZ ATEEH 15 122,863 1,490
Distribution and selling expenses 9388 &5 € B2 (17,150) (22,367)
Administrative expenses 1T B 3% (101,810) (129,774)
Finance costs RAE& i 7 6 (48) (96)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates

FEMEREE A BhaF], (B18) 13,640 (20,684)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRI ATEF), (B548) 7 83,884 (73,790)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FT18# (FIs%) % 10 (4,100) 20,783
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR & F], (518) 79,784 (53,007)

Attributable to: % &IEFEL :

Equity holders of the Company &KATHEHIF A A 88,098 (51,386)
Non-controlling interests FE¥E & #E 5 (8,314) (1,621)
79,784 (53,007)

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

RNBEFRFBEARGERERN (5B) 11
Basic &7

— For profit/(loss) for the year —F R #F " (£518) HK13.05 centsi#fll  HK(7.50 centsiEfll)
Diluted 5%

— For profit/(loss) for the year —FE R E#, (E518) HK13.05 centsi#fll  HK(7.50 centsiE )
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 March 2021 B{F — &~ —&F =/ =1+—HIFFZ

2021 2020
—B_—%F BT EHF
Notes HizE HK$’000 F#&7t  HK$000 FHET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR A& A, (518) 79,784 (63,007)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Hithzmias, )
Other comprehensive income/(expense) that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
HEAEEMSEZBEaRZEMEEKE  BX) !
Exchange differences: FE R Z=%8 :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
HMEBIMRSER R ERE 29,105 (19,550)
Reclassification adjustment for
deregistration of subsidiaries
MEARSHE L 2 EMNDERAE - 1,279
29,105 (18,271)
Other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
RerTaEMrEEEaRk HME2ENE !
Asset revaluation reserve: & E B [ fEH
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings
B RBF WG 13, 14 - 183,727
Deferred tax liabilities on gain on
revaluation of land and buildings
BEIHMRBF WG 2 EIERESER 23 - (33,828)
- 149,899
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
n‘7r\ éﬁl‘ly %

Year ended 31 March 2021 BF — & ——F=H=+—HIFFZE

2021 2020
—E-—F TETBF
Notes Hfi & HK$’000 &7  HK$'000 T8 7T

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FEHEMEEKE 29,105 131,628

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FE2EUWRARRE 108,889 78,621

Attributable to: % & IERE(S :

Equity holders of the Company &AA T EHITA A 117,203 80,242
Non-controlling interests JEIERZ &= (8,314) (1,621)
108,889 78,621
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE M BANRR

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

2021 2020
—B_—%F BT EHF
Notes HizE HK$’000 F#&7t  HK$000 FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEmEh & &=
Property, plant and equipment Y12~ i = K % & 13 185,271 208,531
Right-of-use assets £ & & 14 70,581 73,356
Investment properties & & ¥ % 15 547,653 398,711
Investments in associates BiE NG R E 16 31,457 17,817
Investments in club memberships @ & ££15 5 1,885 1,924
Total non-current assets JE7RB) & A& 42 28 836,847 700,339
CURRENT ASSETS #i#h& &
Inventories ¥ & 17 160,690 166,539
Accounts receivable FEUTERIE 18 191,054 137,407
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
AR e R HEMEWERTE 7,554 9,668
Due from an associate f& U H#E A 57 IE 16 69,073 69,073
Tax recoverable B] I [E] 1718 322 619
Cash and cash equivalents IRE& A ZERIESIER 19 377,865 443,946
Total current assets &) & E4E%E 806,558 827,252
CURRENT LIABILITIES & &
Accounts payable F&1J AR IE 20 130,805 93,966
Accrued liabilities, other payables and contract liabilities
EstafE -EtEURERSNER 21 76,395 80,784
Lease liabilities fHE & 1& 14 930 872
Tax payable FE{J 18 72,140 113,807
Total current liabilities 7 8 & S48 28 280,270 289,429
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
eSO

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F TETBF
Notes Hfi & HK$’000 &7  HK$'000 T8 7T

NET CURRENT ASSETS g & ZEF & 526,288 537,823

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
BEEEERRSEE 1,363,135 1,238,162

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEFEH & &

Lease liabilities TRE & & 14 - 448
Deposits received B W% & 5,246 1,211
Deferred tax liabilities JEIEFR I8 & 1& 23 102,637 57,866
Total non-current liabilities IE &Y & (BE4A2 %8 107,883 59,525
Net assets & EFE 1,255,252 1,178,637

EQUITY #E
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
RABEmFE AEGER

Issued share capital 231787 24 68,154 68,443
Reserves f# & 26 1,176,401 1,091,183
1,244,555 1,159,626
Non-controlling interests JE1%j& #E 2 10,697 19,011
Total equity ## 48 28 1,255,252 1,178,637
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen =& i Wong Hei-chiu =&
Director &% Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

e Em PR

Year ended 31 March 2021 &% _—Z_

.

—F=F=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRFREHE ARG
Shares
held under
Issued Share Capital share Share  Exchange Asset Non-
share  premium redemption award option fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&5
BE#fT R R REEE Bk ER BE JFZRR
[z wEE EEEE  AERG e KBREE SREE  REER At s ol
HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TET TEn TER TERT TER TEn TER TET TEn
At1 April 2019 RZE—hEMA—H 68,875 97,494* 6,639" - 8,541* 20,947* 66,540 848,896 1,117,932 18,721 1,136,653
Loss for the year £RE5 18 = - - - - - - (51,386) (51,386) (1,621) (53,007)
Exchange differences related to
foreign operations
AEMEERERZERESR - - = = = (18,271) - - (18,271) = (18,271)
Changes in fair value of land and buildings
recognised directly in equity
ERREGRIZIHRIET
ZATEED - - - - - - 183727 - 18377 - 183727
Deferred tax liabilities on gain on
revaluation of land and buildings
Bt MRETFz NG RIEREER - - - - - - (33,828) - (33,828) - (33,828)
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FERENG/ (%) 48 - - - - - (18,271) 149,899 (51,386) 80,242 (1,621) 78,621
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder
—LFERRRER - - - - - - - - - 1,911 1,911
Shares purchased under share
award scheme (note 25)
R AR SR Byt BIBE AR AR (MizE25) - - - (7,200) - - - - (7,200) - (7,200)
Shares repurchased (note 24)
BRI (Hz24) (432) (4,688) 432 - - - - (432) (5,120) - (5,120
Special 2019 dividend declared
and paid (note 12)
BERRKAZZE-—NEERIRE
(HizE12) - - - - - - - (13,754)  (13,754) = (13,754)
Special 2020 dividend paid (note 12)
Bz -Z-ZFESFIRE
(FizE12) - - - - - - - (13,649) (13,649) - (13,649)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 25)
DURGEEURN =T 2HE
- - - 1,175 - - - 1,175 - 1,175
Share options lapsed (note 25)
BRUEERE (H15525) - - - - (300) - - 300 - - -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
n‘7r\ *EJIEL%&@J%

Year ended 31 March 2021 BtF — &~ —#F =/ =1+—HIFFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRFREHE ARG
Shares
held under
Issued Share Capital share Share  Exchange Asset Non-
share  premium redemption award option fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&5
BE#fT R R RENEE Bk ER BE JFZRR

Rz hERk BERE ARG HE  RBHE  EMHE  RREH At i EEEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiER TiER FER TEn TiEn TiER TiEn TER TiEn FER TiEn

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020
RZB-BEZ/=4-BR
Z —H 68,443 92,806* 7,0711*  (7,200) * 9,416* 2,676* 216,439  769,975* 1,159,626 19,011 1,178,637

Profit/(loss) for the year E£REFI/ (B#8) - - - - - - - 88,008 88,008 (8,314) 79,784
Exchange differences related to
foreign operations

BBNIEEBEM ERER = = = =

29,105 - - 29,105 - 29,105

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FERENG/ (%) 48 - - - - - 29,105 - 88,098 117,203 (8,314) 108,889

Shares purchased under

share award scheme (note 25)

R DB BB AR (Hi7E25) - - - (2,240) - - - - (2,240)
Shares repurchased (note 24)

BB (D (Ek4) (289) (2,256) 289 - - - - (289) (2,545)
Special 2020 dividend declared

and paid (note 12)

ERRENZ_E_ZEERAR

(Mmz) - - - - - - - (13518  (18518)
Interim 2021 dividend paid (note 12)

B2 ZEZ-FHHKE (HE12) - - - - - - - (10,136) (10,136)
Special 2021 dividend paid (note 12)

BRIz E-—£ERRIRE

(2,240)

(2,545)

(18,518)

(10,136)

(MizE12) - - - - - - - (4,730) (4,730) - (4,730)
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments (note 25)

BRNEREEURN T ZHE

(FiizE25) - - - - 895 - - - 895 - 895
Share options lapsed (note 25)

BRMERRE (fi2s) - - - - (700) - - 700 - - -

At 31 March 2021

RZBZ—-F=A=+-H 68,154 90,550* 7,360* (9,440)* 9,611*  31,781* 216,430  830,100* 1,244,555 10,697 1,255,252
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBRERNGEUBRARZES

HK$1,176,401,000 (2020: HK$1,091,183,000) in the consolidated ##1,176,401,0008B T (ZE -5 F :

statement of financial position. 1,091,183,000%8 7¢) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= AL JLEE
FEREEMER
Year ended 31 March 2021 &2 — & _—F=H=+—HIFFZE

2021 2020
—B_—% “ECTEF
Notes Hf HK$000 F#Jr  HK$000 F#E7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEFFAEZIRERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI BT E A, (B518) 83,884 (73,790)
Adjustments for: A& :H%E :
Finance costs B & a4 6 48 96
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
MR KR T E , 28,805 32,161
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {EREE EHTE 3,301 3,754
Provision for inventories 17 & # 3,718 1,575
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net
LEME -BMERREEEGE (Km) F1H 7 (49) 3,976
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries
SEEHNE AR 2 B8 7 - 1,279
Amortisation of club memberships & Fff & £5 {# £4 7 39 46
Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties
BEREMEZ AT EWT 7,15 (122,863) (1,490)
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment
ME BB RREZBIE 7,13 8,399 7,299
Impairment allowance of accounts receivable
FE WL BR RRORL (B 15 1 7 329 4,947
Interest income ] 2 YA 7 (4,433) (12,561)
Equity-settled share option expense
MiEmEEr BRERAS 7 895 1,175
Share of loss/(profit) of associates
RS A B EBE, (&EF) (13,640) 20,684
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes & £ 8h ~ 5/ 2 (2,438) (2,269)
(14,005) (13,118)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &, (% 10) 2,131 (19,793)
Increase in accounts receivable F& U BE IE 1 0 (53,976) (33,033)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
FENTIBE 2e R EMBWARIERL, (5m) 413 (775)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable
FETBRIELE N, GRl2L) 36,839 (2,425)
Decrease in accrued liabilities, other payables and
contract liabilities
fEsraE - AtMEMRERENaERD (4,389) (25,329)
Increase in deposits received B W% & 1N 4,035 206
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘7|'\

EE%”MEEE

Year ended 31 March 2021 BF — & ——F=H=+—HIFFZE

2021 2020
—B_—% BT EHF
Notes FffzF HK$000 F#Jr  HK$000 F#E7T
Cash used in operations &= Fr AR % (28,952) (94,267)
Interest received B W F] & 6,134 15,208
Interest paid B F) 2 (48) (13)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BiRE T A B - 190
Overseas taxes refunded/(paid) B3R IE (B ) /BINMRIE (579) 1,490
Net cash flows used in operating activities
KETEPMAZIRERE R (23,445) (77,392)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
KRETHAEZRERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
BEVE BREKRZREEB 13, 30(a) (10,280) (17,471)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
HEWE -KBERREEBEMEHRIE 700 1,035
Increase in an amount due from an associate
FE WSt Bgt B RN IB 1 0 - (31,200)
Decrease in tlme deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired
RWEEREIHEHSN =8 2 EMFEZRRLD 72,536 128,727
Net cash flows from investing activities
KEEEEZ T ME P 62,956 81,001
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RMEEBFAEZRERE
Dividends paid 21 & & 12 (28,384) (27,4093)
Repurchase of shares B&[olj& 15 24 (2,545) (5,120)
Shares purchased under share award scheme
RIEA D LB T B BE A BR 1D 25 (2,240) (7,200)
Increase in loan from a non-controlling shareholder
—HIFERRRERIE N - 1,911
Principal portion of lease payments FA & {4~ & & 25 (420) (1,330)
Net cash flows used in financing activities
MEEHFTA RS RE R (33,589) (39,142)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRERREBEEIEM, (&) FEE 5,922 (35,443)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FYzRERERREER 79,034 116,195
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
PERE ) R BT 533 (1,718)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= AL JLEE
FEREEMER
Year ended 31 March 2021 &2 — & _—F=H=+—HIFFZE

Notes MfizE

2021
s
HK$’000 %t

2020
—ETEF
HK$'000 F#E 7T

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FRZBERERREEE

85,489

79,034

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

HWEeERERREBEBERZ DM
Cash and bank balances IR & & $B1T45 6% 19
Time deposits with original maturity of less than

three months when acquired

REESREINHB DR =ER 2 EREMR 19

85,489

78,478

556

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
GeaReRERINZREENRERIREIER

85,489

79,034
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture
and trading of footwear and property investment.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1

RAF5ER R MIEE

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

REIRERER

EEEXEEARRAAANBERESM
MIIZBRRAB - ARATZEMMER
fiiAClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ¢

FER AEBRFREREEEEAUKRY
HEREB-ANBETEMBAT ZHBEHN
IR ER R M 5E33 0

TRaEE
MBERRERBEBEHAMNATRMZE
BYBREER (EBMBREER) - H
BEFMATBVBRSER EEGSER
(TEBEHER)) KEE)  EBLER
M2 EStRAUIREBBRATRA ZIRER
TEHR 3 o B B IR AR TH AR 35 FE SE B 2S04 T A
B R AT EFEBZREYRERIN M
wmRLUBT (DB 25 BREAEHEE
S FRERIERRAERELZ T
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

120

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

RA TR R MY T
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for

122

Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Definition of Material

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework

for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are

described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters
on measurement and reporting financial performance,
new guidance on the derecognition of assets and
liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output.
A business can exist without including all of the
inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 April 2020. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7 address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

124

(d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if () the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (i) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020 with earlier application permitted and shall
be applied retrospectively. The amendment did not
have any material impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?®
Amendments to HKFRS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 27
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20212

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 17 /nsurance Contracts*”

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® ©
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction*

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use®

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1,

HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples

accompanying HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 413
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

126

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
on October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to
refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity
will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the
contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives
when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

132

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms
and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, equipment 10% to 25%

and motor vehicles
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investments in club memberships

The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the club memberships may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for club
memberships with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in club memberships (continued)

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such club memberships are not
amortised. The useful life of a club membership with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would have otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 19 to 38 years
Buildings 3 to 4 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

(b)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of equipment that is considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that
do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment

under the general approach and they are classified within

the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for

accounts receivable which apply the simplified approach as

detailed below.

Stage 1 S Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 S Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date
(out that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, other payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and other payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, other payables, lease liabilities and loans
from non-controlling shareholders.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Shares held under share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related assets, expenses or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipt in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of footwear products

Revenue from the sale of footwear products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the footwear
products.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

W nt BT (2)
At A

FH 2 WA $ BF R L 1) B R FE AR B O e B0 o

FABRMNEF LA ERRTEEMRETHF
BIWA > BREAMEKRAKNE/ITAMGEA
RERNBEA WEA) PrWELE A
BRERBBUIMEEXMBEEREF

OIS

R E WA E B R W ERUIR B ) E e 1L

R HEsY > R B EN S RA R
8 BREERETFEFTE-

RSN

EHERERTEERNEFERERERN

EEN

0

AR %5 A W ER I MR B EA RS (U B & B %)

BR - GHNEERTERRBESHNET

T

(BRI R % = 8875 A8 BA & ah 50 AR 75 RO 122 il #E)

FEEB 2 U o

EEEXEMMARAT FIk 2021

159



Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details of
which are given in note 25 to the financial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Vietnam, Cambodia and Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continueq)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease terms
and constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially
all the significant risks and rewards identical to ownership of
these properties which are leased out and account for the
contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

The estimation of the inventory provision requires significant
management judgement, which includes judgement about
the recoverability of the cost of inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
accounts receivable is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar lease and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources. The valuation of the
investment properties at fair value was highly dependent
on estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to
the rental value, rental growth rate, market yield, market
knowledge and historical transactions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying
amount of investment properties, are given in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details, including the key assumptions used for the
impairment assessment, are given in notes 13 and 14 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of local and
international tax legislation, judgements have to be made
by management on the tax treatment on transactions
in advance of the ultimate tax determination being
certain. Where the amount of tax payable or recoverable
is uncertain, the Group estimates provision based on
management’s judgement of the probable amount of the
liability, or expected amounts recoverable, which may be
materially different from the estimated provision. Further
details are included in note 10 to the financial statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their business activities and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) manufacturing and sale of footwear products; and
(b)  property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that interest income, non-lease related finance
costs and other unallocated income and gains/(losses),
net and unallocated expenses are excluded from the
measurement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EEDEEH @
(continued)
Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets DPHEETBERDEEE AZEEE
are managed on a group basis. TIUEEEEER
Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these nEeErEER EEE RS8R
liabilities are managed on a group basis. TIUEEEEER
The following tables present revenue, results and certain TREJNBEZE . —FR_ZTF=
asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s BE=+—HILEFEXREFRK ﬁ 73 EB B U
operating segments for the years ended 31 March 2021 H EERETEE -BBEMHATZER -
and 2020.
Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
RERHERTER MERE ]
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEZ-fF .S —EZ-F I HE ZEZ-fF S
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAR AT TET FTHET TERT TET
Segment revenue
AEW S
Sales to external customers
HEFIRER 804,720 1,050,064 - - 804,720 1,050,064
Rental income
HEWA - - 17,358 13,506 17,358 13,506
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products

4.

Property investment

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

SENIER @

Consolidated

NERHEHEER MELE =e
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
“E-f "Z-%E BEZ-§ C"E-%xF TEBI-F "E°ZE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAET FTAT FTHET TAET TET
Segment results
DEEE (50,798) (88,441) 137,100 12,446 86,302 (75,995)
Unallocated income and
gains/(loss), net
RAEBWA K
W%/ (6518) 38 2,070 7
Interest income F 8 WA 4,433 12,561
Unallocated expenses % Fc B (8,920) (10,336)
Finance costs (other than interest
on lease liabilities)
MERS AEARZFIERIM 1) (13)
Profit/(loss) before tax
BRIMETER (BB 83,884 (73,790)
Income tax (expenses)/credit
Fiisk %) /% (4,100) 20,783
Profit/(loss) for the year
FERRN,/ (B1) 79,784 (53,007)
Assets and liabilities
BEERAR
Segment assets D E & 715,209 681,557 547,653 398,711 1,262,862 1,080,268
Unallocated assets x D ECE E 380,543 447 323
Total assets EEEE 1,643,405 1,527,591
Segment liabilities A E & & 100,084 112,135 107,653 59,616 207,737 171,751
Unallocated liabilities A2 & f& 180,416 177,203
Total liabilities & E428%8 388,153 348,954
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products

4. BEDPIHEE @

Property investment

Consolidated

NERFEREER MERE )
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—ET-& ZETEE —E--F “ETTE —ET-F .-
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET TART TET FTHET TET
Other segn]ent information
Hitna s &l
Depreciation: 472
Segment 26 28,805 32,161 - - 28,805 32,161
Unallocated % %3t - -
28,805 32,161
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
BRREENE 3,301 3,754 - - 3,301 3,754
Capital expenditure” BB 7* 10,280 15,751 - - 10,280 15,751
Share of (profit)/loss of associates
FERHE R (aF) /B8 (13,640) 20,684 - - (13,640) 20,684
Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment
MERERsBHEEZHE 8,399 7,299 - - 8,399 7,299
Impairment allowance of accounts
receivable
FUERIE R EEE 329 4,947 - - 329 4,947
Fair value gains on revaluation of
investment properties
BEREMEZ ATENRS - - (122,863) (1,490) (122,863) (1,490)
Loss on deregistration of
subsidiaries
SR AR 2 BE - 1,279 - - - 1,279
Provision for inventories 77 5 # & 3,718 1,575 - - 3,718 1,575
Loss/(gain) on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment
HENE BERREEE
2R/ (w38 (49) 3,976 - S (49) 3,976
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * EXABETHAEME BEKREEHAMR-

and equipment.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. SESHEH @
(continued)
Geographical information & &k
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) FEIIREEI =
2021 2020
—E-—#& it ot

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

The United States of America Z=FEX & R EH 170,713 153,893
Europe EUM 254,538 298,577
Asia oz M 273,745 434,200
Others E fth 105,724 163,394

804,720 1,050,064
The revenue information above is based on the it m BRI U PR E A ks o

locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets (b) FETEEE
2021 2020
—E—F TETEE

HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 T8

Hong Kong &% 59,413 93,431
Mainland China H B 79 i 512,235 333,266
Cambodia 5% 73,486 86,487
Vietnam &= 157,972 166,388
Others Hfh 399 1,026

803,505 680,598
The non-current asset information above is based on EHIERSEEERNUBEREA
the locations of the assets and excludes investments B BRFAAPRBEATDNKRER
in associates and club memberships. BgfE-
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174

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue derived from the manufacturing and sale of
footwear products business with over 10% of the total
revenue the Group during the years ended 31 March 2021
and 2020 is as follows:

SENHER @
TEREER

BEZ-—ER-E-TEZF=+—
HIEFER GAERBRDERI0%Z
HNENMHEHBREREFMELEN KRN
T

2021 2020
—E—F —ETEHE

HK$’000 F#57  HK$'000 TH&7T

Customer A B FA 343,542 328,414
Customer B £ 5B 217,296 290,916
Customer C ZFC 83,114 181,080
Customer D Z /D N/A* R 7E > 123,258
643,952 923,668

Less than 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the
corresponding year.

The above amounts include sales to a group of entities

which are known to be under common control with these
customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET

(@) Revenue

AAFS IR R M EE

31 March 2021 — & _—&#=H=+—H

Wz ~ ELAURA Be Ui 22 75 2R

(@ W=
2021 2020
—E-—F TETEE
HK$’000 F#75  HK$'000 TH7T

Revenue from contracts with customers

REFEREHZ W

Sale of goods $H& & &

804,720 1,050,064

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information

All the revenue from contracts with customers
are recognised at a point in time. The revenue
information disaggregated by geographical
market is disclosed in note 4(a) to the financial
statements.

Revenue recognised in the current reporting
period that was included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period:

() D EH

BEREHNNFAEREENE
11 B 5] B R 50 o ¥ iz fh 35 0 4
B9 U ah B R B #S $R R M 54 (a)
o

RS AR SR B W = RE
BREMFAGHER:

2021 2020
—E_—4F —ETEF

HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 T8

4 O

Sale of goods #HE&E &

1,124 899

Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of goods and payment is generally due
within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

(i) BAEE

BHEEREYELRTH T
FAREEBREREEERK30
ESClFNAE
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A TSR R MIEE

31 March 2021 — &~ —#=H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W& -HtARKZ S8 @
NET (continued)

(b) Other income and gains, net (b) EHARKRWKRFEE
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF

HK$’000 &7 HK$'000 T8 7T

Bank interest income $R1TF B U A 4,313 12,268
Interest income from accounts receivable F&UXERIE 2 FI] B Ug A 120 293
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment, net

HEVE - BERREEBEE WG, (518) F8 49 (3,976)
Gross rental income fA & W A 4248 17,358 13,506
Loss on deregistration of sub3|o||ar|es HHB AT Z 1R - (1,279)
Foreign exchange differences, net [E & =48 % & 777 633
Subsidy income* ## A5 W A* 1,223 -
Others Efth 4,310 1,881

28,150 23,326

*

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies * WEBRBIIEWANREREERD

related to this income. REIFo
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. REEMZ
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RMERA2TWT -
2021 2020
—EB_—F S -2

HK$’000 +#757t HK$'000 FE&TT

Interest on bank loans $B{TEH 2 5] 2 1 13
Interest on lease liabilities fH & & 1& Z7F'J B 47 83
48 96
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RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRIRENEF (8518)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after AEBMMBRRATERN, (B518) THEIMR
charging/(crediting): GTA) UTFIER :
2021 2020
—E—F TETEF

HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 T8

Cost of inventories sold &4 17 & A 4 454,070 557,659
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

ME B RBEITE 28,805 32,161
Depreciation of right-of-use assets A& EHTE 3,301 3,754
Provision for inventories* 77 & # #* 3,718 1,575
Lease payment not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Tt AEAEENHENR 759 1,345
Impairment of property, plant and equipment**

IZE R R s R E 8,399 7,299
Impairment allowance of accounts receivable F& Ui BR TR (B B 5 329 4,947
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

HENE BERXBEEEZBR - (KH) F58 (49) 3,976
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries 5% £ [t &B A 5 ~ k518 - 1,279
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EMEl & 1,936 2,048
Employee benefit expense (including directors’

remuneration (note 8)):

EEGHHEX (BEESME (W:E8)):

Wages and salaries T& K& 262,176 353,027
Termination benefits #& IF S {E&EF] 5,387 8,823
Equity-settled share option expense M w45 H > BEIRERE X 895 1,175
Pension scheme contributions 3B Rk 51 2=k 21,298 31,608

289,756 394,633
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31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

178

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

7.

prfgEER (B518) @

2021 2020
—E-—f —EIEE

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

Amortisation of club memberships™* & Ff & £5# &4

Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties
BEBREMEZ ATEWT

Bank interest income $R17F 8 W A

Interest income from accounts receivable F&UXIRIE 2 F] B UK A

Foreign exchange differences, net [E R =48 % E

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance)

arising from rental-earning investment properties

RIEE o REVEMEEZ BREERX (BEEERRE)

39 46
(122,863) (1,490)
(4,313) (12,268)
(120) (293)
(777) (633)
3,121 2,550

Cost of sales includes HK$234,034,000 (2020:
HK$313,206,000) relating to direct staff costs and
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for
each of these types of expenses.

Provision for inventories is included in “Cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

> Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment is
included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation of club memberships is included in

“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (The “Stock Exchange”,
the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

EFME

FR EFWNERREBHARZMAR
AT (THEAZPr) B EHRR (TEHR
A1) ~ BB RBRGIZFE383(1)(@) ~ () ~ (c)A(f)
HER(RE RBEESFEER) RO H280
WEWMT

2021 2020
—E_—F g 2
HK$000 F#sx  HK$'000 FHBiT
Fees #5&

— Independent non-executive directors —#& 17 JEMITES 576 576
— Non-executive directors —3F#1TE = 1,183 1,495
— Executive directors —#I{TE S 480 428
2,239 2,499

Other emoluments: Ethl < :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & ~ 2B R EYF &= 2,064 3,372
Discretionary bonuses € #Z & 274 361
Pension scheme contributions 3B x4 5t I =k 49 70
Equity-settled share option expense M w45 H > BEAR R X 346 523
2,733 4,326
4,972 6,825

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

REFERRBEFER ETEFES
AEERESEZ T  REEHAEE
RBEERTERE E—THBHNME
BRI - ERBHAENBmRER
ZREBREZATEREHBHEE
METNAFEEMHRET ZBERAHF U
FEEMERERL DA
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31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors (a)

8. EEMEw
BUEMITES
EREHFBUENTEEZ RSN

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

S ¢

Allowances
and benefits

Equity-settled
share option

Total

Fees in kind expense remuneration

=494 MiEmgE2
2021 g BYH & ERERX i & 4 28
ZEZ-& HK$'000 F#7r HK$000 F#m HK$000 F#Emx HK$000 FHETT
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 383 [E ¢ 4 192 - 26 218
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 F1 &4 192 - 26 218
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel FREE % + 192 - 26 218
576 - 78 654

Allowances Equity-settled
and benefits share option Total
Fees in kind expense remuneration

LY U#GEEZ
2020 ik BYIA & BRERS B <& 4R 28
—ECTE HK$'000 T HK$'000 FEL HKS000 FHm HK$'000 FET
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny B35 IF 564 192 = 34 226
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 F/1 %% 192 - 34 226
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel REE % 192 - 34 226
576 - 102 678

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2020: Nil).
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A TSR ZR M5

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EXEM=E®

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors b) BITESERIIFEHITES
Salaries,

allowances Pension Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions expense remuneration

e 2Rk Bfhe  UEZEE
ik BNRg Reks SRS ZBRERS e ae
2021 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Z5Z-F% TART TER TAT TER TAT TART

Executive directors: HTEE :
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen*

HARYL T 16 64 - 2 - 82
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares™ RRZEE 4 313 707 101 18 75 1,214
Mr. Mumma, Adin David™ & A% &4 - - - - - -
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu E{E18% 4% 151 1,293 143 18 88 1,693

480 2,064 244 38 163 2,989

Non-executive directors: FH{TES :

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel B4 % 360 - 30 1 53 454
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony Bk B8+ 192 - - - 26 218
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1R {655 % 360 271 - - 26 657
912 271 30 11 105 1,329

1,392 2,335 274 49 268 4,318
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31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EXEM=E®

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors b) BITEERIERTES @)
(continueq)
Salaries,

allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions expense  remuneration

He 2R BfhE  DEREE
ik BNAE NEge HEHE CERERZ il
2020 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE22%% TET TET FEL FAL FEL FAL

Executive directors: HTEE :
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen*

HARYLT 192 942 80 17 = 1,231
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares™ RZEE 4 206 770 86 17 85 1,164
Mr. Mumma, Adin David™* A& &4 - 124 = S 83 207
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu EfE8L 4% 30 1,536 135 18 112 1,831

428 3,372 301 52 280 4433

Non-executive directors: FH{TES :

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel &34 660 - 60 18 67 805
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony Bk B8+ 192 - - - 34 226
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1 &% £ 360 283 - - 40 683
1,212 283 60 18 141 1,714
1,640 3,655 361 70 421 6,147

* Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen ceased to be the chief * BEARLTN _E_ZF_F—H
executive of the Group on 1 February 2020. TEEEREBRTEHEE

** Mr. Mumma, Adin David resigned as an executive ** EXBEER_E—hFERA—H
director on 1 May 2019. BERITES-

***  Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares has been appointed as an ok MRINEEA AN _E—HERA—
executive director on 1 May 2019 and is the chief HESZFARTEFTIN _E_F
executive on 1 February 2020. FZR—HEFETBAES-

There was no arrangement under which a director EEMERFANI LERZHKRE

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during REBRRETAME (CEZF .

the year (2020: Nil). ) o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2020: three) directors of the Company, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020:
two) highest paid employees who are not directors are as
follows:

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

haEEHES

FRLARSHESEERARME CF
TEF IR EF HMEFBENLEX
MeE8  REFEEHGB =% (CTETF W
R)IFEFZESHEEZMEFBUT

2021 2020

—E-—% —EoEE

HK$000 F#57t  HK$'000 T8t

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ 2B R EYIF &= 3,820 3,171
Discretionary bonuses € #£ & 871 807
Equity-settled share option expense MU 45 E ~ BE IS RIS 135 125
4,826 4,103

The remuneration of the remaining three (2020: two)
non-director highest paid employee fell within the band
of HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000, HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000 and HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2020:
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 and HK$3,000,001 to
HK$3,500,000).

During the year and in prior years, share options were
granted to non-director highest paid employees in respect
of his services to the Group, further details of which are
included in the disclosures in note 25 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

Hp=% (CEIEF W) FEFZR
=i EE 245 F500,0018BTE
1,000,000 7T ~ 1,000,001 7 & 1,500,000
77T 51,500,001 75 23,000,000 7T (=
T £ F1,000,0013 75 E 1,500,000
7571 %3,000,00178 7t 23,500,000/ 7T) ©

REARBEFE FEFZRSHESR
MRAAEEREEZRBERBRE &
—PRBRMBRERNE2TRE -ZF
BREZATENRE AR THEDRE
s W BEE  ME IR AFEY
BREZHBAUEN AU LFEEZREH
BEZMNEREIL DA -

EEEXEMMARAT FIk 2021 183



Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FR1SA
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EBNERDIBBEFERARESEREN 2 A5t
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits FEERIREH]1216.56% (ZZEZZHF 1 16.5%)
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits ZHREBE At EBRAERRET 2
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates MENDRAERLEEERFAEER 8%
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the ez BRFREFE-
Group operates.
2021 2020
—F—& —EFF
HK$000 F#Jr  HK$000 F 7T
Current — Hong Kong BNEAFR 1B — & &
Charge for the year A EERIBE H 2,819 33
Current — Elsewhere B HB#R 18 — H fh3th &
Charge for the year A FERIBE H 2,503 4,827
Overprovision in prior years &1+ 4 [ B EE & 5 (41,116) (27,100)
Deferred (note 23) #EIE (Ff5E23) 39,894 1,457
Total tax expenses/(credit) for the year FENFIRIERE L (I ) 4258 4,100 (20,783)
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expenses/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit at
the effective tax rate is as follows:

10.

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

FRiSHR @

RERBRAKRBOMBABMEBER,
BERE 2 EEME S EEANRIRA G
F/ (B18) 2IREX W/ (%) EIRER
MEABZMBR B ZHIRWOT ¢

2021 2020
—E—F TETEE
HK$000 F#x  HK$'000 F T
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI BETEF], (E518) 83,884 (73,790)
Tax at the applicable tax rates ##BRAM Rt E 2 118 32,821 (20,192)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years
BEFERERY ZHFE (41,116) (27,100)
(Loss)/profit attributable to associates
B ARG (B518) aF (2,319) 3,516
Income not subject to tax B BRI UL A (7,339) (2,024)
Expenses not deductible for tax A~ 83177 > BE % 23,875 24,084
Tax losses utilised from previous year #@1F & EFF 8 AR IEE 18 (1,822) =
Tax losses not recognised R FERIR B/ 18 - 933
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s effective rate
RAEEBREREAE 2 MIERS  (E%R) 4,100 (20,783)

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to Nil (2020: Nil) is included in “Share of profit/(loss) of
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rates of 15% to 20% (2020: 15% to 20%),
the Cambodia Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2020: 20%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 17% (2020: 17%), the
Corporate Income Tax rate in Mainland China of 25%
(2020: 25%) and the respective tax holidays granted to the
subsidiaries of the Group in Cambodia (2020: Cambodia).

MENATEEREASR (CEEF | B)
ENGEERRTHE QAT EGEN, (B
18) e

BRAMERBEEBMERRET165% (CT=F
ZZF 116.5%) - HEEERMTIS%RE
20% (C B -TF 1 15%E20%) ~ SHIHED
ERBREK20% (CE-BFE 1 20%) 54
TERMREFI17% (ZTZFEFE 1 17%) &
By ih (b TS MIRE2E% (CBEZTF !
25%) R A EBERRIHRE WEB A FTER
BERPAE (CE_TF | THER) o
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31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

186

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated.

In addition, pursuant to Cambodian withholding tax
regulations, a 14% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group
is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Cambodia in respect of
earnings generated.

At 31 March 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China and
Cambodia. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed profit of Mainland
China and Cambodia subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$30,158,000 (2020: HK$28,018,000) at 31 March 2021.

The Group has estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$80,703,000 (2020: HK$82,525,000) arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
considered not probable that the Group can utilise these
losses in the foreseeable future.
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BIMKR-PAEBRMS BARKDE%
5210% o 7= 5 [ [l 1 28 s ¢ F7 B P9 4t Bl 32
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2RI EMNEBAZEFEEZBEEYN
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11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share (2020:
basic loss per share) amounts is based on the profit for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$88,098,000 (2020: loss of HK$51,386,000),
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
675,014,081 (2020: 685,096,849) in issue during the year,
as adjusted to reflect the number of shares of 10,678,000
(2020: 7,686,000) held under the share award scheme of
the Company.

and

For the year ended 31 March 2021,
been made to the basic earnings per share amount

no adjustment has

presented in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per share amount presented.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, no adjustment had
been made to the basic loss per share amount presented
in respect of the potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year as the impact had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share amount presented.

11.

BT R M T

31 March 2021 — & _—&#=H=+—H

AR DA ARGESRER
/ (&548)

SREARH (CZ2EZZ2F . SRELXE
18) €BNLHIRBEALERITE ABMHF
M= F)88,098,0008 T (ZEZEF | B
$851,386,000/87T) RFANBEITEER
M T 98675,014,08108 (Z T _F4F .

685,096,8490%) 5t & » Il KT L 7 BRIR IR
ARG RE B FAFENRSEE
10,678,0008% (Z= == 4 : 7,686,0008%) °

BE T —F=-—A=+—HLFE H
RARITEZEREZZENM2IINER
EAREN) T8I E#ENE > R
2z BREAEBNESRIFHAE-

BE T ZF-_A=+—HLFE H
RENEETEEHEZEBRHEMMEIN
BREAGESHEARREENE I
BHEME2N2ERELSGEESRIFLEH

o

EEEXEMMARAT FIk 2021 187



Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. BB
2021 2020
—E_—F S o2

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

Dividends paid during the year £ R B k{7 & 8

Special final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2020 — HK2.0 cents per ordinary share
(2020: special final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share)
MEBEE_Z_ZFE-_RA=1+—HUEMBEENFIFRARKE
— SRS ER2.0%E

“ECTF I FEHRBRESKRERER2.08) 13,518 13,754
Interim — HK1.5 cents (2020: Nil) per ordinary share
FHRE-SREERISEBLCEIZE T 10,136 -
Special Interim — HKO.7 cent (2020: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share
BRFHKRE - SRKREBER7EWL (CEIEE 1 2.081W) 4,730 13,649
28,384 27,403

Proposed final and special final dividends 1%k < 8 Kz 45 Bl ZR AR A% 2
Special Final — HK1.3 cents (2020: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share

BRIRIRE —SRZERI.SEBW (CE-ZE : 2.0811) 8,860 13,689
Final - HK1.5 cents (2020: Nil) per ordinary share
RPRE-SRZERIEBL (CTTTE . D) 10,223 -
19,083 13,689
The proposed final and special final dividends for the year AEERKRBREINREREBESEAR
are subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders BIRERNEIBRITZRRBEFAS LHE
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial B HRES - ZE M SRR < BRAERT
statements do not reflect the dividends payable. fEB o

188 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to Financial Statements
BT R M T

31 March 2021 — & _—&#=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. MZE -BER=E

Machinery,

furniture,

equipment,

leasehold

improvements

Land and and motor
buildings vehicles Total

W RE

=E-HEYE

TR IEF KERSE As
31 March 2021 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—EZ—H=H=+—H FHET FHET FHET
Cost: p 7 -

At 1 April 2020 RZZEZZF A —H 252,208 325,238 577,446
Additions & - 10,280 10,280
Disposals & - (3,460) (3,460)
Exchange realignment 4hFE 58 % 4,577 5,205 9,782

At 31 March 2021
W_E-_—&F#=H=+—H 256,785 337,263 594,048

Accumulated depreciation and impairment:

KRt ERAE !
At 1 April 2020 R _E_-_ZFMHB—H 102,360 266,555 368,915
Depreciation provided during the year

FREHRITE 11,374 17,431 28,805
Impairment during the year &R & 1,794 6,605 8,399
Disposals & - (2,809) (2,809)
Exchange realignment 4hF& 55 % 1,619 3,848 5,467

At 31 March 2021
A B —F=HA=+—H 117,147 291,630 408,777

Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 March 2021
A B —F=HA=+—H 139,638 45,633 185,271
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Notes to Financial Statements

RAFS IR AR MY EE

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ME - -BERRE @

(continued)
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
e RE~
HEHEME
T RIEF TREIR RERAE EE
31 March 2020 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
“EIZF=B=+—H FHTT FHTT FAT FHTT
Cost: B :
At 1 April 2019 R Z_E—HEME—H 330,481 11,806 376,543 718,830
Additions RE - 1,063 14,688 15,751
Disposals H%E - - (23,958) (23,953)
Write-off #ifi# S - (30,501) (30,501)
Transfer to investment

properties (note 15)

BARENE (f5515) (96,457) - - (96,457)
Transfer from investment

properties (note 15)

HEKEYME (W5E15) 14,951 - - 14,951
Transfers & 12,869 (12,869) = =
Exchange realignment 9ME 552 (9,636) - (11,539) (21,175)
At 31 March 2020

A ZETRF=/F=+—H 252,208 - 325,238 577,446
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Notes to Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME - -BER®RE®@
(continued)
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and Construction and motor
buildings in progress vehicles Total
M RA
HEHEME
T RIETF TRIR RERAE Bt
31 March 2020 (continued) HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
“EZZ2F=A=+—H &) FHTT FHTT FAT FHT

Accumulated depreciation and impairment:

RETERBE !
At 1 April 2019 RZE—HEMB—H 174,102 - 298,740 472,842
Depreciation provided during the year

FRNEHRITE 12,487 - 19,674 32,161
Impairment during the year £ E & - - 7,299 7,299
Disposals H%E - - (18,942) (18,942)
Write-off #ifi # - - (30,501) (30,501)

Transfer to investment

properties (note 15)

BAKRENE (F5515) (77,635) - - (77,635)
Exchange realignment %M 35 2 (6,594) - (9,715) (16,309)

At 31 March 2020
A CECEF=H=+—H 102,360 - 266,555 368,915

Net book value: BEEE1E -
At 31 March 2020
ATETEF=HF=+—H 149,848 - 58,683 208,531
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

192

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, certain land and
buildings with a carrying amount of HK$18,822,000
were transferred to investment properties at fair value
of HK$196,238,000 based on valuation by Castores
Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers. Accordingly, a gain on revaluation of
HK$177,416,000 was recorded in the asset revaluation
reserve.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

During the year, the Group’s management identified
certain subsidiaries which continued to under-perform
and estimated the recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets by using fair value
less costs of disposal based on valuation performed
by Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers. Based on the estimation
of recoverable amounts, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment were written down by HK$8,399,000
(2020: HK$7,299,000) during the year. No impairment
loss on right-of-use assets was provided as at 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil). As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate
recoverable amounts of these impaired assets amounted
to HK$13,688,000 (2020: HK$17,603,000). The fair value
measurement was categorised within Level 3.
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13.

ME - -BERKZE @

BHE_Z_ZFE-A=+—HILEFE IR
BBEISX5ERGHEMEZE (B8 B8R
NEIHE > BRE{E 218,822,000 Tt A
T #h K% 48 F T54%196,238,00078 70 B A F
EHAREYE -HIL HEGREEER
RSN ER177,416,00058 7T ©

ME BB R EUREREEERE G

FROAEREEERINHETRRESE
RNMBENKBAR  URIEBILIZES
B hEMEE (F8) BRABRETHG
ERAFERHENEAGEENE BE&
REUREREEENA WE &8 - RIE
A EISENGHE TR E -BERRE
B BR EE MURS,399,0008 0 (CE - F 4 ©
7,299,000 7T) N _BE-_—F=H=+—
Bl sz AREERERE (CEIE
F i\ RIE_—F=-/F=+—H %%
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13.

14.

Notes to Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques
used and the key inputs to the valuation of property, plant

13.

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—&#=H=+—H
ME - -BERRE @
ME BB R REURERESERETG

(#)
TREIDE -BERRBUKRERESR

ELEMERZGED ZREEHABE

and equipment and right-of-use assets: ZHE
Significant
Categories Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
EEpl| HER* EXRIBRZBAYE &[E
2021 2020
—E_—f “ETERF
Right-of-use assets Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$24.2 - HK$36.7 -
FRAREE approach (per square metre and HK$204.8 HK$124.8
BABERILE per month) 24.2BTE 36.7THTE
fhEtiEEEE 204.8% 7T 124.88 7T
BERAREAR)
Buildings & Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$24.2 - HK$42.3 -
approach (per square metre and per HK$227.4 HK$285.1
BAERILE month) 24.2BTE 423BTE
fhstiEEEE 227.4% 7T 285.1787T
BERAREAR)

Remaining property, Depreciated replacement

plant and equipment  approach
BTYE -BE TEBRZE
Kk

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental
value (per square metre and per month) and utilisation rate
in isolation would result in a significant increase/(decrease)
in the fair value of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various leasehold land
and building. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 18 to 37 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Lease of building
has a lease term of 4 years. There is a lease contract that
includes an extension options, which are further discussed
below.

Utilisation rate X

14.

70% - 83% 40% - 80%

EMFETEE (BYHRRER) RMEA
EREEBEA (TE) BERYE K
EhRBUKREREEEZ AFEKXREL
/(T e

HE
AEMIEREHEA

AEEMZBERAELIHNEFIERES
HoBIRAMFH—AMNERUREEEI
BIEERA18SETENHEE LM WHIR
BZETHHAENER T B RENR
BFHENHEER4FE —MEEENTE
EEMREER HE— P Emll T o
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

14. LEASES (continuead)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as

14. & »
FERELERA @)
(@) FEAELSE

ERNAEECFRAREERTDERE
B -

follows:
Leasehold
land Building Total
HE L gF a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
FHT FHT FHT
As at 1 April 2019 RZ-_Z—HFMW™AB—H 92,947 2,539 95,486
Depreciation charged during the year

FRITELH (2,861) (893) (3,754)
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)

BAREWE (H5E15) (17,223) - (17,223)
Transfer from investment properties (note 15)

BEREME (fisE15) 566 - 566
Exchange realignment 9F& 55 %2 (1,741) 22 (1,719)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

R_B_BHF=-A=+—AK

“E2ZFPB—H 71,688 1,668 73,356
Depreciation charged during the year

FRITELH (2,414) (887) (3,301)
Exchange realignment 4 F& 58 %2 488 38 526
As at 31 March 2021

RIEZ—F=H=+—H 69,762 819 70,581

During the year ended 31 March 2020, leasehold
land with carrying amounts of HK$17,223,000 were
transferred to investment properties at fair value of
HK$23,534,000 based on valuation by Castores Magi
(Hong Kong) Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers. Accordingly, a gain on revaluation of
HK$6,311,000 was recorded in the asset revaluation
reserve.

No impairment loss on right-of-use assets was
provided as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). Further
details are included in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
A TSR ZR M5

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

14. LEASES (continued) 14. A8 @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEAEAN B
(b) Lease liabilities ) HERRE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FREESERMEREESNT !

movements during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
—E”—4F _EEE

HK$’000 F+#&t  HK$'000 87T

Carrying amount at 1 April RIUE —H Z BRE1E 1,320 2,618
Accretion of interest recognised during the year

FRERERF SILIE 47 83
Payments 7% (467) (1,413)
Exchange realignment 4h & 58 % 30 32
Carrying amount at 31 March R =B =+—HZKREE 930 1,320

Analysed into: D7 -

Current portion ENHEE6 53 930 872
Non-current portion JEENHEZE = 448
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEaBNEEE SR BIRERM

note 31 to the financial statements. FE31IEE o
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

14. LEASES (continued) 14. 88 @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEAEAN B
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c FERAMERBEmPEINEELNT

leases are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—%F —Eo=F

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

Interest on lease liabilities fHE & &F] B 47 83
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (B EE EFERR 3,301 3,754
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases

with remaining lease terms ended on or before 31 March

(included in administrative expenses)

B E R PN =A=+—H

ZHIEmIEHMEEAMZAX G ATTHREX) 752 1,333
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in

administrative expenses)

BEEEEERERR Y GTATTEHS) 7 12
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FA 18 1 F1 F& 58 B9 42 28 4,107 5,182
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14. LEASES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

14. & »

The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEAEAN B
(d) Extension options: (d) BRTEERE:

The Group has a lease contract that includes an
extension option. This option is negotiated by
management to provide flexibility in managing the
leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned with
the Group’s business needs. Set out below are the
undiscounted potential future rental payments relating
to periods following the exercise date of extension
options that are not included in the lease terms:

FEERAOEEREERNEES
MezEEBERNTHEEBERUNE
BEHEEEEHCRRHEELIEREART
BREENEFER - EREINHE
ERMPVEREEENTEEAN
B AR R R BT RREEN
MEFIWMT

2021 ZEZ—F
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total
REFRFER REFEEM et
HK$’000 F#& 7T HK$’000 F#% 7T HK$’000 F & 7T
Extension options expected not to be exercised
TR NEIT R EHR B IE 2,906 6,950 9,856
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

14. LEASES (continued) . & ®
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEAEAN B
(d) Extension options: (continueqd) (d) EHEERE (B
2020 —ETF
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total
R AFREN RAFBEN H5t
HK$'000 T8t  HK$'000 A&7  HK$'000 FETT
Extension options expected not to be exercised
TESTIE N ETT R B HREE 2,828 8,178 11,006
The Group as a lessor FEREAHEA

198

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
consisting of three (2020: three) commercial properties and
four (2020: four) industrial properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$17,358,000 (2020: HK$13,506,000), details of which
are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

AEERESEHELZHHBELREYE
(M3E15) » BFBURE AR E A MY
CHE(CECTE DI pEYERNE

ZEEF I MIE) TEYPE-BER
A—MERBLZNRBCTURBEERDN
WITMRAEHAR AEBRFRAERDN
FAEWA 517,358,000 70 (T T4 .
13,506,000/ 7T) » HEF B8 M B m KM
5E50

A TE T —F=ZA=+—H AEERX
KEBRBEEHMB AT UM A B
HEMRIREWHAERIENT !

2021 2020

—EZ—F —ETEE

HK$000 F#st  HK$'000 F &t

Within one year ;2 —&E R 10,979 6,245
After one year but within two years —F BB M E K 2,100 1,937
After two years but within three years fEBEBR=ZER 1,105 1,937
After three years but within four years = E& B HER - 1,018
14,184 11,137
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15.

Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BT R M T

31 March 2021 — & _—&#=H=+—H

15. IREYE

2021 2020
—F—& “ETEF
HK$'000 F#x  HK$000 FE7T
Fair value at beginning of year X 4] 2 A& 398,711 208,565
Fair value gains on revaluation ZE & A (& W i 122,863 1,490
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 13)
HRBEYE KRB KRB ([:E13) - 196,238
Transfer from right-of-use assets (note 14)
HEAEHAREE (WsE14) - 23,534
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 13)
EREYE -KREKRRB ([:E13) - (14,951)
Transfer to right-of-use assets (note 14)
EREERAEEE (Y5E14) - (566)
Exchange realignment 9 55 %2 26,079 (10,599)
Fair value at 31 March R=H=+—HZA¥E 547,653 398,711

The Group has determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of assets, i.e., commercial and
industrial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of

each property.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2021 based on valuations performed by
Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$547,653,000 (2020:
HK$398,711,000). There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in prior years.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.

FEBDRERBEVEZME HHK
RERERZEREYEDESWEREE BIF
EMERTEDZE) -

R _E - —F=ZA=+—H A&EBx

“’“%%*E%FEE%i%%Ai@%%@
=8 (58 BARLEMETZGEE

%137%547 653, ooo%m(_v_vfﬁ

398,711,000/ 7T) - BEFFEFHRE 2 HE
alz k=)0

BE - AEEEBIIELEMEENEAE
B2 EETIEREE - SN LB ZER
EEJCOETHNH BE - BIEARES
HRFEERE - AEESFMRNHST
HH&EF@WIEE$§L??TETEB%E51{E{EEW¥#
HERRKRGES

EITE AR o

iy a4 3

ZERBEVENDNRELERERTFE=
7 E—TBBF BN M BRRMEE 140
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Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

200

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as
at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are estimated by
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value
measurements are categorised within Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

15. B »
ATFEBLE

RIZE-_—F=ZR=+—Bk=-_Z-ZFF
ZR=+—HR FxEEZREVEZAT
EBENERAEATIREAARMBMLRA
FESEDED/BE =R

FR 5 —RES_RzERESHRAT
BEtE TEBAB=ZMRIABEE=REL
(CEZTF 18-
RATFEBBRE=ZMRADEBZ LA TEFE
Ei

Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
EEME TEME =L

HK$'000 F#&75t HK$000 F#Ex HK$'000 F#& T

Carrying amount at 31 March 2019

A _E-NEFEZRB=+—HZEKAE 47,631 155,934 203,565
Fair value gains/(loss) on revaluation recognised in

profit or loss

KRBT PED 2 BGATERE (8B18) (4,896) 6,386 1,490
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 13)

BEEVE BER®ZMHE (H5E13) 52,015 144,223 196,238
Transfer from right-of-use assets (note 14)

BEECHAEEE (f314) - 23,534 23,534
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 13)

BREVE -BRERRMHE (HE13) - (14,951) (14,951)
Transfer to right-of-use assets (note 14)

BEESEAREE (H:E14) - (566) (566)
Exchange realignment 4 585 (2,487) (8,112) (10,599)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

R _E_EF=-RB=+—HEK

“2ZFMNA—HZREE 92,263 306,448 398,711
Fair value gains/(loss) on revaluation recognised

in profit or loss

RiEGPRIZERATERT (B8 (30,392) 153,255 122,863
Exchange realignment 9 EE F3 %8 2,746 23,333 26,079
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021

R ZE_—F=ZRB=+—HZKEE 64,617 483,036 547,653
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques

Notes to Financial Statements

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

15. REYE »

ATERR (B

UTRBREMEGERERZEEL AR

used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment FTERABIEZBE !
properties:
Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
MR HEHE BEAFAHRHEAME |
2021 2020
- —T-TH
Commercial Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$127 to HK$124 to
properties approach (per square metre and HK$312 HK$361
EEYE WAERIEE per month) 1278 T E 124780 E
st EE 31287t 36187
(BYHRKREA)
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
HSERX
Market yield 15 U 7 =< 2.6% - 4.5% 2.7% — 4%
Industrial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$24 to HK$21 to
TEYE approach (per square metre and HK$119 HK$133
WAERIEE per month) 24BTE 21T E
st EE 119% 7T 1338 7T
(BYHRKREA)
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
HSIERX
Market yield ™ UL & = 8% 8%

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental
value (per square metre and per month) and rental growth
rate in isolation would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/(decrease) in the market yield in

isolation would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in

the fair value of the investment properties.

ERFEEEE (BTYHRRER) KEE
BEEAXRBEBLEA (TH RERKE
MEZATFEREBLA (FTK -EHH
WamEAIREE LA (TR RERRE
MEZ RFEKRE TR (EH) -
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31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

free and repayable on demand.

The particulars of all the Group’s associates are as follows:

RIEEREE-

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. BHEARKRE
2021 2020
T —F —EFF
HK$’000 F#757  HK$'000 FHET
Share of net assets FE15 B EFE 31,457 17,817
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest- EW—EHEASIRBEBAERFE REX

REBEFABRERR ZFBNT :

Percentage of

ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
FEEEG
BHERER
%18 PR B &ITRMHE G-k 3k BOE FEEH
Alliance Investment Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
Development Limited TR BEERRERE REER
Star Praised Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding
gL REBERRES REZER
Kingmaker Il (Vietnam) Registered capital of Vietnam #7 40  Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. US$23,000,000 manufacturing
HMER NEREERD
23,000,000 75
Empress Choice Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding

BBk
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Notes to Financial Statements
A TSR ZR M5

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. BHEATIRE @

Percentage of

ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
FEBEREWG
EREED
%18 FFE B 1ITRMHE o il B 3L B 2 it B BAtt FEEH
Maystar (Vietnam) Footwear ~ Registered capital of Vietnam i 55 40  Property holding
Co., Ltd. US$3,600,000 SEoEYES
HMER
3,600,000% 7T
Ally Power Developments Ltd. Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Trading of footwear
BEERBRAT TR REERRER products
Able Team (China) Ltd. Ordinary shares Hong Kong & # 40  Investment holding
B (RE) BRRAE ZEk REER
Guangzhou Able Team Registered capital of PRC F[H 40  Trading of footwear
Trading Ltd.” US$1,000,000 Products
ENEHEZERAR HMEL HEERES
1,000,000% 7t
Cheer Benefit Trading Ltd. Ordinary shares Hong Kong &7 40  Trading of footwear
BRHEBZERAT el Products
Ally Power Developments Ordinary shares Hong Kong & # 40  Trading of footwear

Limited ZiEAg products
HEELRE
* During the year ended 31 March 2021, Guangzhou Able * HE_Z-—F=-A=+—HILFE &

Team Trading Ltd. was deregistered.

MNEBEZABRATDFH-
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HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. B EATIIRE @

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRITEAEBERERMS WA E KB
information of the Group’s associates that are not ERBElZEHTHFEN
individually material:

2021 2020
—E-—f& BB

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) for the year

BEBMEADFEN BT, (B8 13,640 (20,684)
Share of other comprehensive expense of associates

LS QB M2 EE X - >

Share of total comprehensive income/(expense) of associates
BEHE A 2ENE (k) @58 13,640 (20,684)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investments
in the associates

AEBRBEAR 2 REZRERE 31,457 17,817

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2021 2020
—E_—F S -2

HK$'000 F#Jt  HK$000 FHE T

Raw materials [R#7#} 95,729 90,610
Work in progress 73 5 12,879 13,006
Finished goods %A% & 52,082 62,923

160,690 166,539
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Notes to Financial Statements
A TSR ZR M5

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

18. FEURERIE

2021 2020
—E-—f —=-zs

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FH&7T

Accounts receivable FEWIRTE 196,330 142,354
Impairment 35 & (5,276) (4,947)
191,054 137,407

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly relate to a few
recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment terms
with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are normally
payable within 30 to 90 days of issuance. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by the Group’s senior management. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing, except for a balance
due from a customer of approximately HK$8,877,000
(2020: HK$11,382,000) which bears interest at 0.25%
(2020: 0.25%) for a fixed period of 60 days.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods
delivered, is as follows:

AEEZEVRBFEZR VENLREE
B RABH -BTFREPZNREREE
AREEFX -BEMS  ERNMEARI0
F0H AET o REE BT B A& R R UL
Bz FEWERIE > LUREEE R - AR
NRERAEESREEETCHREZ R
WERIB AR B HE— B A X ZHREY
8,877,000/ 75 (ZZEF4F : 11,382,000
70) ¥0.25/E (ZE B 1 0.25E) 2 BX
B BEEEDRHIAC0H -

LENZMERARERE BURENRS
HARZEREC DI :

2021 2020

—E-—=F —ETEF

HK$’000 F#7t  HK$'000 FET

Within 90 days 90H &y 177,025 134,432
Between 91 and 180 days 91H ZE180H 13,726 2,383
Between 181 and 365 days 181 H Z&365H 303 592
191,054 137,407
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

206

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

18. FEURERIA )
FEUR R TE R A IR RS T BT

2021 2020
—E—F TETEE

HK$’000 &t  HK$'000 T8

At 1 April RIBBE—H 4,947 -
Impairment losses charged during the year (note 7)

FAFHENRERE (W7) 329 4,947
At 31 March =B =+—H 5,276 4,947

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by customer type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18. FEURERIE @
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TR AEBFEREBEEETENER
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a RIENEERRBER !

provision matrix:

Gross Expected

carrying amount credit loss
IREARE FHEE 8RR
HK$’000 F7#& 7T HK$’000 F#& 7t

Individual evaluation of expected credit losses

TEHAE BB BET (G 1,983 1,983
Assessment of expected credit loss by credit risk portfolio
EBEERBAESTHIERESREE 194,347 3,293
196,330 5,276
As at 31 March 2021 RZEZ—H=HB=+—H
Past due
Less than Over
Current 3 months 3 months Total
BPHA LASER BiE3fER &%
Expected credit loss rate T E BB X 1.45% 4.45% 13.43% 1.69%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000)
REMRE (FET) 179,632 14,365 350 194,347
Expected credit losses (HK$'000)
FEHREEBE (TET 2,607 639 47 3,293
As at 31 March 2020 N_E_EF=H=+—H
Past due
i
Less than Over
Current 3 months 3 months Total
BIHA DR3MEA BiE3EA ast
Expected credit loss rate TEERE B 1EX 3.39% 3.77% 3.93% 3.48%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000)
IRE4RE (FET) 112,776 26,878 2,700 142,354
Expected credit losses (HK$'000)
FBHRESEBE (TET 3,828 1,013 106 4,947
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

208

19. REKRFRREIER

2021 2020
—E_—F —FEHE

HK$’000 F+#&t  HK$'000 T8 7T

Cash and bank balances 84 & R1T45 85 85,489 78,478
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three months

REIMHELNR=EA 2 EHRFNR - 556
Time deposits with original maturity of over three months

when acquired

REERREZHABBE=E8 2 EHEFEMR 292,376 364,912
Cash and cash equivalents IR & R £ RIIREEE 377,865 443,946

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$5,600,000 (2020: HK$5,504,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one week and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20. FEIERIE
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of MNzzEHBAREE BNREBERRS
the reporting period, based on the date of goods received, AR Z BREG DATAN T ©
is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-5%

21.

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

Within 90 days 90H & 91,189 87,659
Between 91 and 180 days 91H &E180H 27,940 3,110
Between 181 and 365 days 181 HZE365H 2,024 1,609
Over 365 days 365H L E 9,652 1,588
130,805 93,966
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are EREARE ) B—REMROHRA
normally settled on 90-day terms. AT
ACCRUED LIABILITIES, OTHER 21. BstaE -HtEMRERESL
PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES aE
2021 2020
—E-—4%F —ETEF

Notes BffzE HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 T8 7T

Accrued liabilities and other payables

EstaErEMENIRE (a) 75,480 79,660
Contract liabilities &8 & & (b) 915 1,124
76,395 80,784
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21.

22.

210

ACCRUED LIABILITIES, OTHER 21. EstEE -HMEMIREREL
PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES afEmw@
(continued)
Notes: MIEE -
(a)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing. (a) HMEMKRBARE-
(b)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) FBREGHNEEZEBOT:
31 March 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2019
—E—5F TECEE K
=A=+—H =B=+—H MmBE—H
HK$’000 T#757t HK$'000 T HK$'000 FHET
Short-term advances received from customers
EES=IEENEE RN 915 1,124 899
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to ENEEEEARNEYMWEL Z SHE
deliver goods. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 FoRIZEZ—H> AHNEERLVEEZEAR
was mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances FRMEBHEMER A W Z G
received from customers in relation to the sale of shoes at B o
the end of the year.
BANKING FACILITIES 22. IRITRLE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had available
banking facilities amounting to HK$40,000,000 (2020:
HK$79,000,000), of which Nil (2020: Nil) was utilised. The
banking facilities were secured by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company.
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23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 23. IRERIEAR
Revaluation of
buildings and
investment
properties
BFRIRE
MEEKE
HK$’000 F#& T
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NEFWME—H 24,151
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)
FRRGEBARPRNVELERE (MizE10) 1,457
Deferred tax charged to the asset revaluation reserve during the year
FANEBEEEGHFEFENRNELERIE 33,828
Exchange realignment % B 38 22 (1,570)

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

RIZE_EF=-A=+—HRZZ2_ZFMA—H 57,866
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10)

FRARGEERRPIORIIEERIE (M5E10) 39,894
Exchange realignment 4 B 5 22 4,877
At 31 March 2021 R _&E_—F=H=+—H 102,637
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24. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

24. gz
R

Number of ordinary shares of

212

HK$0.10 each HK$’000
EREE0.108TZ
EERME FTET
2021 2020 2021
T —F —ETEF —E_—F —ECE
Authorised: JETE :
Balance at beginning and end of year
FH) Je F R 4G ER 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: B#TREE
Balance at beginning of year & #)45 &k 684,429,445 688,755,445 68,443 68,875
Repurchased (note (a)) B[] (fizE(a)) (2,894,000) (4,326,000) (289) (432)
Balance at end of year FE#&L 45 8R 681,535,445 684,429,445 68,154 68,443

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(a)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
2,894,000 (2020: 4,326,000) ordinary shares at prices
ranging from HK$0.77 to HK$0.95 (2020: HK$1.16
to HK$1.20) per share at a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,545,000 (2020: HK$5,120,000).
2,894,000 (2020: 4,326,000) repurchased ordinary
shares were cancelled during the year. Details of the
repurchases are disclosed under the section heading
redemption or sale of the Company’s
listed securities” in the Report of the Directors. The
premium of approximately HK$2,256,000 (2020:
HK$4,688,000) paid on the repurchase of these
shares was debited to the share premium account and
an amount of HK$289,000 (2020: HK$432,000) was
transferred from retained profits of the Company to

of “Purchase,

the capital redemption reserve.
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24, BBZ @)
Shares held under share award scheme RIBRE (D IZ B 51 BI PRI B RS
Number of ordinary
shares held HK$’000
IR ERZHE FHET
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EZ—F —Z2TERF T —F —Z2TERF

Balance at beginning of year E 4% & 7,686,000 = 7,200 =

Shares purchased under share

award scheme (note (a))

R 1D LB 5t B PR B A BB (FE5E(a)) 2,992,000 7,686,000 2,240 7,200
Balance at end of year & 45 5% 10,678,000 7,686,000 9,440 7,200
Note: M EE -

(a)  During the year, 2,992,000 (2020: 7,686,000) ordinary shares (@ FRZTRA(ERRWH25) UNTE
were purchased by the Trustee (as defined in note 25) at f80.64BTEQ.75B T (ZEZETF |
prices ranging from HK$0.64 to HK$0.75 per share (2020: FRO.74BTE1.008T) 2EBEEA
from HK$0.74 to HK$1.00 per share) at a total consideration 2,992,0000% (ZZ —Z 4 : 7,686,000%)
of approximately HK$2,240,000 (2020: HK$7,200,000). The EIERG > MR B4 A2,240,0008 7T (ZF
shares have been classified as treasury shares. =4 17,200,000 7T) c ZERHBED

HEAEEFERM

Share options and share awards FERGIE R AR (0 B2 Bh

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the BERAEAACIBEREST B RRMDERETE

share award scheme and the movements of the share MUK ZEst 8B 2 B K iR 10 52 B &

options and share awards under the schemes are included B2 s IB RN I SRR MY EE25

in note 25 to the financial statements.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

214

AWARD SCHEME

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme included the Company’s
directors (including independent non-executive directors),
other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, and any shareholder
of the Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 29 August 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date
and will expire in 2021.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Group may not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting, the maximum number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of grant.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be determined by the board of directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion. This period will expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the
time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, and the
amount payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on
the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

25.

RA TR R MY T

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

R et st 8 R B fn SR 518 ()
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 25. REletEstBI Rk Ae{n iREN 58I @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) FERGHERTEl (@)
The following share options were outstanding under the THBEREAFRBERESTS THERITHE
Share Option Scheme during the year: ZEERRE
Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021  of share options* Exercise period of share options options*™ of options***
RERE
RIZZZE ER RIZT-F BhREz  EHA8Z
2aEHTAER MA-B  EARE  ERTE  WR/EE ZASt-R BREZELEY BREZ{TEER i@ FRARE-

HKS BT HKSE7
pershare B per share S

Directors E%
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, 150,000 - - - 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Helen “ERE-AITCH CE-\E-B-RECRC-ENACTAA
e
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu 200,000 - - - 200,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
L “&-\F-AthH 2 \E-BtNBEZRZ-ENRZHNA
150,000 - - - 150,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“&-\F-AthH “E-75-B-HEZF_-E\EZt)\H
150,000 - - - 150,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“&-\F-AthH “E_%E-B-HECF_-EN\EZH)\H
200,000 - - - 200,000 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-7E-AtNA ZE-nE-BtN\BEZEZ-ENRZHNA
150,000 - - - 150,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-7E-AtNA “E_%E-B-HECF_-EN\EZH)\H
150,000 - - - 150,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-7E-AtNA B -5-B-HE"F_-£\EZt)\H
200,000 - - - 200,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“8°%5-AC1H ZEIRF-ACHHAECRCSE-AAR
150,000 - - - 150,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“8°%5-AC1H ZEI-F-B-HEIZ-EE-BthH
150,000 - - - 150,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“8°%5-AC1H ZEICE-B-HEIZ-EE-BAH
- 200,000 - - 200,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
TECREYCACICAR CECEETCACHCAZCECRETCAC-H
- 150,000 - - 150,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 o 21 December 2030 0.772 077
EIREtIRITIR CECIE-B-RECECEETIACH-R
- 150,000 - - 150,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077

TECREYCACICH CECZH-R-RECRSEETCACH-A
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 25. REfetEstBI Rk Ae{n iRE 58I @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) FERGHERTEl (@)
Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
S ER KIBI-E EkEz  HHAHz
2aEHTAER ME-R  EARL  EAGE  BE/EE ZA=t-B BREZRLRE BREZITHEHR i@ FRARE™

HKS BT HKS BT
per share £} per share &%

Directors (continued)
B2 (%
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares 120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
BIERE Z2-\f-AtnH “E-\5-BtAHEZE_-£N\AZt)\A
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
Z2-\f-AtnH “E-nf-B-REE--£\BZTNA
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 2.12
Z2-\f-AtnH "B EF-R-REEC-£)\BZTN\A
160,000 - - - 160,000 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1620 162
Z2-nf-A+/\H “E-fE-BTN\HEZE_-£NAZH)\A
120,000 - - - 120,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1620 162
Z2-nf-A+/\H "B EF-R-REEC-£)\BZTN\A
120,000 - - - 120,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1620 162
Z2-nf-A+/\H “E--F-B-REE_-£\BZT/\A
160,000 - - - 160,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
Z22ZF-AZ1H ZEI25-BC+HECSCSE-BAA
120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
Z22ZF-AZ1H B -£-A-AZ-E=5E-AtRA
120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
Z22ZF-AZ1H TB-"E-A-AZ-E=5E-AAA
- 180,000 - - 180,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
TETERTIACIA CECERETCACTIRECECERIACL-H
- 135,000 - - 135,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZETERTIACHIR ZECCF-B-HECESEETIACT-H
- 135,000 - - 135,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77

TECEE{CACICA CECZE-RA-RECE-EETCACT-R
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

25. FBRtESTEI R AR SERNSHE @

fBRRtEstE (@)

Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
S ER KIBI-E EkEz  HHAHz
2aEHTAER ME-R  EARL  EAGE  BE/EE ZA=t-B BREZRLRE BREZITHEHR i@ FRARE™
HKS BT HKSE T
per share £} per share &%
Directors (continued)
N
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
REXRE “2-\E-AthB  ZE-N\E-R+hBEZBRZ-£)\AtN\H
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“E2-\f-AthH  ZE-NE-B-HECZ_-£/\AZTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
B\ -AthH  ZEIEE-B-HECZ_-H/\AZTAA
120,000 - - - 120,000 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AE-AtNE ZE-AE-RTN\BEIBRZ-£)\ACHNH
90,000 - - - 90,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AE-AtNE  ZEIEBE-B-HECEC-E/\AZTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
ZE-AE-AtNE  IEI-5-B-HEIZC-E\BZTAR
120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-ACHH ZECEE-BITRECRSEE-ATAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-AC+H ZE-5-B-AZCECEE-AAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-AC+H ZECE-B-AZCECEE-AAA
= 120,000 = - 120,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
TETERTIACIA CECERETCACTIRECECERIACL-H
- 90,000 - - 90,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZETERTIACHIR ZECCF-B-HECESEETIACT-H
- 90,000 - - 90,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
CETERTIACAIR ZECZF-B-HECESERETIRCT-H
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

25. FERtESTEI R AR SERNSHE @

fERRtEstE ()

Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
S ER KIBI-E EkEz  HHAHz
2aEHTAER ME-R  EARL  EAGE  BE/EE ZA=t-B BREZRLRE BREZITHEHR i@ FRARE™
HKS BT HKSE T
per share £} per share &%
Directors (continued)
N
Mr. Kimmel, Philip Brian 100,000 - - - 100,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
il “E-mE-AtRH 0 ZE-E-B-HECEC-E/\AZTAA
200,000 - - - 200,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z3-RE-AZHIH ZE-RE-BITIREIZC-ENACTNA
150,000 - - - 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE3-nE-AItIR IE-tE-B-HEIZC-EN\BZTAR
150,000 - - - 150,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“E2-7¥-AZ+ZR  ZE-\E-B-HECZC-£/\AZTAA
120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“2-\f-AthB  ZE-NE-R+hBEIBRZ-£)\A+N\H
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“E2-\f-AthH  ZE-NE-B-HECZ_-£/\AZTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
B\ -AthH  ZEIEE-B-HECZ_-H/\AZTAA
60,000 - - - 60,000 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-A\E-AtNE ZE-AE-RTN\BEIBRZ-£)\AHN\H
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AE-AtNE  ZEIEBE-B-HECEC-E/\AZTAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
ZE-AE-AtNE  IEI-5-B-HEIZC-E\BZTAR
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-ACHH ZECEBE-BITRECRSEE-ATAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-ACH ZE-5-B-AZCECEE-AAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-AC+H ZECE-B-AZCECEE-AAA
= 60,000 = - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
TETERTIACAIR CECERETCACTIAECECERIACL-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
CETERTIACIR ZECCF-B-HECESEETIACT-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
CETERTIACAIR ZECZF-B-HECESERETIRCT-H
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

25.

fBRRtEstE (@)

R gt st 8 K B fn SR 51 8 (@

Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
S ER KIBI-E EkEz  HHAHz
2aEHTAER ME-R  EARL  EAGE  BE/EE ZA=t-B BREZRLRE BREZITHEHR i@ FRARE™
HKS BT HKSE T
per share £} per share &%
Directors (continued)
N
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, 90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Anthony, SBS, J.P. ZE-7E-BIHIH ZE-\E-B-HECEC-EM\AZTNH
BxEEL 60,000 - - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
RENER ATHT “2-\E-AthB  ZE-N\E-R+hBEZBRZ-£)\AtN\H
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“E2-\f-AthH  ZE-NE-B-HECZ_-£/\AZTAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
B\ -AthH  ZEIEE-B-HECZ_-H/\AZTAA
60,000 - - - 60,000 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AE-AtNE ZE-AE-RTN\BEIBRZ-£)\ACHNH
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AE-AtNE  ZEIEBE-B-HECEC-E/\AZTAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
ZE-AE-AtNE  IEI-5-B-HEIZC-E\BZTAR
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-ACHH ZECEE-BITRECRSEE-ATAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-AC+H ZE-5-B-AZCECEE-AAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-AC+H ZECE-B-AZCECEE-AAA
= 60,000 = - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
TETERTIACIA CECERETCACTIRECECERIACL-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
CETERTIACIR ZECCF-B-HECESEETIACT-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
CETERTIACAIR ZECZF-B-HECESERETIRCT-H

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

31 March 2021 —ZE-—#=F=+—H

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

25. FERtESTEI R AR SERNSHE @

MRSt R ()

Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021 of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
S ER KIBI-E EkEz  HHAHz
2aEHTAER ME-R  EARL  EAGE  BE/EE ZA=t-B BREZRLRE BREZITHEHR i@ FRARE™
HKS BT HKSE T
per share £} per share &%
Directors (continued)
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 90,000 S S S 90,000 13 January 2012 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 0972 09
BRERE “E8-2f-At=H  CE-ME-B-HECEC-EM\AZTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 119 119
“2--F-A+1A “E-ME-B-AEZE-ENEZ+)\H
90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
“%-Z%-A+3H ZE-RF-A-BECERC-E)\ACTAH
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-ME-AtRH CE-ME-RTABECRC-£N\ACHNH
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“Z-mE-A+5H ZE2-1F-A-REZZC-E)\RZTNR
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
“E-mE-A+5H ZE-RE-B-HEIZT-ENBZTNH
120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.2
Z2-1f-AtNH “E-hE-RTHNAEZE--ENAZHNR
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
Z5-15-BtNE 2 E-A-BEZZC-E)\BZTNR
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“E-1%-AthH “E—t5-B-HE_F_-E\EZt)\H
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“E8-7"¥-AZ+CR  ZE-E-BCCHECEC-HN\AZTAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 10 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z-7"E-AZ+IH tE-F-BEZ2-F\BZ+N\A
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z2-E-BZ+ZH  ZE-\E-B-RECEC-EM\AZTNH
60,000 - - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
Z3-\f-AthH 3 \E-AtNBEZEZ-ENAZHNA
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
ZZ-)\f-AtNH ZE2-nF-A-REZZC-E\AZTNR
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
“E-\F-AthH 22RF-F-HEEC-EN\BZTNA
60,000 - - - 60,000 18 January 2019 18 January 201910 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
Z2-nE-At)\H ZE-NE-BTN\BEZZZ-ENAZH)\A
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
ZZ-nf-A+/\RH ZE2TZF-A-REZZC-EN\AZTNR
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AF-AtNE ZEI-F-B-HEIEC-E/N\BZTAH
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
“ECRE-ACHH 0 CECFE-BITRECRSRE-ATAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEF-AC4H Z3C-£-B-HECZ-ZE-AiAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
ZEEF-PBI1H CECCF-F-BECRCBRE-BIAH
- 60,000 - - 60,000 22 December 2020 2 December 202010 21 December 2030 0772 077
CRORETIACHCR CECEETCACCAECECEELIACT-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
ZBCREPCACHCR ZECCF-B-HECECREIZACL-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZECRFTIACTIR ZECSE-B-HECRSEETIACL-H
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

25.

R gt st 8 K B fn SR 51 8 (@

fBRRtEstE (@)

Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
S ER KIBI-E EkEz  HHAHz
2aEHTAER ME-R  EARL  EAGE  BE/EE ZA=t-B BREZRLRE BREZITHEHR i@ FRARE™
HKS BT HKSE T
per share £} per share &%
Directors (continueq)
N
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, 120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Steven Z3-RE-AZHIH ZE-RE-BITIREIZC-ENACTNA
ATI%E 90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
ZE3-nE-AItIR IE-tE-B-HEIZC-EN\BZTAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
“E2-7¥-AZ+ZR  ZE-\E-B-HECZC-£/\AZTAA
60,000 - - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“2-\E-AthB  ZE-N\E-R+hBEZBRZ-£)\AtN\H
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
“E2-\f-AthH  ZE-NE-B-HECZ_-£/\AZTAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2170 212
B\ -AthH  ZEIEE-B-HECZ_-H/\AZTAA
60,000 - - - 60,000 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AE-AtNE ZE-AE-RTN\BEIBRZ-£)\ACHNH
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AE-AtNE  ZEIEBE-B-HECEC-E/\AZTAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
ZE-AE-AtNE  IEI-5-B-HEIZC-E\BZTAR
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-ACHH ZECEBE-BITRECRSEE-ATAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-AC+H ZE-5-B-AZCECEE-AAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ECEE-AC+H ZECE-B-AZCECEE-AAA
= 60,000 = - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
TETERTIACAIR CECERETCACTIAECECERIACL-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
CETERTIACIR ZECCF-B-HECESEETIACT-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
CETERTIACAIR ZECZF-B-HECESERETIRCT-H
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

25. FERtESTEI R AR SERNSHE @

MRSt R ()

Number of share options
BRE%R
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021 of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
S ER KIBI-E EkEz  HHAHz
2aEHTAER ME-R  EARL  EAGE  BE/EE ZA=t-B BREZRLRE BREZITHEHR i@ FRARE™
HKS BT HKSE T
per share £} per share &%
Directors (continued)
£y
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 90,000 - - - 90,000 15 January 2013 1 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.196 119
REELL Z5-Z§-AtiB Z5-15-B-HEZEZ-5\AZt)\H
120,000 - - - 120,000 16 January 2014 16 January 2014 to 28 August 2021 1.580 1.57
ZE-RE-F15E “E-ME-B+ARECS_-ENAZH)\A
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2015 1o 28 August 2021 1.580 157
Z5-mE-F+iH “E-1E-R-RE-E--ENBZHNA
90,000 - - - 90,000 16 January 2014 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-AtRH 0 ZE-E-B-HECEC-E/0\AZTAA
120,000 - - - 120,000 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZZ2-1f-AtNH “2-nf-AtABREZE-ENAZHNA
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
ZE-n%E-BthA Z5-75-B-HEZZZ-E\AZt)\H
90,000 - - - 90,000 19 January 2015 1 January 2017 to 28 August 2021 1.250 1.25
“EZ-1£-A+AH ZE-tE-B-BEIZC-ENBZTNR
120,000 - - - 120,000 22 January 2016 22 January 2016 to 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z2-E-AZ+IH  ZE-"E-AZTIHEZBRC-£/\ACHNR
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2017 1o 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z3-RE-AIHIH ZE-tE-A-BECEC-ENAITAA
90,000 - - - 90,000 22 January 2016 1 January 2018 0 28 August 2021 1.908 1.90
Z3-RE-AZtCIH Z-\F-A-HEZBRZ-ENAZ+NH
60,000 - - - 60,000 19 January 2018 19 January 2018 10 28 August 2021 2170 212
“E2-\§-A+AH - \F-B+AREZER_-£)\A_TAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 2170 2.12
“Z-)\f-AtNH ZE-NE-B-BEZEZ-ENEZ+N\H
45,000 - - - 45,000 19 January 2018 1 January 2020 to 28 August 2021 2.170 212
“EZ-)\E-A+NH ZETEF-R-REEC-E)\AZTNA
60,000 - - - 60,000 18 January 2019 18 January 2019 to 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-7E-AtNA E-NE-BTNBEZRC-E)\AZTAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2020 0 28 August 2021 1.620 1.62
“E-AF-AtNE ZEIEE-B-HECEC-E/N\AZTAR
45,000 - - - 45,000 18 January 2019 1 January 2021 to 28 August 2021 1.620 162
ZE-A\E-AtNE  IEI-5-B-HEIZC-EN\BZTAR
60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
ZECERF-AC4H ZECEE-BITRECR-ZE-AIAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
“ECEE-AT4H 0 EI-£-B-AECECEE-BAA
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
ZEITE-BI+E TEIZE-B-HECZSTE-EHAR
- 60,000 - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
TECBE{ZACICA CECEETCACTCHECESEEICACT-A
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
CEIEETIAITIR ZECIE-B-HECESEFTIACT-H
- 45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CETERTIACHIR ZECZF-B-HECESEETIACT-H
9,200,000 2,000,000 - - 11,200,000
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AWARD SCHEME (continued)

25. FBRtESTEI R AR SERNSHE @

Share option scheme (continued) RS E (&)
Numhegi oﬂf{z\ ?épgxrea options
Price of the
Forfeited/ Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  cancelled At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2021 of share options* Exercise period of share options options™*  of o%ions”‘
) g . RoB--£ ~ BREz  Rups
2aEHLIE BA-B  ERRL  EAGE ﬁ%/gg ZA=+-H BREZELAH BREZITEER H%Eﬁ“ ¢§&§F“
BT
pershare S per share S
Other employees
AfifeR
In aggregate A2 40,000 - - - 40,000 13 January 2012 13January 201210 28 AU%JSt 202 0972 0.9
“E-"E-A+=( —E-F+=RE_T_-E)\AZNH
30,000 - - - 30,000 13 January 2012 1January20131028éuzgusti202 A=A 0972 0.95
B-_E-Rt= £°% -
30,000 - - - 30,000 13January2012 1January20141028Auzgust202 0972 09
_E- = mE-F—-A2Z2_—F\AZ+/\A
112,000 - - - 112,000 15Januar\L20 5Januar[20 8 10 28 August 2021 119 119
e 3 F--F-A1RAE 2 -F\A_+AR
110,000 - - - 110,000 15Januar\L203 WJanuawa()%AtoQSAquust%O?W B4R 119 119
77 = e
268,000 - - - 288,000 15 January 2013 1Januaw2015t028Aq§u3t2021 119 119
- -1 R_E-£\BZ+N\A
15,000 - - - 15,000 151a%uam2013 . 1Januaw20E6toH28Aq‘gusti202 EAA=LAR 1.19%6 119
300,000 - - (160,000 140,000 16 January 2014 ) 6Janua 204to 28Aug“yst2021 1.580 157
“E-mE-A+53A HEZ2--E\BZ+N\H
205,000 - - (120,000) 105,000 16 January 2014 1January2015to 28Auzgust 2021 1.580 157
“Z-mE-A+5H Z-1F-A-HE"Z_-E\AZ+\H
205,000 - - (120,000) 105,000 16Ja%ua 201 " Han%aryQO GtOZBAuLgu_stTZOQ A=A 1.580 157
X B
280,000 - - (160,000) 120,000 19Januar%20 19Janua%205to28Au¥51202 Py 1.250 25
210,000 - - (120,000) 90,000 19Januar%20 Hanuary?()iﬁto?SAugustZS?T B 1.250 1.25
Z3-E-B-HEIZ_-ENBZTNR
270,000 - - 120,000 150,000 19JanuarzﬁE 54 HanuaryfzoE 7t028Auzgusti202 EAA=LAR 1.250 1.25
1_7_
644,000 - - (160,000 484,000 22 Jaquary 2016 22 Jaquary 201 6to 28 Au%ust 021 1.908 1.90
ZE-RE-BItIE ZF-RE-R -ENEZTN\H
558,000 - - (120,000) 438,000 22 January 2016 HanuaryQOHoZBAuzgus 202 B 1.908 1.90
“E-RE-AZ1CH tE-A-REZ_-£\AZ+/\H
948,000 - - (120,000) 828,000 22January2016 o HanuaryQOBtoZBAu_gust2OQ 1.908 90
- gy NF—E "2 -FN\AZ+NH
620,000 - - (80,000) 540,000 19 January 2018 19January 201 8to 28Au¥st 2021 2.170 212
“E2-\5-A+AH 3-\E-H 2_-E\AZ+N\H
465,000 - - (60,000) 405,000 19 January 2018 1Januaw2019t028Aq§ust2021 2170 212
“E-\E-A+hH “NE-A—-HEZE2_-£)\AZ+/\RH
465,000 - - (60,000) 405,000 19 January 2018 1Januaw2020to28Aq§ust202 2170 212
“Z-\E-BthH RE-A-HEZF_-F)\BZHN\H
1,300,000 - - (200,000) 1,100,000 18 January 2019 18January 201910 28 Aug“yst 2001 1,620 1,62
“E-NE-At/\A -NF-A+NHEZZ_-EN\BZF/\H
975,000 - - (150,000) 825,000 nga%uaryzom g HanuaryQOZOI%ZBAuzgustiQOQ 4-tAd 1,620 162
975,000 - - (150,000) 825,000 WBEa;uary 2019 g Hanuary Q% t% 28 Auhgust;ZOQ ff)\ﬂ_+\E 1.620 62
1,300,000 - - (200,0000 1,100,000 20]a§uar§2020 20Januar§2020to 9January2030 0.958 0.94
ZEIRE-AC E—A_THE_E-FE-R{AR
975,000 - - (150,000 825,000 QOganugrgO?O B Hanuary?()? toWQJanuar%ZOSO 0.958 0.94
g F_-F-F-HE 2F-F+hA
975,000 - - (150,000 825,000 20Januar&2020 Hanuary2022to 9Januar%2030 0.958 0.94
z - “E-B-HEZ -B+h8
- 1,120,000 = - 1120000 22 De%emberZOZQﬂi_FE 2 De%embeﬁzg £2+D§cember2030 ret-A-1-g 0.172 077
- 80000 s - 80000 22De%ember2029Hi+iH Jgn%aggo%t%m [E)ecemberZ_OiJ;H s 0772 077
- 840,000 - - 840,000 22 DecemberQOZQ -4 Januﬁary?(]és{%m December203¢0+_ﬂ g 0772 077
e 7 —<-=F"h" i—v <
12,335,000 2,800,000 - (2,400,000 12,735,000
21,535,000 4,800,000 - (2,400,000 23,935,000
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 25. BBRGtE I R Ag(n BN st 2l (@)

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at
the date of grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately
prior to the date of grant of the options.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no share
options were exercised.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had
190,000, 795,000, 1,050,000, 960,000, 3,390,000,
3,350,000, 4,700,000, 4,700,000 and 4,800,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
with exercise prices of HK$0.972, HK$1.196, HK$1.580,
HK$1.250, HK$1.908, HK$2.170, HK$1.620, HK$0.958
and HK$0.772 per share, respectively, which altogether
represented approximately 3.5% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 23,935,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
issued share capital of approximately HK$2,394,000 and
share premium of approximately HK$31,161,000 (before
issue expenses).
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BT 1,196 75 1.5808 75 1.250% 75
1.90878752.17087c~ 1.6208 75~ 0.958
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued)

As at the date of this report, the number of options available
for granting by the Company and the number of share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme were
approximately 71,550,000 and 23,935,000, respectively,
representing approximately 10.5% and 3.5% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report
respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 4,800,000 (2020:
5,200,000) share options were granted and their fair
value was estimated at approximately HK$794,000 (2020:
HK$908,000). The Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$895,000 (2020: HK$1,175,000) during
the year. In addition, 2,400,000 (2020: 1,400,000) share
options lapsed and the Group’s share option reserve of
HK$700,000 (2020: HK$300,000) was transferred to the
retained profits during the year.

The fair value of share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2021 was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the respective model used
for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Date of share options granted: 22 December 2020

Volatility (%): 34.626
Risk-free interest rate (%): 0.67
Expected life of options (year): 10.00
Dividend yield (%): 4.46

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 25. BBRGIEt S R g niREN =12l

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share award scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 3 June 2010 (the “Adoption Date”). The
specific objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions of certain employees of any
member of the Group and to provide them with incentives
in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

The Board may, from time to time, at its sole discretion
select any employee (the “Selected Employee”) of any
member of the Group for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares
to be awarded to the Selected Employees by taking into
consideration matters including (without limitation) the
general financial condition of the Group and the rank and
performance of the relevant Selected Employee. The Board
is entitled to impose any conditions (including a period of
continued service within the Group after the date of the
final approval by the Board of the total amount of shares
to be awarded to the relevant Selected Employee on a
single occasion pursuant to the Share Award Scheme), as
it deems appropriate in its absolute discretion with respect
to the entitlement of the Selected Employee to the awarded
shares.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded
shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to the Selected Employee under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

B 2 mh =t
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share award scheme (continued)

The Share Award Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of
the 10th anniversary date of the Adoption Date and such
date of early termination as determined by the Board.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 June 2010.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board resolved
to terminate the Share Award Scheme and adopt a new
share award scheme (the “New Share Award Scheme”) with
effect form 26 June 2019. Details of the New Share Award
Scheme are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
26 June 2019.

The specific objectives of the New Share Award Scheme
are to recognise the contributions by certain eligible
participants and to give incentives thereto in order to
motivate and retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group and to provide certain
eligible participants with a direct economic interest in
attaining a long-term relationship between the Group and
certain eligible participants.

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
select any eligible participant for participation in the
New Share Award Scheme as a selected participant and
determine the number of awarded shares to be awarded
to the respective selected participants, the terms and
conditions before the awarded shares may be vested and
other related matters as expressly provided under the
New Share Award Scheme. However, until so selected, no
eligible participant shall be entitled to participate in the New
Share Award Scheme.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2021

5. BBIGHESTEI KRR IRENETE @

Bin iZR 518 (&

RSB B AR XMBMEHEEZ B
REESHERSLRILEZ OB UREES
#) FLUL LE o

BERRM RS 2 BHN A RE AN
o VAV B = AN

BE_TZ_ZF-_A=-+—HLFE &
EEERARKIERM EZR) S8 RA R
DR Et 8 (TR RS E)) BT
—NERBZHARBEER -BRAHKRM
REstEzFBENAQTIARASE
—NERATHARBZ A

MRDEBAI 2R EBRR/REBEETE
BERZAEMFZEMILA TR HX
BBEZZATAEERZRBEERER
MO R GBAEBHESEAERZE—D
BRI ASEREAETEERSHEL
BRIRMABAGRTAE TEERZHER
HERQBRN

EFgAH2ENBRETNGERS
HEFDET2REZRNTRMO B/
FONEERETEEESRAEZRBRK
P8 E ~ ER A7 P B 57 1B Al 2 1R RRUR f%
U R R RSt BB TREREZH
tiEAEE A BEEEER  HESE
B2EER] AR R -



25.

26.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share award scheme (continued)

The Board shall not make any further grant of award of
shares under the New Share Award Scheme such that the
total number of Shares granted under the New Share Award
Scheme will exceed 10% of the total number of issued
shares as of the adoption date. If the relevant subscription
or purchase would result in the trustee holding in aggregate,
more than 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as of the adoption date, the trustee of the New
Share Award (the “Trustee”) shall not subscribe or purchase
any further shares.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the scheme rules, the New Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of 10
years commencing on the adoption date.

During the year, the Trustee purchased a total number of
2,992,000 (2020: 7,686,000) ordinary shares at prices
ranging from HK$0.64 to HK$0.75 per share (2020:
HK$0.74 to HK$1.00 per share) at a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,240,000 (2020: HK$7,200,000). The
amount paid on the repurchase of these shares was debited
to the shares held under the share award scheme account.

No shares were awarded under the New Share Award
Scheme for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

25.

26.

BT R M T

31 March 2021 — & _—&#=H=+—H

R et st 8 K Befn SR 518 @

BR{n3Z@ =t (@)

HEE—PRBFTROERSAIRIER
é%kﬁ%@ﬁ#ﬁkﬁﬁ@ﬁ%#ﬁ%
RNBEBEXRMBMELERTRG
BMEM1I0% IEFETLRE—IHEE-
HERMRENEERERNZEAGHFTA
BERFMERALE B EITRN B
10% > R IR P BB 2 R5EA (IREEAD &
BE—PRBUABEEARKD

RN SR 5B B XM B A+
FEMKRER EEFEREEIRA
REERIRATARLE

FRNREAMUNTER0.648TE0.75
B (CEZEF SR 74%752%1 oo?é
7T) ZBEREE 512,992,000 (Z& =
=4 17,686,000/ ZERK BREADN
2,240,000/ 7t (Z& 2= 1 7,200,0007#
7T) BBEZERGEMNZRIBE R RN
Bhst 2R BB TARIE ZRMD T bR

BE-E-—G=P=1—ALEERE
BB F R LB BB EERG (T2
=

f#th
FEERAFEERBEFE HERER

HEH2INMBRRZEGEQES
*o

) o

EEEXEMMARAT FIk 2021 229



Notes to Financial Statements
HAFS R M5

31 March 2021 —ZE_-_—#=F=+—H

27. COMMITMENTS 27. i

The Group had contracted for the following capital AEBMTIERKETILESHN -
commitments:

()  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had () MRHREHEFR > AEBERTFIHAREE
commitments in respect of management fees payable ENZERAMETHELI M ENE
in relation to certain land in Vietnam falling due as BEZAEENT
follows:

2021 2020
—E_—F g 2

HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 T8 7T

Within one year —&F & 1,322 1,322

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
FE_EFLF (BEEEWE) 5,286 5,286
After five years L ER 34,238 35,560
40,846 42,168
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group paid rental expenses of HK$743,000 (2020:
HK$996,000) to Kingmaker Footwear Company
Limited, a related company of which Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen, a director and shareholder of the
Company, is also a director and shareholder.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the market conditions existing at the time when the
respective rental agreements were entered into.

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

BT R M T
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28. RAEKIE X5

(@)

PRILZE R PSR R EMEBoFTsEm 2
I REBRFERNBABERASEE
BERERMNERAIXZNHEEER
743,000/ 70 (ZE =4 1 996,000
T0) CTMARNBEETRREEFTHL
TINAZABIEERKE

ZEMEMZB2E]LEREER
BRERZMNMETE -

LB AR Z B EHIRAS
14AEFEE& REERZ 5 o

AEERREEA SRR

2021 2020
—E-—F k- 33

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

Short-term employee benefits 42 2112 E 18 7 10,713 11,693
Post-employment benefits 12 A & &4 85 106
Equity-settled share option expense MM 455 ~ BERS HERT X 579 739
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

SIERBREEASNRM ST 11,377 12,538

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

ERESME 2 HthSFBEHN P HR
RMI5E8
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

232

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

20. BEFERBIDZEMTA

ERMNEMIARKRSHARZEREEND

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as S <
follows:
Financial assets MHEEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
RBHR A ENMBEE
2021 2020
B —F TETEE
HK$’000 F#7t  HK$'000 FET
Accounts receivable FEU BRI 191,054 137,407
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
SFATEBMNRE - REREAMERIRIBEZ MBEE 3,755 6,542
Due from an associate &Y — B A T8 69,073 69,073
Cash and cash equivalents RS R ZEEIRESER 377,865 443,946
641,747 656,968
Financial liabilities A

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

B A ENMB AR

2021 2020

—B_—%F BT EHF

HK$'000 F#&7x  HK$000 FET

Accounts payable F& (s BRIB 130,805 93,966
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities,

other payables and contract liabilities

STARSEE -EMEMNREBERENEREZMBFEAR 58,287 60,954

Lease liabilities fA E & & 930 1,320

Loans from non-controlling shareholders JEIZ & IR E =X 32,046 32,046

222,068 188,286
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. srERETRERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions (@ FEFREXRS
As at 31 March 2021, payables for additions of items RIZEZ—F=RB=+—H>KEY
of property, plant and equipment and leasehold land ¥ SR B K 18 B FETRRIB M KA
of HK$16,433,000 (2020: HK$16,310,000), have not &1 #116,433,0008C (T2 ZZF .
been settled yet. No addition of lease in current year. 16,310, OOO/%TE) MERBN  RFE
*//J“%%H
Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REIBFFSEEZESD
activities
Loans from
Lease non-controlling
liabilities shareholders
HE&aE FERREER
HK$’000 F# 7t HK$’000 F7#& 7T
At 31 March 2019 R—_ZE—HE=BA=+—H - 30,135*
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
RN B B BREENE16R T E 2,618 -
At 1 April 2019 (restated) R —_E—HAEMLA—H (K&F7) 2,618 30,135*
Changes from financing cash flows I EIR &R 2 2 & H) (1,330) 1,911
Interest expense ] BB 83 =
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows
DREAKEREREZENNE (83) -
Exchange realignment §h F& 58 22 32 -
At 31 March 2020 R—_ZE _ZF=H=+—H 1,320 32,046*
Changes from financing cash flows B &R &R E 2 &5 (420) =
Interest expense #] BB 47 =
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows
DHEAREREREZENNE (47) -
Exchange realignment §h F& 58 22 30 -
At 31 March 2021 W _ZE_—F=H=+—H 930 32,046*

Balance represented the loans from a non-controlling
shareholder which are included in “non-controlling
interests” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The loans are unsecured, interest-free and

not repayable within one year.

HEHE—RFERREREENE
oSt AR A MBI R IR ERE
MmN RERBERR - RERE
BAR—FEREE-
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. ZFERERERMET @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) The total cash outflow for leases included in the € FTARESMREXRANHEENIRESRH
statement of cash flows is as follows: MEEBUIE -
2021 2020
—E-—& k- k-5
HK$’000 F#57  HK$'000 FHE7T
Within operating activities 5+ A 48 & 5E &) 806 1,428
Within financing activities 5t A B & EH) 420 1,330
1,226 2,758
31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. MBAMEIEEEREE

234

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and time deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts
payable and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.
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31.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy on managing
foreign currency exposures. Moreover, the majority of the
Group’s operating assets are located in Mainland China and
denominated in RMB. As the Group’s financial statements
are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation
credit/(charge) to the exchange fluctuation reserve as a
result of the RMB appreciation/(depreciation).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the RMB and Vietnamese Dong (“YND”) exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit/(loss) before tax (due to changes in the fair values
of monetary assets and liabilities and forward currency
contracts).

RAF5ER R MIEE
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

3. BHERARESEBEREE @

Foreign currency risk (continued) SMEERBE ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
BE =R BRFR AT EF
EH . (FR) ®m G
%  HK$'000 F# 7T
2021 —_E”-—F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB {57557 AR 82 & 5 1,346
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB #7875 % A R #EF+{& (5) (1,346)
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND {5 7 70 7 # f /& 82 {8 5 (948)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND {478 ¢ &% # & & FHE (5) 948
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in loss
exchange rate before tax
BEXR FRIZAIESIE
EH(FR) #m, Gr)
% HK$'000 F#& 7T
2020 ZZEZE4F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB {88t % AR K2 E 5 (1,347)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB g7 A R A& (5) 1,347
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND 1 7 7t &2 # g /& 82 {8 5 1,354
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND 78t R/ EFHE (5) (1,354)
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual
basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a
trading limit and any excess to the limit must be approved
by the general manager of the operation unit. Under the
tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment of
the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits, other
receivables and an amount due from an associate, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 38% (2020: 30%) and
68% (2020: 76%) of the Group’s accounts receivable were
due from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively.

31.

RAF5ER R MIEE

31 March 2021 — & _—#=H=+—H

HEEGEEBERBE @

EERERE

AERERENRERGERFZERE
IRF-FEBZHRBABANUSEER
METEZ2EPHAKEGERERE
5 AR B GRE U BREERIB L
BEEER - REFHAEERE MEMAE
BRE BEELAKAEEEUMKCER
FEo-HRBERBRZEERRRE Y E
RERETHEZEETNSE  cEEMK
R ZIRIRE R AER B KT o

FEBHEMMBFEE BEREAEFRRE
EE e HEWOIRIER BN — B E
REMIE) 2 EERBRTREEHSEN M
ARz RNARBEERZELAZIRE
Ee

REBESHR AEBREBLAERRARE
REAZERZEWRBAZAETEEET
A DR A38% (CE-FF :30%) &
68% (CZE_EHF 1 76%) °
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

238

Credit risk (continueq)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

31.

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum

exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,

which is mainly based on past due information unless

other information is available without undue cost or effort,

and year-end staging classification as at 31 March. The

amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

As at 31 March 2021

HEEGEEBERBE @

EEEE &)

REEBRFALIEER
TREJIN=ZB=+—HRRBREEENE
ERRIDNEEERRRBEEAR
DEZERBHEN CRIFNSEMERE
BARBRMAERLE ) RERBRDE
Fr2d &AM BEE RERE.

W-E-_—F=H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+Z{@AR
FEHEEEE SHEMEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—REE EREE EEE 167 & =k
HK$'000 F#7 HK$'000 T HK$000 FH7x HK$'000 FH7x HK$000 FHET
Accounts receivable* & lff 85 I5* - - - 196,330 196,330
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
SEATRMRIE e KA MEWIRE
ZHBEE
- Normal* —IE &* 3,755 - - - 3,755
Due from an associate
ey — R B2 A Bl FIE
- Normal* —IE &* 69,073 - - - 69,073
Cash and cash equivalents
ReEkERREER
- Not yet past due — & K 1 Hf 377,865 - - - 377,865
450,693 - - 196,330 647,023
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continueq)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

HEEGEEBERBE @

FEERRE #&)
REEERFLEER ()
N_EZEF=H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZMEA
BHEERE SHIEREERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—IEE F IR B BIEAE &t

HK$'000 F3# 7T HK$'000 T3 7T HK$'000 T3 HK$'000 FH 7T HKS'000 TH7T

Accounts receivable* FE L8R 18* = =
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

SFABNRIEBERHMEWIRE

ZHBEE

- Normal* — E&* 6,542 -
Due from an associate

& U — R B %%‘/&T%’Klﬁ

- Normal* —[E & 69,073 -
Cash and cash equivalents

RehERREER

- Not yet past due — 8 A & 443,946 -

S 142,354 142,354

= = 6,542

S S 69,073

- - 443,946

519,561 5

- 142,354 661,915

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

# The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and an amount
due from an associate is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

MAERRBBEREETRENER
RIAM S AN RHERES LB
BERARMIEE 189K R -

&Efﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ(ﬁﬁiﬁ&ﬁjﬁ’%u& Fﬁ%ﬁ%’&
MIERBIARRRER TERE) UKL E
ENBERNMBEEZEFERREBVA
HREEEREZR M-SR MHEEL
EEEEREARIRER
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. UHERABEEBEREE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk RENE £ E
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEERAREERBHESHRI TASGR
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the EsEMzAR ZTASEEEEHMT
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial BRMEEE (NEWERE) Z BB R
assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and the projected cash MR EEFE 2 ARRERE
flows from operations.
The Group maintains a balance between continuity of rEBERAER T ERERERIBITE
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash B REEEHESEREETE BN FEEo
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed %%E%%Zﬁ%%z%@%%&ﬁz&%ﬁi
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure ERUTEEAERTIREARNES
requirements and determined that the Group has no B o
significant liquidity risk.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEBZHHEERREBERBIEIELIR
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BHNRIEHZEERFBUT -
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
As at 31 March 2021 RZ_E-_—&=A=+—H
Within 2to 5
On demand 1 year years Total
BIEE
BER —&ERN BRE A%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FET FET FHAT
Account payable fE{TERIE - 130,805 - 130,805
Financial liabilities included in accrual liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities
STAEStBE EtECIRERSNEE
ZHMHarE 53,041 - 5,246 58,287
Lease liabilities TR E & (& - 941 - 941
Loans from non-controlling shareholders
JEERIREER - - 32,046 32,046
53,041 131,746 37,292 222,079
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

31.

A5 ER 2R MI5E
31 March 2021 —&E_—#=H=+—H
HERAREEEERER @

RBEZER (7
A —E-FF=-R=+—H

Within 2t05
On demand 1 year years Total
BE_EE
BRER —FRN BREF CEl
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FET FHET TR
Account payable FE{JERIE - 93,966 - 93,966
Financial liabilities included in accrual liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities
StARSTBE - HMEMNRERGHNEE
ZHHa’E 59,743 - 1,211 60,954
Lease liabilities A E & 1& - 917 458 1,375
Loans from non-controlling shareholders
FFERREER - - 32,046 32,046
59,743 94,883 33,715 188,341
Capital management BAEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

AEREESAZTIEERARERER
FREEEZEN UREFRENERL
Ko BEBRMES -

o

FEBANBEERNEHERHEELR
BARHEFHBER SERFNHABELRR
B AEREDEFABINTRRZRE
ARRBEERARETHR - RNBE_ZT
T —ERIZZEF=ZRA=+—HLEF
B AREEEAZBEN BERNEFILE
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 32. A EFERREER
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the KRBRRERRZHBIRARERDT .
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—f& BB

HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEmEh & &
Investments in subsidiaries B AT 218 & 53,912 81,340

CURRENT ASSETS m#h& &

Due from subsidiaries & W i &8 A 5 18 385,459 339,708
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

FENMIE - Ee kEMEWIRIE 843 1,618
Cash and cash equivalents IHR& R ZEREIRELIER 245,153 267,309
Total current assets R8I E E42%E 631,455 608,635

CURRENT LIABILITIES & & &

Accrued liabilities and other payables fEst & & & E fthFE(TIRIE 2,212 1,728
NET CURRENT ASSETS R8N & EFE 629,243 606,907
Net assets B EFE 683,155 688,247

EQUITY #%

Issued share capital B 217 &7 68,154 68,443
Reserves (note) & (FffzE) 615,001 619,804
Total equity #4258 683,155 688,247
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 32. ZxABHFEIRRR @
THE COMPANY (continuea)

Note: st -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KNBEBHROT -
Shares
Share Capital held under Share
premium redemption Contributed share award option Retained
account reserve surplus scheme reserve profits Total
R fn
BB B BEHHY  BRE \
HER BEfE BARE  MRERG e  GREEN BE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT TER TEn TEn FAT FAT

At 1 April 2019 RZE—HhEMRE—H 97,494 6,639 66,982 - 8,541 416,990 596,646
Profit for the year and total comprehensive

income for the year

FRENRAFE2ANGAE - - - - - 61,335 61,335
Shares purchased under share award scheme

iSO EE B INIG) - - - (7,200) - - (7,200)
Shares repurchased B 21§17 (4,688) 432 - - - (432) (4,688)
Special 2019 dividend paid

BRIZZE-NEERRE - - - - - (13,775) (13,775)
Special 2020 dividend paid

BRAZZEZEFERARE = = = - - (13,689) (13,689)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

RN R EEURN A2 HIE - - - - 1,175 - 1,175
Share options lapsed B % %8 iz 1 - - - - (300) 300 =
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

RZZE-ZFE=A=+—HRZZ-Z4NE—H 92,806 7,071 66,982 (7,200) 9,416 450,729 619,804
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for

the year

FREARAFEZANGREE - - - - - 27,544 27,544
Shares purchased under share award scheme

s et RE YN - - - (2,240) - - (2,240)
Shares repurchased &1 {3 (2,256) 289 - - - (289) (2,256)
Final 2020 dividend paid

BRI Z B2 FERBRE - - - - - (13,689) (13,689)
Interim 2021 dividend paid

BRAZZEZ—FETHRE - - - - - (10,266) (10,266)
Special 2021 dividend paid

BRI Z-2Z—FERIRE - - - - - (4,791) (4,791)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments

BRNEREEURMENZHIE - - - - 895 - 895
Share options lapsed B 4 %8 i & - - - - (700) 700 -
At 31 March 2021 RZE-—%=F=+—H 90,550 7,360 66,982 (9,440) 9,611 449,938 615,001

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the KABZBABBRDIERE—NAAHEA
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries BAEEEBAHAKMKENBARRGD ZA
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in TEBAXANSARRZEEEMERITR
September 1994, over the nominal value of the Company’s MzEEZERE

shares issued in exchange therefor.
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2021 are as follows:

33. XEMBLEFE

RIB-_—F=ZA=+—H " FxRFAXE
MEBARZEFIBINT

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MR BEITRG P NG|
%3 5 1 R 45 st B HMER FREAL FEEE
Directly held B 5
Ready Luck Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
HEHRRES US$5,000 REER
& i8MR5,000% 7T
Indirectly held iEEHE
Discovery Star Development Hong Kong &% Ordinary 100  Property holding
Limited HK$2 SEELY/ES
HEZERARAE EBiERoE T
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Footwear Vietnam #E Us$15,000,000 100  Footwear
Co., Ltd. 15,000,000 7T manufacturing
B2 8 (r) BRAR HEHEER
Maystar Footwear Company PRC/Mainland China US$43,000,000 100 Footwear
Limited B E A (Note (a)) manufacturing and
EZENHBRAT 43,000,000 7T property holding
CEE) NEHBERD
REFBYME
Miri International Limited Hong Kong &4 Ordinary HK$2 100  Investment holding

BEERBZRNERAT
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. TEMBATREE @

SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Place of
incorporation/

Percentage
of equity

registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
By B#TRG PN
%18 o i R A5 it 2 EMER FRESLE FEEH
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (&
Kingmaker (Cambodia) Kingdom of Cambodia Ordinary 100  Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. RIHBRIE US$10,000,000 manufacturing
Eak HEHEER
10,000,000% 7T
Opal Star International British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited EEMERRAS US$1 REEK
BERERERERAS EBRIETT
B EEBERBRAT PRC/Mainland China US$9,000,000 100  Property holding
hE, PE R (Note (a)) FEME
9,000,000% 7T
GELEN
King Eternal Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands Ordinary 51 Investment holding
REHERRESE US$100 REER
E@ER100ETT
Star (1) Limited Hong Kong &% Ordinary 100  Trading of footwear
BEN)BRAE HK$300,000 products
48 /%300,0007 7T BEHEER
Star (3) Limited Hong Kong &% Ordinary 100  Trading of footwear
EEQ)BRAT HK$1 products
BERIETT EEHEAR
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33.

34.

246

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. XEMBARFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
By BiTRRG PN
%13 o i R A5 it 2 EMER FRESLE FEEH
Indirectly held (continued)
BEHE (@)
King Riches Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 Trading of footwear
SERRRQT Mainland China US$1 products
RBERREE/ Efcl-aE BEHEER
HRE Ay it
Yingfeng Industrial Hong Kong &7 Ordinary 51 Investment holding
(Hongkong) Co., Limited US$20,409 REEK
MEEX (58 ARAH & 188%20,409% 7T
Note: BT -

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the law of the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2021.
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Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group
REBRFBEZKREYEFE

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use  Term of lease
BEREER

Location 18k rEEZED (FAHK) RER® B
Levels 4-7 of Block A, HE 100% 35,067 Industrial Short
whole of Blocks B and C ERE I ySkG)
situated at ke
No.1 Cuizhu Street, A&
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, BUTER
Qianshan District, BRI
Zhuhai City, BT CRRARER
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
Whole of composite building, HE 100% 9,225.72 Industrial Short
Levels 1-7 situated at Exg I% ysh
No. 1 Cuizhu Street, g™
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, FILE
Qianshan District, BUTXR
Zhuhai City, RIRIR1%
Guangdong Province, SFEEBERI-TIE
The PRC
Unit Nos. 1401, 1414, 1415 HE 100% 330.18 Commercial Short
and 1416 on Level 14, ERE GES yokit
Metro Plaza, M
Nos. 183-187 XA
Tianhe North Road, XA 1558 183-1875%
Tianhe District, AEEEH1418
Guangzhou, 140114141415
Guangdong Province, K1416E
The PRC
Whole of Level 20, e 100% 851.16 Commercial Short
Asia Mansion, L& GES ySEG)
Nos. 663-669 Jiu Jiang Road, =91
Huangpu District, 7171 B2663-66957%
Shanghal, TMAE20E2E
The PRC
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Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group
REBRRBEZIRBEYZEFE

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use  Term of lease
BEREER

Location 18k rEEZED (FHK) RER® B
Factory Unit 13 &8 100% 726.12 Industrial N/A
on 16th Floor, R T TER
Vanta Industrial Centre, EOE]
Nos. 21-33 REHE21-335
Tai Lin Pai Road, BEIERD
Kwai Chung, 16121355 TR E (i
New Territories,
Hong Kong
Whole of Level 21, B 100% 409.79 Commercial Short
Empress Plaza, NE GES Ehi
Nos. 17-19 Chatharm Road South, 2R7)IE
Tsimshatsui, RRER17-195
Kowloon, BEES
Hong Kong 18R
A parcel of land and the buildings ~ FEl 100% 58,249 Industrial Medium*
erected thereon, Exg I ol
No. 3047 Ming Zhu South Road, ~ ¥i&™
Qianshan District, LG
Zhuhai Gity, BR ¥k 2%
Guangdong Province, 30475%
The PRC —RIMRER BT

ZEEY
* The term for which the lease was granted remaining unexpired as ~ * N_E-_—F=A=+—8B > mEFHBEZH

at 31 March 2021 is less than 50 years but not less than 10 years.
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